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STRATEGIC REPORT

for the year ended 31 March 2023

The Directors present their Strafegic Report on the Laing
O'Rourke Plc Group {‘Laing Q'Rourke’ or 'Group'} for the
year ended 31 March 2023.

REVIEW OF THE BUSINESS
The Group's principal activities are:

CONSTRUCHON
- Programme management;

- Construction and building;
- Civil engineering; and
- Infrastructure and support services.

MANUFACTURING
- Building products; and

- Manufacturing construction products.

PLANT HIRE
- Plant hire and operations.

SERVICES

- Deasign services; and
- Building operations management.

A list of all subsidiaries, joint ventures, and joint operations can
be found in note 37 to the financial statements.

Laing O'Rourke Plc [the ‘Company’) is a wholly owned
subsidiary of O'Rourke investments Ltd and a member of the
Laing O'Rourke Corporation Ltd Group. The Company is
incorporated and domiciled in England and Wales.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

During the year ended 31 March 2023, the Group achieved
continued growth in revenue but made a loss before tax of
£(188.3)m (FY22; profit of £16.2m) driven by continued
inflationary pressures, challenging delivery on projects
experiencing significant change, and delays to capital
investiment in UK public-sector work.

The key results can be summarised as follows:

- The Group's pre-exceptional EBIT decreased by £198.2m to a
loss of £{169.2)m [FY22. profit of £29.0m). The post-exceptional
EBIT loss of £(171.6)m (FY22: profit of £29.0m) reflects the
impact of a write-down of intangible assets of £2.4m (FY22:
Enil}; and

- Subsequent to the year end, the Group's unsecured
revolving credit facility with HSBC was extended to 3 April
2024, See following core debt section for further details.

- Group revenue has increased by 11.1 per cent to £2.0bn;
and at the year end the Group had an order book of £6.6bn
(FY22: £6.1bn) which represents approximately three
years' revenue (order book is defined as fhe value of work
outstanding on secured, anticipated, and preferred bidder
confracts). The year-on-year increase is parfly driven by
continuing to work closely with the UK government as a
strategic supplier to deliver much needed hospitals and
infrastructure in support of its investment agenda. Cur key
focus has beer on converting our pipeline to secured waork,
which stood at £4.6bn (66.1 per cent of fotal order book) at
the year end (FY22: £4.6bn and 80.6 per cent of total order
book). This will remain a pricrity for the remainder of FY24.

The Group's share of cumulative losses in Canada remained
unchanged at £219.3m.

EXCEPTIONAL ITEMS

The Group delivered a pre-exceptional EBIT loss of £{16%.2)m
(FY22: profit of £22.0m} before incurting exceptional iterms of
£2.4m (FY22: £nil) reiating to the write down of intangible assets.

FUNDING

The Group's net cash paosition (cash less debt but excluding
bank arrangementi fees and the impact of {FRS 14 leases)
decreased from £43.5m at 31 March 2022 to £4.4m at 31 March
2023. See note 36 to the financial statements.

The Group operaies extensive controls over working capital
and cash management with proactive engagement of ifs
financial stakeholders.

The Group complied with all Lanking covenanls duing M23
and did not require any waivers or relaxation of its covenants.
Since the year end the Group has received a waiver for
exceeding the loan-to-value covenant related 1o a property
loan {resulting from a lower vacant possession valuation due to
a chonge in markel conditions since the ariginal loan was
entered into). On 30 June 2023, the Group agreed areset of its
future covenants and. in October 2023, the Group extended its
unsecured revolving credit facility and property loan with HSBC
to 3 April 2026, which included resolving the property loan
covenant breach; further details are provided under the core
debt section below. The covenants related to the credit facility
are also detailed in nete 29.4 to the financial statements.

As well as debt instruments, such as bank loans and averdrafts,
the Group sometimes uses project-related bonding and
guaraniees to support its activifies. These insfruments are largety
issued by insurance companies but alse by other financial
institutions. The bonds ore issued on behalf of contractors to
their clients and provide compensation in certain
circumstances, such as defined aspects of contracior under-
performance. They can ako be used to underwrite client
advances and relaxations of client retentions.

These instfruments are unsecured but can convey significant
rights to the issuers similar to those conveyed o other financiat
institutions, e.q. fees, covenants, reporting requirements, and
ranking in the event of financial distress.

Cver the last seven years the Group has sought to reduce its
use of these instruments.

The Group does not employ supplier payment facilities.
CORE DEBT

FY23 FY22

(Em]) {Em)
RCF/Term Debt - -
Property loon 13.0 13.0
Intercompany loan 4890 48.0
Other loans 86.7 80.0

The Group has in ploce an unsecured revolving credit facility
with HSBC for £35.0m. The loan had an initial expiry date of 3
October 2023, which was extended fo 3 April 2024 during FY23
and has been further extended to 3 April 2026 since the year
end. As part of fhe latest extension, covenants related fo interesf
cover and net debt to EBTDA were replaced by an adjusted
EBITDA covenant, and the minimum liquidity covenant was
amended to include three forecast month-end pernods. The
faciity has been maintained at £35.0m through to 31 March
2025, at which point quarterly £2.5m reductions commence,
reclucing the facility to £25.0m by 31 December 2025.

Laing O'Rourke PIC |



STRATEGIC REPORT CONIINUED
for the year ended 3) March 2023

The facility incentivises or penalises Laing O'Rourke depending
on ity pruyress against the following key sustamability metrics:
reducing caroon intensity, diverting waste from landfill, and
growing the number of women in project delivery.

In addition to core bomowing arangements, the Group utilises
hire purchase and finance lease funding facilities to support the
acquisition of plant and equipment.

BOKNDS AND GUARANTEES
FY23 Fra2 FY21 FY20
(Em) t€m) {Em) {£m)
Surety Exposure 67 58 52 55
Bank Exposure - — 40 40

Bonding and similar instruments were £67m at 31 March 2023
(FY22: £58m). The Group has reduced its exposure to such
instruments by 56 per cent since FY18 and 84 per cent since
FY16.

SIGNIFICANT ASSET ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS
The corporate restructure of the UK entities which the Group
substantially completed in FY22 was finalised in FY23. The
restructure did not result in any disposals or acquisitions cutside
of the Group, or discontinuing of any operations.

See note 14 to the financial statements for the full list of
disposals and dissolutions.

FINANCE AND TREASURY POLICY

The Group's freasury function has continued to prudently
manage the Group's liquidity, funding. and financial risks,
arising from movements in areas such as interest rates and
foreign cumency exchange rates. Tne Group has not entered
into foreign currency hedges. The Group continues to review its
credit support requirement and prioritise the management of
key fingncial stakehalders, including key banking relationships
and surety bonding providers who suppart our long-term
strategic agenda.

UK CONSTRUCTION WORKING CARITAL AND SUPPLY
CHAIN PAYMENTS

The UK business confinues to target improvements in its supplier
payments and is fully engaged with cument sector debates
regarding payment practices.

Since the 2008 financial crisis, access to traditional bank
funding by tier one contractors and subcontractors alke has
reduced due to aloss of appetite for the sector by UK banks.
Reliance on off-balance-sheet support has also become more
difficult due to a reduction in the atfractiveness and the
availability of bonding and guarantee facilities.

Tier one cash flow is particularly sensitive to the length of

fime taken to agree and settle changes and variations, the
qguanturm of and duration over which cash retentions are held
by clients, and the reluctance of clients to pay upfront for the
significant cost and risk of mobilising a major project and the
related off-site manufacture of components.

All parties involved in the sector must collaberate to provide

a more moderm approach to payments and provide
adequate working capital te avoid the current hand-io-mouth
trickle-clown of liquidity.

In terms of payment data, the UK businesses reported their
latest set of payment practices data for the six months to 30
September 2023.

Laing C'Rourke Pic |

During 1his perod, invoice payment fiming has continued to be
predominantly impacted by the wider inflationary
environment, including rapidly escalating prices of certain
commaodities leading to advance payments being made
ahead of terms in order to fix pricing. The business has alko
been operating with o lower level of debt in fine with its strategy
to reduce debit risk. Despite this, progress has steadily improved.
There is still progress to be made by the Group in achieving
payment to all suppliers within terms, particularty against the
backdrop of increased inflationary pressure across the supply
chain.

Laing O'Rourke Plc became a signatory to the UK's Prompt
Payment Code (PPC) in 2013 and remains committed to
improving its payment performance.

The graphs below show Laing O'Rourke Delivery Lid's payment
performance for the three years to 30 September 2023. Laing
O'Rourke Delivery Ltd is the main trading entity in the UK, a
wholly owned subsidiary of Laing O'Rourke Plc, and the main
entity subject to the PPC.

Whilst we remained focused on measures which ensure
continued impravement in our payment performance, we
operate in a sector where supply chains and confractual terms
are complex, and prompt payment is offen matericaly
impacted by resolution of disputes and alignment to agreed
contractual processes.

AVERAGE DAYS TO PAY INVOICES

: 32
31 2|
I I

ALL SUPPLIERS AND SUBCONTRACTORS, % INVOICES
PAID UNDER 60 DAYS

p— 4
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STRATEGIC REPORT CONTINUED
for the year ended 31 March 2023

ALL SUPPLIERS AND SUBCONIRACTORS, % INVOICES
PAID TO TERMS

RISK AND ACCOUNTING POLUCIES
The Group has been focused on further improving its risk
management framewerk and processes during FY23.

The Board regularly assesses and monitors risks affecting the
Group. Further details of how the Group has managed key
financial and operational risks, such as credit ond liquidity risks,
are set out on pages 61 to 66 of the Laing O'Rourke
Corporation Ltd Annual Report and Accounts in the audit and
risk management section.

The Group's ullimate parent company, Laing G'Rourke
Corperation Ltd, reports its company and consolidated
accounts in accordance with international Financial Reporting
Standards as adopted by the European Union and Companies
(Jersey) Law 1991. The Group's significant accounting policies
are explained in note 2 to the financial statements.

IMPACT OF THE WAR IN UKRAINE

During FY23, inflationary pressures were exacerbated by the
war in Ukraine which has contributed to significant input price
inflation and shortages of certain materials and commodiities,
which has impacted the FY23 financial performance. We
contfinue 1o manage inflation risk from the bid/tender stage
and throughout the contract life through our governance
processes and various mitigation strategies. The impact of the
inflationary environment remained under review in FY23 with its
impact carefully managed and mitigated wherever possible.

Continued challenges with staff recruitment and attrition and
unexpected challenges in areas such as deliveries to site are
largely mitigated through our direct delivery integrated model
and direct employment. The Board will continue o monitor the
impact of the war in Ukraine and inflation on the UK business
environment and remains alert to the need to respond to
changes in market conditions such as freedom of movement,
nght to work, finance and tariff implications, disruption to supply
of plant and equipment and key construction components,
exchange rates, and primary commodiity prices,

QUTLOOK

The Group has been impacted by inflationary pressures and
delays to capital investment in UK public-sector works due to
both global and domestic political turbulence.

Management continues to focus on strengthening the
foundation of the business through effective risk management,
Continuing to embed new processes and controls on project
selection, and efficient operational delivery.

QOur FY24 forecast and the longer-term delivery of our strategic
targets is predicated on continuing fo win sufficient
opportunities within our pipeline, the continued implementation
of our strategic workstreams, and the ability o contain the
impact of any further inflationary pressures and publicsector
capital investment detays.

The Board remains confident that the strategic plan can be
delivered but will continue to closely monitor any further
impacts of inflation. exaceroated by the warin Ukraine,
together with any changes to key judgements and estimations
including contingent liahilities This has been explained in our
going concern note on pages 21 10 23 and the Impact of
climate change on our forecasts and fuiure performance has
alse been explained in note 2.27b) to the financial statements.

The Board remains conficdent in the resilience of the business
and its leadership due fo its proven track record, against a
challenging market backdrop including the impacts of Brexit,
the pandemic, and inflation.

The UK government has committed to a significant level of
infrastructure investment, as set out in the UK National
Infrastructure Strategy in September 2022; however, timing of
investment remains uncertain, More recently, delays to, or
cancellations of, parts of the HS2 line have been announced
together with delays to major roadbuilding schemes impacting
the previously set aut investment timelines. Adoption of modem
methods of construction remains central to this investment
which the Europe Mub is well placed to respond to, given the
pioneering investment and development of our own
advanced manufacturing facilities backed by new

digital platforms.

The Group continues to invest in developing a sectorleading
capability in modern methods of construction. Qur integrated
delivery model, strong client engagement, and robust internal
control environment ensure that we are well positioned to
continue to win high quality work. The Group also continues to
work closely with the UX government as o strategic supplier in
order to deliver much-needed hospitals, schools and
infrastructure in support of ifs investment agenda. The Group
has confinued 1o convert ifs sfrong pipeline, and this remains
one of the Board's main priorities for the remainder of the
current financial year.

The Group now has alf of its expected FY24 revenue either
secured or anticipated and 82 per cent of its expected FY25
revenue is at the secured, anficipated or prefered bidder
stage and the Group Order Book currently stands at £6.6bn as
at 30 September 2023.

The UK core debt facility that was due 1o expire on 3 April 2024
was extended on 19 October 2023 along with a property loan.
The expiry date for both is now 3 April 2026,

The Board has considered the Group’s financiat requirements,
based on curent commitments, its secured order book, and
the factors set cut above. as well as the latest projections of
future opportunities, and has evaiuvated these against its
banking and surety bonding arrangements. It has concluded
that the Group is weli pkaced to overcome the inflationary
challenges of FY23, manage its business risks, and meet ifs
future financial fargets successfully.

Laing O'Rourke Plc 5



STRATEGIC REPORT CONTINUED
for the year ended 31 March 2023

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

SECTION 172 {1) STATEMENT

This section serves as our Section 172 statement in compliance
with the Companies Act 2006, Section 172 of the Companies
Act requires the Directors to have regard to the interests of our
wider stakeholders when making key decisions across a range
of areqs, This statement, together with the relevant sections of
the Annual Report and Financial Statements, explains how our
board imeels his ieyuirernen! and also how stakeholder
engagement influences decision making acrcss the Group.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRINCIPLES

During the year ended 31 March 2023, our relevant UK
companies in the Laing O'Rourke Corporation Ltd Group (‘the
Group') have considered the Companies (Miscellaneous
Reporting) Regulations 2018 and elected to apply the Wates
Corporate Governance Principies for Large Companies, as
published in December 2018 [the ‘Wates Principles'). We
reported against the Wates Principles for the first time in the
financial year ended 31 March 2020 and the continuance of
this reporting assists in assessing what has been done well and
also where there remains oppertunity for further improvement
of our corporate govemance framework. It is alse recognised
that governance requiremenis and needs will evoive over time.
Our ambition continues to be the achievement of best-in-class
corporate govemance across the Group.

Laing O'Rourke Pic sits within the Corporate Governance
Framework of the overall Laing O’Rourke Corporation Lid
Group. Decisions that impact Laing O'Rourke Plc are made at
both the Eurcpe Hub Executive Committee and Group
Executive Commiftee levels. The Directors of Laing O'Rourke Plc
are members of the Europe Hub Executive Committee and/or
the Group Executive Committee, All references o the Board,
the Company, and the Grougp within this Corporate
Govemnance Section on pages 7 to 20, relate to the Laing
C'Rourke Corporation Lid Group.,

GROUP CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FRAMEWORK

At Laing O'Rourke, we are proud of what has already been
achieved. We take the view that good corporate governance
is o comerstone of the creation of a successful business and
one that generates value for wider society. Our Group
govemance framewaork continues to be applied across our
glchal business and was reviewed during FY23 in line with our
annual review cycle.

Laing O'Rourke Plc |



STRATEGIC REPORT CONTINUED
for the year ended 31 March 2023

BOARD STRUCTURE

BOARD OF

DIRECTORS

Business Unit/
Funchonat
i Committees

Business Unit, Functionat
Committees

LAING O 'ROURKE CORPORATION LTD DIRECTORS

Sir John Parker GBE FREng - Group Chair

sir John, independent Group Chair af Laing O'Rourke, has puilt
up an enviable reputation across a range of industrial sectors
as a leader in the boardroom, including Chair at six FISE 100
companies. Sir John also chairs the Remuneration, Nomination,
and Govemance Committee and the Finance Committee.

A farmer President of the Royal Academy of Engineering and a
visiting Fellow at Oxford University, he takes a keen interest in
the development of engineering technology, diversity, and
talent.

Ray O'Rourke KBE — Group Chief Executive Officer
sShareholder and co-founding director of Laing C'Rourke, Ray
chairs the Group Executive Committee and is responsible for
leading the Group’s strategic direction and operational
management. Ray akso chairs the Australia Hub Executive
Committee and is @ member of the Europe Hub Executive
Committee (Chair until April 2023), Finance Committee, and
Rernuneration, Nomination, and Governance Committee.

Ray founded R O’Rourke & Son in 1977. The business acquired
the construction arm of John Laing Plc in 2001, and with the
acguisition of Barclkay Mowlem Australia in 2006, created
today's extended intemational engineering construction
group.

Des O'Rourke — Grouvp Deputy Chair

Shareholder and co-founding director of Laing O'Rourke,

Des provides Board level support to the Group Chair and the
Group Chief Executive Otficerin the operational management
of the Group's business activities. Des is also a member of the
Group Executive Committee, the Europe Hub Executive
Committee and the Remuneration, Nomination, and
Governance Committee.

Des has a proven frack record in project delivery, mobilising
large teams of people onto complex projects around
the world.

Rowan Baker - Group Chiet Financial Officer

Rowan joined Laing O'Rourke in September 2020 as the Group
Chief Financial Gfficer. Rowan is also a member of the Group
Executive Commitiee, the Finance Committee, the Group
Compliance Committee, and the Europe and Australia Hub
Executive Committees.

An experienced finance executive, Rowan was previously
Chief Financial Officer at McCarthy & Stone Plc where she
played a key role in the company's successful PO In 2015.
Priar 1o joining McCarthy & Stone in 2032, she worked in
finance for Barclays Bank Plc and PwC. Rowan is a qualitied
accountant [FCA} and chartered tax advisor [CTA). Rowan is
also a Non-Executive Director and Chair of the Audit
Committee at Vistry Group Pic.

Cathal O'Rourke - Group Chief Operating Officer

Cathal was appointed Group Chief Operating Officer from

1 April 2023 (previously Managing Director Ausiralia, resigned
31 March 2022). Upon appeintment, Cathal jeined the Board
and rejoined the Group Executive Committee. He also rejoined
the Australia Hub Executive Commitiee and became Chair of
the Europe Hub Executive Commitiee.

Between November 2020 and April 2022, Cathal held the role
of President of the Australian Constructors Association where he
ied significant reform initiatives fo ensure @ healthy, dynamic,
and thriving construction industry for the future. While leading
the Australian business, he played a leading role in securing,
delivering, and sponsoring a number of significant building and
infrastructure projects. Cathalis a charered civil engineer and
a member of the Institution of Civil Engineers.

Laing O'Rourke Plc 7



STRATEGIC REPORT CONTINUED
for the year ended 31 March 2023

Rebecco Hanley

Managing Directar. Australia

Rebecca joined the Board in Novermber 2022 having been a
member of the Group Executive Committee since June 2018,
nitially as Group Strategy and Transformation Director and
moere recently as Managing Director for the Australia Hub. Upon
becoming Managing Director of the Australia Hub, Rebecca
also joined the Australia Hub Executive Commiittee. Rebecca
tempororily stepped down from the Board in June 2023 in
anficipation of ner taking parental leave, and is expected o
rejoin the Board upon herretum.

In herrole as Group Director for Strategy and Transtormation,
Rebecca was instrumental in shaping the Group's ‘Deliver
2025 global sralegy focused on innovation and excellence.
Rebecca previously worked in strategy for Anglo American Pic
and in financial leadership positions, including for PwC,
Rebecco is o Chartered Accountant with an MBA from
INSEAD in Paris.

Jim Edmondson - Group Company Secretary

Jim jeined the Group in January 2018 and is a member of the
Board. Jimis also a member of the Group Executive
Committee.

Jim is a soiicitor of the Supreme Court of England and Wales
and a former joint senior partner of a major London law firm
with responsibilities for strategy. thought leadership, nurturing of
client relationships, and business development. Jim also
specialised in advising on corporate structures, succession
planning, and the application of proper administration and
corporate governance in the context of directorships

and trusteeships.

Mark Cutifani — Non-Executive Director

Mark was appointed to the Board as an independent
Non-Executive Director in September 2022, Mark is an
experienced global chief executive who joined the Board as
Senior Independent Director, also chaliing the Group
Sustainability Commitiee.

hark stepped down in April 2022 as Chief Executive and an
executive director of Anglo American Plc after nine years
leading the global mining giant. He is credited with leading the
turnaround of Anglo American after joining as Chief Executive
in 2013. The Company reported revenues of USD$41.5bn and
record profitabililty in 2021,
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Heather MacCallum - Non-Executive Director

Healher joined the Board as an independent Non-Executive
Director in November 2022 and chairs the Audil and

Risk Committee.

Heather was a partner in KPMG Channet Islands Ltd's financiat
services practice from 2001 undil her retirement from the
partnership on 30 September 2016. She predominantly
provided audit and advisory services to the investment
management sector and cumently serves as a Non-Executive
Director on the boards of several companies including Jersey
water ond B-FLEXION Fund Management (Jersey) Lid.

Dr Hayaatun Sillem CBE — Non-Executive Director
Hayaatun was appointed to the Board as an independent
Nan-Executive Director in March 2022, In addition to her role on
the Board, Hayaatun is a member of the Audit and Risk
Committee and the Group Sustainability Cormmittee,

Hayaatun is Chief Executive Officer of the Royal Academy of
Engineering and Queen Elizabeth Prize for Engineering
Foundation. She co-chairs the UK government's Business
Innovation Forum and co-chaired Sir Lewis Hamilton's
Commission on improving Black representation in UK
motorsport. She was made a CBE for services to Intemational
Engineering in 2019. Prior to her current rales, she was Deputy
Chief Executive Officer at the Royal Academy of Engineering
and served as Committee Specialist and later Specialist Advisor
to the House of Commons' Science and

Technology Commitiee.

Charlotie Yaleur - Non-Executive Director

Charlotte was appointed to the Board as an independent
Non-Executive Director in March 2018. In addition to her role on
the Board, Charlotte is a member of the Audit and Risk
Committee, the Group Sustainability Committee, and the
Remuneration, Nomination, and Governance Committee.

Charlotte has more than 30 years' expersience in the financial
services industry and has held a range of executive and non-
executive directorships in listed organisations, including
Kennedy Wikon Europe Real Estate Plc, 3i Infrastructure Plc,
Blackstone/GSO Loan Financing Ltd, DW Catalyst Fund Ltd,
NTR Plc, Renewable Energy Generation Ltd, and JPMorgan
Global Convertibles Income Fund Lid.



STRATEGIC REPORT CONTINUED
for the year ended 31 March 2023

KEY MATTERS CONSIDERED BY THE LAING O'ROURKE CORPORATION LIMITED BOARD DURING

THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2023 INCLUDED:

PROGRESS

TORIC/ACTIVITY ACTIONS
PURPOSE AND Continued to embed the Group's purpose
VALUES and vaiues in order fo bring together the

enduring essence of Laing O'Rourke as a
business, which will guide us today and in how
we evolve in the future.

Continued to ensure that the Group's purpose and
values are consistently applied across the Group and
are embedded into our systems and processes,
including owr responsible decision making (RDM])
framework which helps us consider our values and
principles with regard to project govermance,
recruitment, and leaming and development,

and when making complex decision.

Purpose:

Pushing the boundaries ul whal's possible. in service
of humanity.

Values.

Care (do the best for our people fo improve their lives
and the world around us);

Integrity (do things the right way); and

Courage (wilingness to confront the unknown and to
challenge the status qua).

STRATEGY AND Sustainability embedded inic Group strategy

SUSTAINABILITY with current ambition 10 achieve operational
net zero emissions by 2030 and to be fully net
zero before 2050.

Appeintment of a Europe Hub Head of Sustainability
Rossella Nicolin supported by sustainability ambassadors
throughout the business.

Development of Laing O'Rourke values in the year with
our ‘care’ value reflecting the importance of
sustainabiiity. This underpins how the business goes 10
work and creates a requirement for project teams to
reflect the community in which they cperate.

Working towards the reporting obligations for the Task
Force on Climate-Related Financial Disclosures (see TCFD
disclosures on pages 46 to 52 of the Laing G'Rourke
Corporation Group Annual Report and Accounts for
further detail).

Ihvestment in research and development and
modem methods of construction to support fow
carbon products.

Regular reporting to the Board of progress on these
Initiotives and connectivity with finance function
and operations.

Continued careful monitoring by the Board to maintain a
realistic view of progress towards environmental and
diversity targets.

Ongoing moenitoring of the RDM framework
for the Group, a key enabler for our
transformation strategy to deliver our
‘Deliver 2025' strategy.

Reviewed the appropriateness of the Group's

Continued waork in both hubs to ensure that the RDM
framework is applied in all aspects of business and, along
with our purpose statement ana associated values, is
embedded into our processes and systems. RDM
assessments made during the yearincluded Berkeley
Square (Evrope Hub).

Following creation of a single consolidated UK trading

corporate structure in the context of the Board
ond shareholders' continuing drive for
simplicity. Continued monitaring of
appropriateness of KPls.

group with effect from 1 April 2022 and reduction in the
number of legal entities, work has continued to fudher
streamline the number of legal entities in the Group.,

Details of the KPls which have been approved by the
Board and against which progress will be measured are
outlined on pages 2 and 3 of the Laing O' Rourke
Comporation Ltd Annua) Report and Accounts.

Laing O'Rourke Plc | 9



STRATEGIC REPORT CONTINUED
for the year ended 31 March 2023

TORIC/ACTIVITY ACTIONS PROGRESS
FINANCIAL Evaluated the Group's performance against Detailed reports to each Beard meeting from Group
PERFORMANCE budget and forecast. Chief Financial Officer and Group Commercial Director.
Approved the Group's annual report and Annual report and accounts approved by the Board.
accounts.
Confinued response to the challenges Programme of frequent Board meetings.
presented by inflaticnary pressures.
Consideration of the Group's capital Regular detailed reports o each Board meeting
requirements. including full consideration of cashflow forecasts and
refinancing opticns.
LEADERSHIP Continued review af Board composition and Approved appointment t¢ the Board as non-executive
AND PEQPLE merits of gender and ethnic diversity. directors of Mark Cufifani and Heather MacCallum and
appointment of Cathal O'Rourke and Rebecca Hanley
as executive directors. Also considered and approved
any new extemal non-executive appointments held by
our Board members.
Continued consideration of succession Succeassion planning continuing fo evolve under the
planning for senior roles. stewardship of the Group Chair.
Continued consideration of purpose from an Executive inifiatives around defining purposeful
individual leadership perspective. leadership.
Continved review of Executive Development Excetflent executive engagement assisted by professional
Programme, o two year inifiative involving ceaching in core areos of purposeful leadership and
circa 30 executives. The purpose is 1o enable high performance.
each executive to review personal progress
aside from everyday tasks, and to enable
the business to arrive ot an cbjective analysis
of bench strength in order 1o inform
succession planning.
RISK Continued development of Project Certainty Implementation of Project Certainty as the operating
MANAGEMENT {our operating model for how we deliver maodel for all new projects in the UK, ensuring a personal
AND INTERNAL projects against a set of key principles to drive connection between project and business leadership
CONTROLS consistency across our portfolic) and o new teams.
Ezﬁrs?g:g :éq r\igllggi%g s(?;ehé> fhlrough Further progress made in developing and executing the
g [see below). risk and intemal audit programme during FY23. In April
Continued work on reviewing processes and 2023, decision taken to move from a fully insourced
controls across the business. internal audit model to a model that combines a
A reassessment of the risk and intemal audit bolstered second line of defence with extemnal,
. . independent assurance where required.
requirements of the business.
RETHINKING Continued focus on safety of people, both Engineered safety is central to the way in which the
SAFETY THROUGH physical and psychological, in order to Group goes to work. This is underpinned by our values,
INCLUSION AND  embed the appropriate culture, owned by which place care at the heart of the business.
WELLBEING all concerned, This approach focuses on

the application of engineered safety
(engineering out the risk), modem methods
of construction (digital fechnology and
off-site manufacturing), and hurman
performance {leadership, personal capacity,
and wellbeing).

Emphasis upon the pillars of engineered safety
{engineering out the risk), delivery excellence human
performance, maximising the impact of digital
technolegy in the workplace and supporting our frades
to technicians plan.

Significant leadership training rolled out focusing on
psychological safety in the Europe Hub. Project level
training programmes to be rolled out across the Europe
Hub in FY24,
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CORPORATE GOVERMANCE STATEMENT

The structure of the Corporate Governance Statement follows
that recommended by the Wates Principles. Each of the Wates
Principles has been considered individually and in the context
of Laing O'Rourke’'s operations.

PRINCIFLE ONE
PURPOSE AND LEADERSHIP

As an engineering and construction organisation, we are
commitied to playing a vital rele in building stronger and

morfe sustainable communities and contributing to economic
growth. We are committed 10 the develupnenl uf u wokforce
culture based on what we describe as 'Excellence Plus’
performance.

At the heart of our business is our 2025 mission, which is to
become the recognised leader for innovation and excelience
in the construction industry, and which we will achieve with a
strategy based on the values of the founding shareholders who
remain the two shareholders of the Group today and continue
to inform our direction. By leveraging the right technology. we
will create positive change for our clients, their projects, wider
industry, and the communities we serve, These agims are clear,
powerful, and relevant to the business challenges of today and
in the future and form a compelling guide to our goals and
how they will be achieved.

Further details of our strategy and integrated business model
are set out on pages 10 and 11 of the Laing O'Rourke
Corporation Lid Annual Report and Accounts,

Last year the Board approved our revised purpose and valves
which have been informed by our Code of Conduct and by
listening to a broad span of colleagues in both operating hutss,

The process of consulting on purpose and values emphasised
the impcrfance of engagement and dialogue with employees
and wider stakehaolders when communicating the Group’s
strategy. govemance, and culfure, The year under review has
been spent embedding the purpose and values in our
processas. Detais of how and why we engage are sef out on
pages 17 to 19 in our reporting against Principle Six {Stakeholder
Relationships and Engagement) of the Wates Principles.

CONDUCT AND ETHICS

Tne Board sets and leads behaviours and culiure to support the
delivery of the strategy. There is a formal process for the Beard
to manage and approve conflicts of interest within the director
group and directors are required to inform the Board of any
actual or potential conflicts of interest which may arise with
their other professional or personal interasts.

The Board approved and continues to endarse the Group's
Code of Conduct, which sets out behaviours acceptable to us.
The Code of Conduct, which was reviewed and updated
during the year, defines our commitment to operating globally
in accordance with ethical standards and the behaviours that
are expected of employees, supply chain parners, and other
stakeholders. The aim is to go beyond minimal compliance.
Cur Code of Conduct - Doing the Right Thing - is publicly
available on our website.

We made further enhancements during the period to our
Group ethics and compliance programme, with a focus on
fraining our people, raising awareness of expected behaviours,
and supplementing our existing suite of compliance policies
and contrals fallowing hi-annual control reviews and risk
assessments. Our directors and senior executive team are

cdlosely aifgned with the continued evolution of our ethics and
compliance programme by undertaking training, ensuring
ethics and compliance is a standing agenda tem in our
executive governance forums, and increasing their accountability
for monaging gifts, hospitality, and conflicts of interest.

HIGHLIGHTS

— Group risk assessment and bi-annual control reviews
completed and reporied to the Board, Audit and Risk
Commitiee, and the Eurcpe Hub Executive Commitfee;

— Global Code ot Conduct training and Pledye cedification by
aliemployees;

- Modern slavery training to UK site managers;
tMaociem sinvery ef eaming madule to support modem slavery
staterment and legislative requirements;

— Executive training on ethics and compliance;

— Group compliance campaign launched: and

— UK supply chain due diligence controls futher enhanced.

PRINCIPLE TWO
BOARD COMPOSITION

The Board performs its responsibilities with the assistance of six
Board Commitiees: the Group Executive Commiittee; the Audii
and Risk Commitiee; the Remuneration, Normination, and
Gavermance Committee; the Finance Commitiee; the Group
Compliance Committee; and the Group Sustainability
Committee.

The Group Chair and the committee chairs pramoie open
debate and facilitate constructive discussions. The Group
Chair, via the Group Company Secretary, is responsiple for
ensuring that directors receive the appropriate level of
information in Board papers sufficiently in advance of meetings
to faciitate such discussions.

Board members have equal voting rights when making
decisions. The specific modus operandi of the Board is set out in
the Company's articles of association, a copy of which can be
requested from the Group Company Secretary. All directors
have equal access to the Group Company Secretary and may
iake professional advice if desired at the Group's expense.

The Group i confident that the Board has the right skills and
experience to discharge its duties eftectively. The direciors are
clear on the amount of time required for their role and ore
careful to balance this with the requirements of otherroles (see
biographies on pages 7 and 8).

The Board aims to schedule regular visits 1o major projects and
directors are free to request such information as they may wish
on any aspect of the Group's operations. The Group provides
formal training for directors across a number of areds of focus
including directors’ duties and compliance issues and has a
clear carmmitment to protessional development. The Group
Chair undertakes a programme of discussion and ongoeing
evaluation with each member of the Board aside from formal
meetings.

This evaluation includes a focus upon succession, which is
under regular review both at Board and operational leve!, and
is of particular relevance fo the drive for transformation over
the course of the Group's business plan to 2030. The Group has
implemented an executive development programme,
supported by a global leadership consultancy, designed to
identify and address development goadis.

Our aspiration to increase diversity across the business is a key
tocus ot our Group Chaai, Siv Juln Parker, and we are proud
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that, upon the expected retum of Rebecca Hanley from
parentallenve, we will return to 45 per cent of cur Bourd
paositions being held by women. For the first fime, in FY23, the
top 50 private companies in the UK were invited to take part in
the FISE 350 Women in Leadership review and we achieved
sixth place among the largest private companies in the UK for
women in leadership positions and third place for the
propoertion of women on our Board. Within cur sector we
qchieved fict plree forwomen both in lcadership and un
boards. Our commitment to continue to drive diversity is set ouf
on page 28.

The Group Chief Executive Officer and the Board continuously
review membershics of the Board Committees, Hub Executive
Committees, and the executive leadership teams that support
them to ensure the right skill sets are focused on the right parts
of the business, taking into account the needs and interests of
the business gs these evolve, Members of the committees and
leadership teams are profiled on pages 20 to 26 of the Laing
O'Rourke Corpoeration Annual Report and Accounts.

GROUP EXECUTIVE COMMITIEE

The Board delegates the day-te-day operation of the Group to
the Group Executive Committee, which is chaired by Ray
O'Rourke KBE, the Group Chief Executive Officer. The role of
the Committee is to recommend the Group strategy to the
Board, allccate capital, and monitor execution o maximise
stakeholder returns.

Throughout FY23, the Committee also considered matters of
inclusion and wellbeing. The Board resolved that the Group
Sustainability Committee would encompass inclusion and
wellbeing with effect from July 2023,

The Group Executive Committee performs its responsibiliies with
regard 1o Laing O'Rourke Plc with the assistance of a sub-
committee — the Europe Hub Executive Committes.

Hub Executive Commiltees

The Europe Hub Executive Committee was chaired by the
Group Chief Executive Officer throughout FY23. The Group
Chief Operating Officer became Chair of the Europe Hub
Executive Committee from April 2023, The role of the
commiliee is to execute strategy and maximise free cash flows
from operations.,

AUDIT AND RISK COMMITTEE

The Audit and Risk Committee is chaired by Heather
MacCallum, a non-executive director. The role of the
Committee is to monitor the integrity of the Group's financial
staternents. to oversee the relationship with the external
auditors including a review of independence and fees, and to
assess and direct the Group's approach to risk management.
For the purposes of the FY23 audit, the Committee met three
times in order to review draft financial statements and the
information supplied by management on significant
accounting judgements, as well as reviewing the going
concem statement. The Committee also considered risk
management processes and findings and internal audit
outcomes and recommendations, following internal audits
undertaken across a number of areas of the business inciuding
finance, and commercial. The purpese of conducting internal
audits is to assess the effectiveness of our intemal controls
across the business. The Committee also receives updates on
our ethics and compliance programme.

REMUNERATION, NOMINATION, AND

GOVERNANC B COMMITTEER

The Remuneration, Nomination, and Govemance Commitiee
is chaired by Sir John Parker, the Group Chair. The Committee
has clearly defined terms of reference, its main function being
to make recommendations to the Board for the Group'’s
remuneration structure and to align remuneration to the long-
term sustainakle success of the Group.

FINAMNCE COMMITTEE

The Finance Committee is chaired by Sir John Parker, the
Group Chair, and s charged by the Board with overseeing and
approving significant new financing arrangements. There were
no circumstances that arose this year that necessitated a
meeting of this Commiltee.

GROUP COMPLIANCE COMMITTEE

The Group Compiliance Committee is chaired by Madeleina
Loughrey-Grant, Group Director — Legal, Procurerment (EU), and
Sustainablility, and is supported by Compliance Committees in
each of our two hubs. Following a review of cur complance
governance structure, and given the changing regulatory
landscape, we appointed a Group Head of Ethics and
Compliance and compliance leaders in each huk and
undertook a reset to ensure we had the correct membership
and strategic focus. The Committees monitor emerging
compliance risks and measure mitigation progress on existing
compliance risks, The refreshed Group Compliance Commifiee
has strengthened the dialogue between the Board and Group
Executive (including at hub level) and the understanding of
compliance issues and planned mitigaticns.

GROUP SUSTAINABILITY COMMITTEE

The Group Sustainability Committee s chaired by Mark Cutifan,
a non-executive director, ond is charged by the Board with
overseeing the environmental impact and sustainability of
operations and monitoring progress and performance against
targets. Since July 2023, the Committee ako encompasses
inciusion and wellbeing.

The inaugural Group Sustainability Committee meeting took
place in November 2022, The terms of reference include
monitoring stakeholder sustainabiity concerns, considering all
significant regulatory and voluntary developments in
sustainability, overseeing management processes designed to
ensure compliance with relevant policies, reviewing
sustainability incidents, and ensuring that learning is shared. The
Committee also ensures coordination of risk management work
with the Audit and Risk Committee. The Cormmittee is
particularly focused on the Net Zero Action Plan and tracking
progress on targets and, during FY23. working on our first full
TCFD disciosure, where we identify both areas of full
compliance and those areas where further work is required.
Our three headiine targets are to achieve operational net zero
by 2030, to be fully net zero before 2050, and 1o have a 50:50
gender balance in stalf members by 2033. Significant progress
has been made against all three targets to date, as explained
in more detail in the Sustainability Statement. The key
challenges that the Group Sustainability Committee recognises
are improving the quality of our data, concrete and steel
carbon reduction, and reducing supply chain emissions.
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PRINCIPLE THREE
DIRECTOR RESPONSIBILITIES

The Group governance framework provides a clear statement
of directors’ roles and responsibilities and links to policies and
procedures and delegations of authority, with the purpose of
supporting effective decision-making and independent
challenge. This in turn delivers iong-term value to the Group
and to stakeholders. Governance processes and policies are
reviewed and updated on a regular basis as part of the
Group's commitment to corporate govermance. The Board
believes that the Group governance framework - including
communication channels between the Company unid ils
shareholders who continue to hold leadership roles in the
Group - is effective and appropriate, with a planned review
over the next reporting period to provide additional assurance
to the Board and the Company’s shareholders.

The Board delegates day-to-day operational management of
the Group to the Group Executive Committee. Each of the twa
hubs have their own executive committee (the Europe Hub
Executive Comimittee and the Australia Hub Executive
Committee) which report directly into the Group Executive
Committee. The Board further delegates detailed anid specific
matters to the other committees outlined above whose role s
to consider specific issues of relevance to Group govemance
and to recommend a course of action to the Board. The Board
retains ullimate responsibility for any final decisions, subject to
any matters reserved for approval by the Company’s
shareholders.

The Board includes a significant number of non-executive
directors who are alse members of - or chair - the Board's

key corporate govermance commitiees, including the

Audit and Risk Committee, the Finance Committee, the Group
Sustainability Cormmitiee, and the Remuneration, Nomination,
and Govermnance Committee. These appointments provide
assurance that the appropriate independence and balance
of Board, executive leadership, and non-execulive director
representation is mainfained across these key govemnance
committees.

The non-executive directors are all wholly independent and
have no material business or other relationships with the
Group which might influence their independence, judgement,
or decisions. Non-executive directors are able to fulfil their roles
in an independent and conshuctive manner and the Group
Chair takes an active role in ensuring that the non-executive
directors are given appropriate cpportunity 10 support
effective decision-making, review business performance,

and to challenge or influence management's decisions
where approptiate.

Directors are aware of their statutory and ethical duties ~
including in relation 1o potential conflicts of interest which may
compremise objective decision-making. If an actual or
potential conflict of interest arises, the Board (or one ofits
Executive Committees) will manage the matter as appropriate.
Depending on the circumsiances, any conflicted director may
be asked to abstain from contributing to the discussion or

voting. The Group reviewed and updated its conflicts of interest

policy during the period with approval of the Board.
Communications to raise awareness and ensure timely
escalation and approvai of actual or potential conflicts are
maintained throughout the business.

At a subsidiary level, appointments to the boards of operating
subsidiary companies are reviewed and aligned with
membership of the Group and Hub Executive Committees and
the business unit and functional leadership structure. Business
unit leaders are at the heart of operations, enakling direct
engagement with the relevant business unit employees and
other stakeholders such as clients.

The terms cf reference and responsibilities of the Board,
together with its key officers, committees, and subsidiary boards
are set out clewrly in the Group Govemnance framewaork,
providing clear lines of accountability and responsibility

for directors, committee members, and the executive
leadership team.

All directors and business unit leaders receive meeting papers
and information through a secure digital portal managed by
the Company secretariat. Board and committee papers and
supporting information are expected to be timely, accurate,
comprehensive, and up ta date, with a clear indication of
what is requested of each recipient and any relevant key
performance indicators to support monitoring of financial and
non-financial performance. The Board is of the opinion that the
Company's key reporting functions are appropriately staffed
and competent fo ensure the integrity of information, with
financial infermation also exiernally audited and financial
conirols regulary reviewed.,

PROJECT DELEGATION OF AUTHORITY FRAMEWORK
Strong project governance is fundamentai to our resiience and
certainty. The Project Delegation of Authority framework is
approved by the Board and sets out the cascade of
authorisations reguired for key project related decisions,
inciuding alf project gateways, project reiated contracts, and
key supply chain approvalk via o risk-based approach for
decision-making. A digital risk calculator tool helps staff identify
and assess risks and select the right delegation of authority for
the decision. The aim Is to maintain absoiute alignment, while
reserving authority at the level of the Board, Group Executive
Committee, and Hub Executive Committees to consider the
highest risk decisions.

In each hub the Project Delegation of Authority framework is
kept under review and amended as and when reqguired by
approval of the Hub Executive Committee and then by

the Board.
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FRINCIPLE FOUR
OPPORTUNITY AND RiSK

The Board oversees a continuous assessment of risks affecting the
Group and has in place the necessary oversight procedures for
the idenfification and effective mitigation of risk. Set out below
are some of the key controls and procedures that form part of
the framework for management of the Group's principal risks
identified on pages é1 to &4 of the Laing O’'Rourke Corporation
Ltd Annual Report and Accounts, These key cantrols and
procedures are regularly reviewed and, if necessary, improved.

As mentioned above in respect of Board composition (Principle
Two) there is regular reporting to the Board of the Group's risk
and compliance programme and requirements. We continue
ta focus on improvements to our corporate risk management
framework In each reporting period, to ensure that it is fully ‘risk
enabled’ 1o best support the Group in achieving its strategic
objectives.

RISK AND INTERMAL AUDIT

The Audit and Risk Committee provides oversight and menitoring
of the integrity of the Group's financial govemance,

risk management, intemal audit, and relationship with

external auditors.

During the year, a review was performed of the Europe Hulb
internal audit function delivery model. The decision was taken
to move from a fully inscurced internal audit model to a medel
that combines a bolktered second line of defence with
external, independent, assurance where required. giving
access to a wider range of expertise,

The review of the enferprise risk strategy and supporting process
included an assessment of the potential for implementing a
new risk management digital platform to enhance the Group's
ability to gain further insight into collated risk data and hence
the management of the Group's strategic objectives and
operational performance,

PROJECT GATEWAYS

We rely on a governance framewaork to manage opportunities
and risk, provide control, and mgintain an enduring,
sustainable enterprise. Formal govemance gateways, coupied
with the Project Detegation of Authority framewark, are in
place to provide core controk. There are 10 project gateways,
ranging from opportunity identification, bid stage, delivery, and
material change during delivery through to final handover. All
gateways must be authorised in accordaonce with the Project
Delegation of Authority framework.

Our Governance Committees at Group and hub levels
continue to regulary review and work on improvements o the
gateways. ensuring that they are streamlined, standardised,
and integrated in day-to-day activities so that governance
becomes an integral part of how each person goes to work.

The most significant step forward this yeor in respect of project
gateways has been commencement of a full digitisation
programme so that all gateways will, when the programme is
completed in the first quarter of FY25, be hosted on the same
digital platform. This will greatly enhance the efficiency of the
gateway process as projects move from bid stage, to set up,
and through delivery to completion. It will also support greater
colaboration within teams and greater alignment between the
hiubs as well as providing more transparency on the status of
projects from a governance perspective and better reporting
on progress.

Other recent enhancements have focused on:

— Managing material change in projects during the delivery
phase to ensure that proposed maternal changes are
properly scrutinised and are signed off by the appropriate
hub's executive teams;

- Infroduction of greater rigour into maonthly contract review
meetings. supported by the infroduction of the Lunar
digitised platform. This has also resulted in clearer reporting for
contract review meetings across both hubs meaning that
issues are flagged early and escalated accordingly;

- Introduction of stronger scrutiny for the early bid stages of
projects to ensure better alignment of the business in its
approach to bids and full consideration of the strategic
objectives of the business so as to ensure that the right
opportunities and contracts are pursued; and

- Ensuring that bid setflement meetings better enable our
executive members to review and assess key risks associated
with bids through clearer reporting.

All changes are underpinned by fraining and communication
strategies to ensure our people fully understand and comply
with our processes as they are implemented. We provide
cpportunities for our pecple to give feedback throughout the
year so that we can look for ways fo improve every aspect of
QUr gOVEernQance processes.

BID SETTLEMENT MEETINGS

Bid setilement meetings make sure that the right people are
together at the right time to discuss and reach alignment on all
bids, ensuring that the offers made to clients are risk-balanced
and robust. Where appropriate, members of the Board and/or
its Executive Committees attend bid settlernent meetings. The
format and content of discussions in the bid settlement
meetings are constantly reviewed to ensure that they are as
effective as possible.

INTEGRATED GRCUP MANAGEMENT SYSTEM

Our integrated Group Management System (iGMS) contains
our enterprise-wide management system, knowledge, and
information. This is the repaository for all processes, procedures,
technical information, general information, guidance,
tempiates, and checklists which enable people to be
organised for success and alse provides guidance on how they
should go to work, Key policies and procedures are approved
or endorsed by the Board and/or its relevant committees prior
to publication in IGMS.

Part of our long-term strategy is o have simple and seamiess
structures, processes, systems, and tools to enable srarter
waorking. Through our fransformation agenda (see page 17) we
continue to focus on resilience and certainty to deliver against
promises encompassing quality, cost, and fime. To achieve this,
we have embedded a culture of delivering what has been
promised and complying with core business processes.

While improvements are made to iGMS throughout the year,
we undertake a comprehensive annual review with key
stakeholders and functions to ensure that all content is
accurate and reflects our current business practices and ways
of working. The iGMS system is ako subject to the annual
ISO001 review.

Laing O'Rourke PIC | 14



STRATEGIC REPORT CONTINUED
tfor the year ended 31 March 2023

Te further pravide our people with a clear undersianding of
IGMS, a mandatory IGMS corporate induction and elearning
module has been implemented Group-wide. This ensures our
people are aware of the govermance framework and standard
processes, guidance, and femplafes thaf suppoert the way we
go 1o work. In addition, when change occurs on iGMS, we
ensure people are made aware of the changes through our
internal social media channel Viva Engage (formerly Yammer),
targeted emails to specific functions, generdl updates through
our business unit leaders. team townhall meetings, iGate posts,
and pop-ups on IGMS project tabs. Furthermore, where there is
a significant change, it is publicised at our LOR Live sessions {see
page i8].

DIGITAL

Our digital strategy has evolved as our digital function and
capability have grown and is focused on continuing 1o build
strong foundations in both our hubs by adopting digital
standards, improved digital literacy in our projects and
developing end-te-end digital capabilities to support strategic
opporunities. Digital, alongside data., [T, innovation and
pecple, is a crfical enabler to help us deliver against our
business priorities so that we can drive operational
improvement and positive outcomes for our clients

and people.

We are systematically roling out digital standards across our
bids and projects in order to: address the challenge of
coordinating design, ensure a better-connected workforce,
suppont digitally enabled manufacturing and assembly, ensure
engineered safety, and provide our clients with digital
assurance and validation.

We also have a defined and clear vision for end-fo-end digital
delivery for the Group, called Project of the Future. By
institutionalising consistency in how we go to work, using
integrated and collaborative ways of working, and hamessing
technology-enabled efficiencies, Project of the Future will
deliver a new level of operational transparency, control,

and certainty in our projiects and create a closed loop of
data-driven decision-making and continuous improvement.
This mirors how more digitally advanced engineering and
manufacturing enterprises operate. It will also support

greater productivity, our sustainability agenda, and inclusion
and welbeing.

Qur clients are acknowledging and apprecialing the
differentialion and drive to certainty that we can bring through
digital. Qur focus on digitally-led modern methods of
caonstruction and advanced manufacturing which have
positive sustainable impact is what deflivers value for our clients
and differentiates us from our peers. The depioyment and
uptake of digital technologies and ways of working has
continued to strengthen across all our projects, with strong buy-
in from our clients and supply chain partners. As a result, we
have been able to realise tangible benefits for our clients,
people, and partners, which include:

— Greater efficiencies for our people on the ground through
digitisation of core processes such as design reviews;

— Mitigation of construction risks and cost impacts through
digital design for constructability;

— Greater transparency for our clients through real-ime
operational insights and data-enabied cost management;
and

— Improvement in the digital maturity ond efficiencies of our
supply chain partners through coaching, digital integration,
and ways of working.

The use of digital technologies is also a key focus areq for our
technical function. It enables us to implement real-time
reporting and project controls and is supporting us in our
readiness for statutory and regulatery change (in particular, the
Building Safety Act 2022 which came infa force in the UK from |
April 2023). The use of digital technologies for information
sharting is being delivered through our design partner
framework {DPF} which was developed in 2020 and has since
continued to evolve as we embed design leadership and
monagement in alignment with our design partners.

in that respect, digital is enabling us fo deliver the targets that
underpin our Design for Manufacture and Assembly (DfMA)
70:60:30 operating model of manufacturing 70 per cent of a
project off-site, and so improving productivity by 60 per cent
and gchieving o 30 per cent reduction in programme. I ako
underpins our drive to develop an engineered safety
approach with the aim of zero safety incidents onsite, to ensure
high-quality outcomes with zero defects, and to underpin cur
sustainability targets of achieving operational net zerc carbon
by 2030 and net zero betore 2050.
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PRINCIPLE FIVE
REMUNERATION

The Remuneration, Nomination, and Govemance Committee,
chaired by Sir John Parker, the Group Chair, has clearly defined
terms of reference. Its main function is to make
recommendations to the Board for the Grotip's remuneration
structure and to align remuneration to the long-term
sustainable success of the Group. Total directors' remuneration
is disclosed in note 7 to the financial statements of Laing
O'Rourke Corporation Lid.

SUBSIDIARY COMPARNIES

Rermuneration of directors of our subsidiary companies is based
on their particular management role and responsibitities, rather
than thelr appointment as a director of a specific legal entity.
Accordingly, remuneration of these directors is reviewed and
set by the Group Chief Executive Officer or Hub Managing
Director on behalf of their employing subsidiary, considering
any relevant input from the Remuneration, Nomination, and
Govemance Commitiee.

GENDER PAY GAP REPORTING
Decisions around pay, promotion, anct reward are a critical

pilar to ensuring we atlract and retain high-performing women.

The Group has repored on its gender pay gap annually since
2017 and our most recent Gender Pay Gap Report can be
obtained from our website. When our first Gender Pay Gap
Report was published in 2017 we acknowledged that cur
gender pay gap was largely driven by underrepresentation of
wamen in senior managernen! positions and we made a
commitment o do more to attract, develop, and retain
women within the organisation. We are pleased to see that the
pay gap has narowed. Upon the expected retum of Rebecca
Hanley from parental leave, we will return 1o 45 per cent of our
Board members being women. In addition to this, 43 per cent
of our UK leadership roles are held by women.

There was also significant improvement in the UK's early talent
recruitment which we see as one of the stepping stones to
success in our longer-term diversity goals. Through concerted
efforts to attract and recruit more female candidates at
graduate level, 55 per cent of our 2022 graduate intake were
women. In addition, 446 per cent of professional apprentices are
wornen, we had 47 per cent women join our summer and
industrial placements, and we achieved a 54 per cent intake
ot women into our frade apprenticeship programme, made
possible through our parthership with Women in Construction.
We are also working hard to ensure we supporf women's
career development through our talent programmes, so thal
womean move up the ranks from entry into the industry up info
senior management. As a resull, we have increased female
appoiniments by 44 per ¢cent year on year and we have seen
a 12 per centincrease in the proportion of wemen in senior
project roles.

We are driven by our longer-term goal to achieve 30:50 gender
representation in staff roles by 2033 and improve the guality of
employment of all colleagues across construction which we
are confident will cpen up careers to moere women and other
underrepresented groups in our sectar. In 2022 we signed up to
the Business in the Community Race at Work Charter which
cutlines a number of commitments that are shaping our
Ethnicity Action Plan. As part of those commitments, we
monitor our ethnicity pay gap data and ensure we are taking
positive action to reduce the gap.

Gur commitment to sustainakle high performance provides a
framework for both men and women to increase their energy
and capacity through working and fiving in a more sustainable
way. We are confident that the engineering and censtruction
sector provides an exciting and rewarding profession. We are
leading the way with our investrment in our DiMA 70:460:30
operating model which, among other goals, supports a
transition from ‘trades to technicians'. These advances will help
pave the way for a new generation of men and wamen to
view the industry as attractive, welcoming, and fair.
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STRATEGIC REPORT CONTINUED
for the year ended 31 March 2023

PRINCIPLE 51X
STAKEHOLDER RELATIONSHIPS AND ENGAGEMENT

The Board collectively — and its directors individually — are clear that relationships with stakeholders are fundamental to the
business. They also realise that effective and meaningful engagement with stakeholders reguires regular dialogue.

An understanding of stakeholder groups and their interests enables the business to take account of their needs and concerns,
allowing for the creation of vaiue for all.

STAKEHOLDLR
GRQUP

HOW WE ENGAGE

HOW THIS STAKEHOLDER GROUP INFLUENCED
BOARD / COMMITIEE DISCUSSIONS AND DECISIONS

OUR CLIENTS

We invest in early engagement with clients prior
to any formal decision-making processes aiming
to gain insights into their needs, challenges,
expectations, and priorities, as well as
dermonstrating our experience and capability to
strengthen our position as a frusted advisor. We
also seek early engagement with key influencers
to clients including consultants and industry
bodies to ensure they fully understand our
capabilities and offering, particularly in respect
of our operating model.

Working with clients in this manner, and
implementing a detailed strategy to win
planning process, has allowed us to
demonstrate business value around innovation
and excellence and showcase the benefits of
our in-house capabilities, to deliver certainty and
strengthen relationships with clients.

The way in which we engage with clignis is
strategically planned through this process, with
range of engagement activities such s
capability workshops, site tours, presentations,
and evenis depending on the existing
relationship with the client and the purpose of
engagement.

Interviews by independent reseaichers
continued to take place with clients, offering a
live source of feedback for how we are
performing in the market and on projects.

Underpinning the approach to engagement is the
Board's commitment ta corntinuous inproverment
through consistent project level feedback and data
insights across the project portfolio.

The Laing O'Rourke 2025 Transformation Agenda
incorporates five conditions {resilience, cerdinty, people,
next-generation methods end technology, and
responsible decision-making) 1o achieve our strategic
objecfives and to become the recognised ieader for
innovation and excelence in the construction industry.
The priority conditions for FY23, endorsed by our Board
and Group Executive Committee, were resilience and
certainty, focusing on client engagement, productivity,
and digital data.

Qur updated client engagement strategy and client
relationship management processes and platforms are
now embedded and being used to improve the level of
digital data and insights. Cur Group Chief Executive
Officer ensures that regular principaktevel meetings are
held by our Board and executive committee members
with key clients to nurture and deepen our client
relationships and to work in partnership, so that we can
ensure alignment between clients and our teams, but
also support innovation.

Qur client relationship management system is a
centralised digital system, aligned across the business. It
delivers cansistent and transparent reporting to the
Board and our Executive Committees on key
performance indicators for engagement with clients, our
performance on projects and application of lessons
learnt to upcoming opportunities. Our updated client
engagement strategy has also enabled the Board and
our Executive Committees 1o consider and guide our
engagement with clients and influencers throughout the
ifecycle of a project, from identifying opportunities, to
tendering. and through to delivery. In addition. our digital
function is leading development of a platform to host
our sector plans, which will create a repository enabling
clients to understand our capability in areas such as our
ability to deliver faster, sustainably, and with value-
oriented sclutions.
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STRATEGIC REPORT CONTINUED
for the year ended 31 March 2023

STAKEHCLEOER
GROUP

HOW WE ENGAGE

HOW THIS STAKEHOLDER GROUP INFLUENCED
BOARD /S COMMITIEE DISCUSSIING ANL DELINIONS

OUR PEOPLE

Connecting effectively with our people during the year to
understand their experience and to communicate our
strategy nas been as important as ever.

We prioritised communication, engagement, and
suppon for our workforce through many difierent
channels including:

- Daily, weekly, or monthly employee communications
and meetings from leaders;

- Making tookits available 1o managers to ensure that
they could cascade consistent information to their
teams in a personal way; and

- Increased inferactive communication through LOR Live
{live broadcasts by our leadership teams) to all of our
staft, facilitating real time question and answer sessions
with thoughts and opinions encouraged from both the
live and online audiences.

Communication was both proactive and interactive via
LOR Live, our intemal social media channel Viva Engage
(formerly Yarmmer], our intranet, townhall sessions across
the business and project visits fwhere possible) with
leadership briefings. The primary focus was ensuring that
all colleagues understood our pupose and values, the
imporance we place on safety, the direction in which
the business is going. and how this impacts them and
their careers.

There has also been arenewed focus on leaming

and development through our LOR Learn platform

and the appointment of learming and development
representatives across all functions 1o help create learning
pathways and competency assessment framewaorks.

We undertook our annual employee engagement survey
in Novemper 2022, and saw an improvement on an
already strong score for overall engagement, which is a
measure of how positive our people feel about their work.
There were also sirong scores recorded across both hubs in
other areas, notably regarding confidence in leadership,
pride in working for Laing O'Rourke, and trust in leadership
o take action to address concerns.

Managing the sofety of our people remains a key
priority far the Board and our Executive Commitiees
and remains foremost in all cperational decisions
regarding access to our project sites and offices.

The Board and our Executive Committees identified
ihe need to improve communication anc
colaboration across the business and improve the
sense of conneclivity between people, projects,
and functions. The executive leadership teams in
each hub made their expectations clear around
the need to be present onsite and in offices, rather
than working remotely, in order to support
performance and connection. Ongoing
measurerment and communication continue to
ensure that we have a highly callaborative and
connected culture, along with our people’s access
to dynamic working. Other initiatives considered
and endorsed by the Board and our Execultive
Committees during the financial year included:

- Rollout of progressive parental leave palicy across
both hubs;

- Release in the Europe Hub in March 2023 of the
latest wellbeing bundle focusing on ways to help
people with their finances;

- The ongoing implementation of cour Life at LOR
portalin the Eurcpe Hub, which is a dedicated
one stop shop for health and wellbeing needs;

- Continued development of diversity
subcommittees empowering our people
to contribute to our diversity and inclusion
agenda; and

- The launch of 'Knowing Our People’ reviews as
part of cur talent and development agenda as
well as our internal ‘Accelerate’ menforing
programme in the Europe Hub and external
partnership with Mentoring Circle.

QUR
SUPPLIERS

We strive for better engagement with our supply chain to
improve outcomes and to address key challenges around
climate change and sustainability as well as significant
compliance and regulatory requirements. During the year
under review, this work included launching a supply chain
carbon awareness programme and working with our
supply chain to assess piodiversity risk in our value chain.

One of the most significant regulatory changes the Europe
Hub has been dealing with in FY23 is the introduction of the
Building Safety Act in the UK and its anticipated enabling
regulations, which requires close collaboration with our
supply chain across preduct regulation, duty holder
obligations, competency, and information,

We continuve to focus on fransformation through data,
which enables us to gain supply chain insights and market
knowledge by building deeper relationships and also to
identify best practice so thal we can drive for excellence,
consistency, and certainty in outcomes.

The Board recognises that its supply chain partners
are integral to our ability to deliver world-class
projects for our clients. It is also recognised that our
partners are critical in helping the Group to achieve
its 2025 mission to become the recognised leader
for innovation and excellence and to achieve our
stretching sustainability fargets. Members of the
Board and our Executive Committees partficipate in
supply chain forums.

Updates on significant activities and developments
witihin our supply chain are provided to the Board
and our Executive Committees and are taken into
account when setting or approving annual
budgets, performance targets, and making long
term strategic decisions.
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STRATEGIC REPORT CONTINUED
for the year ended 31 March 2023

STAKEHOLDER GROUP  HOW WE ENGAGE
Given the chalienging macro-economic climate in the UK,

QUR SUPPLIERS
continued

HOW THIS STAKEHOLDER GROUP INFLUENCED
BOARD / COMMITIEE DISCUSSIONS AND DECISIONS

we are in consiant dialogue with our key suppliers to
colaborate on multiple mitigation headings including
successtul hedging of fuel, electricity, and gas prices across
our portfolio of projects.

During the year the Group Execulive
Committee redligned some functional pertfolios
for greater efficiency and focus. For example,
the Europe Hub procurement function moved
across to be overseen by Madeleina Loughrey-
Grant, Group Director — Legal, Procurement
(EY), and Sustainability,

Supplier payment practices are regularly
reviewed and we remain o committed
signatory to the UK's Prompt Payment Code.

OUR
FINANCIERS

OUR
COMMUNITY

GOVERNMENT
AND
REGULATORY
BODIES

" Athub and project level, our social value team work to

the Group spérates sticl curiiub Uver wourkioy caoital and
cash managemeni, engaging proactively on these controls
with its financiers. A regular and transparent reporting
dialogue is maintained with lenders, including reguiar
update calk and touch points, visits to our project and
manufacturing sites, strategy briefings, general business
updates, and reporting against agreed financial
performance metrics.

achieve our social value strategy so that we build
opportunities in local communities that deliver a lasting and
paositive impact. We engage with a wide range of local
stakeholders to keep them informed of our local initiatives
and progress on projects, which deliver significant
economic and social value to local communities.

We use a wide range of communication channels
(including social media) to maximise the effectiveness of
engagement with the local community across our projects.

In the UK, we also organised a series of 'Hearts and Minds'
events during Mental Health Awareness Week in May 2023
where we connected our wellbeing challenge to social
value, asking our peaple to raise money for local charities
that support our social value strategy and principles.

Further details of our social value work are set out within our
sustainability statement (see pages 26 to 28).

Al our financion have, if needed, diert recass

to the Group Chief Financial Officer, who 15 o
member of the Board and also of the Group
and Hub Executive Committees. This ensures
that the directors and our senior leaders are
kept regularly informead of developments
affecting our financiers and thot their views are
taken properly into account when making
relevant operational and strategic decisions.

The Group Executive Committee has been
working on embedding the principles and
decision-making mechanisms of our responsible
decision-making (RDM} framework info our
Group processes and culture. The RDM
framework, launched in FY22, is our ethical
framework underpinned by universal principles
of sustainability that helps our Board, Executive
Committees and people consider our values,
principles and other external factors when
making complex decisions.

In the UK, through our trade bodies, the Construction
Leadership Council (CLC) and Build UK, we are party to
regular dialogue with officials at the Department for
Business and Trade, and the Depariment for Energy Security
and Net Zero. We also have regular dialogue with the
Cabinet Office.

During the financial year, this diglogue was focused on
economic conditions, including the impacts of
vnprecedented inflationary pressures on the sector, and
the persistent challenge of securing the skills and latour the
sector requires. We also mointained dialogue with central
UK govermnment departments responsible for delivery of
specific infrastructure projects, including the Department of
Hedalth and Social Care for hospitals, the Ministry of Justice
for prisons, and the Ministry of Defence regarding
modemisation of the UK defence estate.

we are committed to developing and maintaining open
and effective working relationships with regulatery bodies
relevant to our business to ensure there is an understanding
of our aperating model and infrastructure delivery
capabilities in the UK markel. Where appropriate, these
relationships are managed by senior leaders in our
executive tearn.

Our regular diclogue with government and
regulatory bodies includes members of the
Group Executive Committee and ensures that
the Board and our Executive Committees are
briefed on the potential impact of significant
developments in government policy,
procurement routes, and changes to laws
and regulations.
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STRATEGIC REPORT CONIINUED
for the year ended 31 March 2023

RISK APPROVAL

The Lirectors of Laing O'Rourke Corporation Lid manage risk for - This report was approved by the Board on 31 October 2023
the Group as a whole, rather than for individual entities. For this and signed on behalt of the Board by:
reason, the Company's Directors believe that analysis of the

Laing O'Rourke Plc Group's risks should be viewed in )

the context of the Laing O'Rourke Corporation Ltd Group. b\L,\_w

The principal risks and uncertainties of the Laing O'Rourke )

Corporation Ltd Group, which include those of the Laing

O'Rourke Ple Group, are discussed in the Laing O'Rourke ROB TURNER

Corporation Ltd Group's annual review which does not form COMPANY SECRETARY

part of this report.

The Cirectors of Laing O'Rourke Corporation Ltd manage the
Group's operaticns on a divisional basis. For this reason,

the Company’s directors believe that analysis using key
performance indicators should be viewed in the context of the
Laing O'Rourke Corporation Ltd Group. The performonce,
position and future development of the Europe Hub of the
Laing C'Rourke Corporation Ltd Group, which include those of
the Laing O'Rourke Plc Group, are discussed In the Laing
C'Rourke Corporaticn Ltd Group's annual review which does
not form part of this report. Copies ¢f the Laing O'Rourke
Corporation Lid Annual Report and Accounts are available at
www.laingorourke.com/company/govemance/annualreport.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

for the year ended 31 March 2023

The Directors present their Directors' Report together with the
Audited Financial Statements of the Laing O'Rourke Plc Group
and Company for the year ended 31 March 2023,

BRANCHES OUTSIDE THE UK
A branch operating in Hong Kong is consolidated into the
Group’s results.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES
The Group's principal activities are:

CONSTRUC NION
- Frogramme management, construction and building, civil
engineering, and infrastructure and support services.

MAMNUEACTURING
- Building products and manufacturing construction products.

PLANT HIRE
- Plant hire and operations.

SERVICES
- Design services, and building operations management.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS
The results for the financial year are set out in the Consolidated
Income Statement on page 34.

Group revenue for the financial year was £2,034.9m (FY22:
£1.807.3m). The loss after tax for the year was £{128.9)m (FY22:
profit of £20.2my). Capital employed by the Group at 31 March
2023 was o deficit of £292.0m (FY22: deficit of £141.6m).

No dividends were declared or paid during the financiat year
(FY22: £nil).

GOING CONCERN

The ability of the Group to continue as a going concem is
dependent on the perfformance of the wider Laing O'Rourke
Comporation Ltd Group (the 'Laing O'Rourke Corporation Group').
The Laing O'Rourke Comperation Group continued to show growth
inrevenue, however delivered a pre-exceptional EBIT loss of
£(78.8)min FY23, diiven by continued inflationary pressures,
challenging delivery on projects experiencing significant change.
and delays 1o capitalinvestrment in UK public-sector work.

Despite these pressures, year-end net cash confinued to perform
strongly at £286.3m (FY22; £339.1m) and the year-end Laing
O'Rourke Comporation Group order book grew by 16 per cent to
£10.0bn {FY22; £8.4bn), Despite the very high inflationary
environment experienced in FY23 and the continued (albeit
Imited) impact of Covid-19, the Laing O'Rourke Comporation
Group's order book has confinued to grow, its fransformation plan
is progressing well, and the Laing O'Rourke Compoeration Group
remains committed 10 its strategic targets.

As aresult of its continued careful cash management, the
Laing O'Rourke Corporation Group did not request any
waivers. or breach any, of its banking covenants during the
financial year. After the year end, on 30 June 2023, the Group
agreed q reset of its future covenants and on 19 October, the
term of the Group's UK core bank debt, an unsecured £35.0m
RCF, was extended by two years, with a revised expiry date of
3 Aptil 2026. Prior to this extension the Group received a
termporary waiver of its loan-o-value covenant related to a
property loan which was then remediea as part of the
extension and was also extended to 3 April 2026.

Following the covenant reset, full covenant compliance
continues to be forecast within both the Laing O'Rourke
Corporation Group's ‘management case’ business pian and its
‘severe but plausible’ downside scenario over the period

assessed to 31 March 2025. Details of RCF covenants are
provided in note 29.4 to the financial statements.

In forming their conclusion as to the appropriateness of
continuing to apply the going concern basis of accounting in
preparng these financial statements, the directors have
reviewed both the Laing O'Rourke Corporation Group's
‘managenment case' forecast, representing management's
best estimate of fhe future performance of the Laing O'Rourke
Corporation Group, including cash flow forecasts to 31 March
2025, and a severe but plausible downside scenario. The
dircctors have also considered the way in which the Laing
O'Rourke Corporation Group govermns and manages its cash
reserves and exercises tight control over its working capiial as
lustrated by its liquidity performance during the Covid-19
pandemic, Brexit and subsequent inflalionary period.

The directors applied a consistent approach in assessing going
concern across each of the Laing O'Rourke Corporation
Group's main businesses in the UK, Australia, and the Middle
East in preparing a management case and considerng a
severe but plausible mitigated downside scenario. The directors
also carefuly considered the forecast period to be reviewed as
part of the going concern assessment and, due to the lead
time for securing new projects, the period of visibility on future
cash flows, and management’s usual forecast cycle,
concluded that considering a 17 month period to March 2025
was appropriate.

The RCF, which funds the UK business, permits loans to be made
from Australia to the UK and Middle East, and back, subject to
certain restrictions which do not impact mancgement's ability
to manage UK, Australia, or Middle East liquidity. This allows
liguidity o be managed on a Laing O'Rourke Corporaticn
Group basis, subject to directers’ duties in each of the regions,
and therefore the most relevant forecast to assess the going
concern basis of accounting for the Laing O'Rourke
Comporation Group as @ whole is a Laing O'Rourke Corporation
Group view of liquidity and covenants.

The key assumptions and areas of estimation uncerainty
reflected in the Laing O’Rourke Corporation Group
‘management case’ business plan include:

-~ Construction activity is assumed to continue in line with
current levels, with no additional maternial deterioration
in project gross margins or the working capital position;

- Inflaticnary pressures forecast 1o be experienced during FY24
and FY25 can be accommodated within the forecasts of
future costs already made in FY23, existing project inflation
allowances and general contingencies. The Laing O'Rourke
Corporation Group has undertaken a detailed review of the
possiole impact of inflation on the estimated final cost cf its
projects and has concluded that existing contingencies are
expected to be sufficient to maternally cover the risk on
existing projects in the period to 31 March 2025, with this risk
being addressed at the tender stage for new projects:

- The 'management case’ cash assumption, based on the
latest arbitral timetable, forecasts for the settlement of the
claim, described in note 2.24(b) and nate 25 of Laing
O'Rourke Corparation Ltd's Annual Report and Accounts,
autside of the going concern period (June 2025, being the
earliest expecied settlernent date), but has considered the
impact of the claim on the Laing O'Rourke Corporation
Group as part of this review and concluded that this ciaim
does not adversely affect the Laing O'Rourke Corporation
Group's longer term viability;
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT CONTINUED
for the year ended 31 March 2023

GOING CONCERN (CONTINUED)
- Work-winning continues to reflect current expectations and is
in line with average win rates in previous years;

- Continved support of our supply chain in terms of product
material, labour supply and flexibility in payment fermns. Based
on cour detalled assessment, our supply chain management,
direct delivery model and experience to date, disruption to
the supply of materials to projects and shortages of labour, if
experienced. can be accommodated within existing project
programmes or programme confingencies;

- Noimposition of a Covid-19 related lockdown on the
construction sector in the Laing O'Rourke Corporation
Group's main markéets;

- The underlying relevont market drivers confinue as expected
for construction work in infrastructure, power generation,
education, healthcare, justice, and residential house
building; and

- The 'management case’ cash assumption that there are not
expected to be any adverse material cash settlements in the
period to 31 March 2025 relating to the canfingent liabifity
matters disclosed in note 29 of the Laing O'Rourke
Corporation ULtd's Annual Report and Accounts.

The Board's ‘management case’ forecast does nat

anticipate any breaches of new banking covenants relating to
the UK RCF in the pefiod to 31 March 2025 and this forecast
delivers a comfartable level of Laing O'Rourke Corporation
Group operating cash liquidity headroom across the same
period in each of the UK, Australia, and Middle East.

In addtion to consideration of its ‘management case’

most likely outcome, the directors have also considered a
number of downside scenarios and mitigating actions in light of
the potential uncertainties created by the inflationary
environment, timing and gquantum of provisions described in
note 25 of Laing O'Rourke Corporation Ltd's Annual Report and
Accounts, supply chain disruption risk and the impact of any
contingent kabilifies or legacy disputes. These scenarios have
been prepared using certain key assumptions, with particular
focus on compliance with financial covenants in the UK and
Australia and iquidity headroom across the Laing O'Rourke
Corporation Group and all three regions, Of these downside
scenarios, the severe but plausible scenario described further
below is the most severe.

Key assumptions in the Laing O'Rourke Corporation Group's
severe but plausible scenario include:

- Lower revenue and trading volumes in the UK ond Ausiralia
and three-month delay of all new construction work in the
Middle East;

- Potenfial negative impact on the Laing O'Rourke
Corporation Group’s ability to maintain its project-level
working capital profile. Note that the Laing O'Rourke
Corporation Group has consistently achieved/delivered the
management case working capital profiie across the last 4
years despite a challenging market backdrop;

— Certain specific project risks, as described in nole 2.26(a) of
Laing O'Rourke Corporation Ltd's Annual Report and
Accounts, and risks to cash generation initiatives; and

- Fotential cost impacts of inflation on the cumrent portfolio of
projects over and above those that have already been
adjusted for cannot be dealt with via contingencies, resulting
in lower margins.

The overallimpact of the above downside assumptions results
in an approximate £10é6m reduction in infliows and a £2m
increase in outflows during FY24 and FY25.

Mitigating actions under management’s control which would
be taken and have been assumed in the severe but plausible
downside scenario are:

- Halting discretionary spendin FY24 and FY25 across a
number of long-term strategic initiatives;

-~ Delaying any discretionary reward spend;
— Sale and leaseback of property owned by the Group; and
— Delaying non-essential capita! expenditure.

Further actions that could be taken in the event of a severe
but plausible downside but have not been assumed in the
model are:

- Further reduction in discretionary spend and non-essential
capital expenditure;

- Further actions to manage working capital; and
- Reductions in headcount.

Even under the severe but plausible downside scenario there is
no forecast breach of UK covenants that would result in an
Event of Default under the facilities, and sufficient liquidity is
maintained across the Laing O'Rourke Corporation Group.

Quiside of the mitigations entirely within the Laing O'Rourke
Corporation Group's control, as summarised above, in the
event of a severe deterioration in trading or other threat to the
Laing O'Rourke Corporation Group's iquidity or covenant
headroom, the directors would also seek fo!

— Dispose of specific assets; and

— Raise additional externat funding to supplement the modest
£35.0m RCF, including refinancing of Laing O'Rourke
Comporation Group plant and machinery assets.

In addition, the directors have also assessed the extent of
downside that would be required for liquidity to drop below
zero (a reverse stress-test scenario):

- This considers the revenue reduction required versus the
‘management case’ in order for liquidity to drop below zero
during the period to March 2025. This would require revenue
to reduce or be delayed by £1.1bn across F¥Y24 and FY25 (a
22.3 per cent reduction or delay in revenue compared o the
management case), with resultant loss of margin, with no
rmitigation; and

— A similar reduction in revenue would be required for a
sustained breach of the minimum liquidity covenant under
the UK RCF.

The directors have carefully considered the lkelihood of the
above range of scenarios and remain confident that the Laing
O'Rourke Corporation Group is well positioned to deliver its
management case forecast in light of the following:

- Laing O'Rourke’s investment in developing sector-leading
modem methods of construction (MMC) capability, its
proven track record against a challenging market backdrop,
a lower inflationary environment and reduced Covid-19
uncertainties, integrated delivery mode), strong client
engagement and resilience to supply chain risk ensure that it
is well positicned to continue to win work;
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT CONTINUED
for the year ended 31 March 2023

GOING CONCERN (CONTINUED}

— The current order bock for the Laing O'Rourke Corporation
Group has increased to £10.5bn {as at 30 Septembber 2023)
(£8.6bn as at 31 March 2022} as a result of continued work-
winning success in both the Europe and Australia Hub. The
Laing G'Rourke Corporation Group now has all of its
expected FY24 revenue either secured or anticipated and 83
per cent of its expected FY25 revenue is ai the secured,
anficipated, or preferred bidder stage; and

— Cash performance in the six months ended 30 September
2023 is above the management case forecast for the Laing
Q'Rourke Corporation Group.

In reaching its conclusion on going concern, the Laing
O’'Rourke Corporation Ltd Board has also consicered the likely
timing of the cash outflow associated with the provisions
described in note 25 of the Laing O'Rourke Corporation Ltd
Annual Report and Accounts. The fiming of this outflow is
expected to fall outside the going concem review period
which runs until 31 March 2025 and has, therefore, not been
incorpordated into the going concern assessment. However, the
Laing O'Rourke Corporation Ltd Board has considered ¢ range
of plausible downside outcomes associated with this provision
and remains confident that, given the continued and
projected strength of the Austraiian business performance, it
has adequate resources to manage the plausible downside.

In the event that a plausible downside scenario materialises in
mig-2025, the Laing O'Rourke Corporation Group couid pursue
a number of mitigating actions in order to ensure its continued
financial viability. These would be similar to those detoiled
within the severe but plausible going concerm review above
and could also include: further reductions in discretionary
spend, further headcount reductions, further reductions in
capital expenditure, a possible disposal of Laing O'Rourke
Corporation Group assets, and further actions to manage
working capital.

The Laing Q'Rourke Corporation Ltd Board has carefully
considered those factors likely to affect the Laing O'Rourke
Corporation Group's future development, performance. and
financial position as oullined above, in relation to the ability of
the Laing O'Rourke Corporation Group to operate within its
current and foreseeakle resources — both financial and
operational.

The Laing O'Rourke Corporation Group has sufficient financial
resources, committed banking facilities, secured revenue, and
a strong order book. Based on this assessment, the directors
have a reasonable expectation that the Laing CO'Rourke
Corporation Group has adequate resources to continue in
existence and pay its debts as they fall due in the period to 31
March 2025 and there are no material uncertainties that may
cast significant doubt on the Laing O'Rourke Corporation
Group's going concern status.

The Laing O'Rourke Plc Group has, therefore, continued to
adopt the going concem basis of accounting in preparing the
Laing O'Rourke Pic Group's financial stiatements. The financiat
statements do not, therefore, include the adjusiments that
would result if the Laing O'Rourke Plc Group were unable to
continue as a going concern.

Refer to note 2.26 e} and pages 21 to 23 relating to
going concern.

POST BALANCE SHEET EVENTS

The Group has in place an unsecured revolving credit facility
{'RCF’') with HSBC for £35.0m. The loan had an initial expiry date
of 3 October 2023, which was extended 1o 3 April 2024 during
FY23 and further to 3 April 2026 since the year end. As part of
the latest extension, covenants related to interest cover and
net debt to EBITIDA were replaced by an adjusted EBITDA
covenant, and the minimum liquidity covenant was amended
to include three forecast month-end pericds. The facility has
been maintained at £35.0m through fo 31 March 2025, at
which point quarterly £2.5m reductions commence, reclucing
the facility to £25.0m by 31 December 2025.

DIRECTORE

Those directors who served during the year and up to

the date of signing are set out on page 2, with their
appointment/resignation date if applicable if after 1 April 2022,

DIRECTORS INDEMNITIES

As permitted by the Artictes of Associatfion, the Directors have
the benefit of an indemnity which is a qualifying third-party
indemnity provision as defined by Section 234 of the
Companies Act 2006. The indemnity was in force throughout
the last financial year and is curently in force. The Company
also purchased and maintained throughout the financial year
directors’ and officers’ liability insurance in respect of itself and
its Directors.

EMPLOYMENT POLICY

The Group continues to provide employees with relevant
information and to seek their views on matters of common
concem through their representatives and through line
managers, Priority is given to ensuring that employees are
aware of significant matters affecting the Group's trading
position and of any significant organisational changes.

The Group treats each application for employment, training.,
and promotion on merit. Full and fair consideration is given 1o
both disabled and non-disabled applicants and employees.
If existing employees become disabled, every effort is

made to find them appropriate waork, and training is provided
If necessary.

HEALTH, SAFETY, AND WELFARE

The Group is committed to ensuring the health, safety, and
welfare of all employees at work. All reasonable measures
have been taken to achieve this policy. Arangements have
been made 1o protect other persons against risk to health and
safety arising from the acfivifies of the Group’s employees
when at work.

RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT

The Group's research and development expenditure of £46.6m
[FY22: £33.0m) supports the development of construction
techniques to deliver quality, centainty, and value for our
customers,

FUTURE DEVELOPMENTS
Details on future developments are presented within the
strategic report on page 3 to 20.

Laing O'Rourke Ple | 23



DIRECTORS' REPORT CONTINUED
for the year ended 31 March 2023

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The directors of Laing O'Rourke Comoration Ltd manage
financialrisks for that Group as a whole, rather than as
individual entities. For this reasen, the Company's directors
believe that analysis of the Company's risks should be viewed
in context of the Laing O'Rourke Corporation Ltd Group. The
principal risks and uncertainties of Laing O'Rourke Corporation
Ltd, which include those of the Company, are discussed in the
Laing O'Rourke Corporation Ltd Annual Report and Accounts,
which does not form part of this report.

EMPLOYEE ENGAGEMENT STATEMENT

Allof the Group's UK ermployees are contracted by Laing O'Rourke
Services Lid. There is close interaction between the Board of the
parent company, Laing O'Rourke Comporation Lid, its executive
committees, and the boards of the Group subsidianes. The Group
adopts any specific policies and procedures set on lbehalf of the
parent Board, including the Greup Governance Framewcork,
Ccerporate and Project Delegations of Authority, the Code of
Cenduct, the Risk Management Framework, and Safety
Management System and polcies and procedures of the Group.
The directors have delegated some of their operatfional
management responsibilities to one or more of the Group
executive committees, on which at least one directoracts as a
represeniative of the Company.

The directors pro-actively accept and seek to understand the
interests of our pecple throughout the organisation from cur
site-based workforce to our project teams and functional
teams. By understanding the interests of our pecople, we can
take account of their needs and concems, allowing for the
creation of value for the Group and for its people.

The directors continue to provide empioyees with relevant
information and to seek their views on matters of common
concem through many channels, such as: employee
representatives and through line managers. townhall meetings,
through intemal communications sent out to allemployees by
email, on Viva Engage {formery Yammer — ourinternal sccial
media site) and iGate, and via monthly live-streamed LOR Live
sessions where our senior leaders, Board members, and
executives are able 1o speak to our people and raise awareness
on cumrent issues or concermns and answer questions both from
the floor, in person. and enline. Prionty is given fo ensuring that
employees are aware of significant matters affecting the Group's
trading position and of any significant organisational changes.

Qur poiicies and practices have been further updated this year
to align with the work the Board and executives have done on
our purpose statement and our underpinning core volues of
care, integrity, and courage. In July 2022 we launched a
conflicts of interest policy which communicates our
commitment to managing conflicts of interest and to
protecting the business from corrupt activity. In the following
month, in August 2022, our Code of Conduct 'Doing the Right
Thing' was refreshed and launched to ensure we support a
culture founded on integrity and supported by ethical actions.

The Code of Conduct defines our commitment to operating
globally in accordance with ethical standards and behaviours
expected of all our people, supply chain partners, and other
stakeholders. The aim is to go beyond minimal compliance.
The Code of Conduct Doing the Right Thing can be found on
the Group's website. At the same time, we launched a new
whistleblower policy to encourage a culture that supports
disclosure of wrongdoing as soon as possible, that reassures
staff they are able to raise concerns in confidence and without
fear. and that provides our people with guidance on how to
raise concems.

We remain committed to driving transformation through our
diversity and inclusion agenda. This work is undertaken by the
Group Diversity and Inclusion council chaired by non-executive
director Charlotte Valeur and made up of aperational
executive members. The Council has clear terms of reference
and is tasked with facilitating the creation of a diverse and
inclusive organisation that leaves a positive legacy. In the
Europe Hub we alko appointed a new Europe Hub Head of
Diversity and Inclusion, Emma Shakespeare, who took up her
post in June 2022. The work of the Group Diversity and Inclusion
council is underpinned by a number of subcommittees which
are tasked with considering and recommending actions to the
council. We have ten employee led subcommittees spanning
the following areas of interest: carers; gender; disability;
ethnicity, religion and cultural heritage:; LGBTQ+; famiilies who
live abroad; single parents; part-time waorkers; wotking parents;
and menopause. The purpose of the subcommittees is to
provide employees with o forum to be heard, an opportunity to
influence work being dene in the area of diversity and
inclusion, and fo drive change.

In the course of FY23 we have developed a diversity and
inclusion strategy focussed on five pillars: attraction and
retenticn, progression. leadership acceountability, inclusive
cuiture, and operaticnal excellence. We have established
gender-based targets with a number of initiatives in place that
sit under the five pilars to accelerate progress in meeting those
gender targets. For example, through balanced shortlists,
diverse interview panels. and advertising flexibikty of roles. wWe
have also parinered with Mentoring Circle to set up mentoring
schemes from the start of 2023 as well as setting up our own
internal mentoring scheme focused on accelerating the
progression of our female talent.

Last year we undertock a piece of work 1o listen to the voices
of wormen working across all levels of our business to better
understand ther true, lived experiences. Women spoke up —
their true stories were compiled into a piece of performance
narrative that was then played back to our senior leaders and
has since been cascaded across our business, encouraging a
wider discussion around inclusion to better understand what
the experience is for all working across our business and fo help
identify opportunities for greater inciusion.

Ancther significant achievement in FY23 has been the launch
of cur industry-leading global equal parenthood leave,
opening up parental leave on equal terms to all expectant
parents regardless of gender or how they become a parent.
This is a significant step towards levelling the playing field for all.
We were also invited in FY23 to take part in the FISE350 Women
in Leadership review. For the first time the top 50 private
companies In the UK were invited to take part and we came
out in sixth place amongst the largest private companies in the
UK for women leadership positions and third for women on
boards, Within ouwr sector we came out in first pkace for both
women in leadership and on boards.

We have reported on our gender pay gap annually since 2017
and on 30 March 2023 we published our gender pay gap
report (available from our website). When our first report was
published in 2017 we acknowledged that our gender pay gap
was largely driven by under-representation of women in senior
management positions and we made a commitment to do
more to attract, develop. and retain women within the
crganisation. We are pleased to see that the pay gap has
narrowed. Upon the expected return of Rebbecca Hanley from
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parental leave, we will return to 45 per cent of our Corporation
Board members being wormen. In addition to this, 43 per cent
of our UK leadership roles are held by women. We are driven by
our longer-term goal to achieve 50:50 gender representation in
staff roles by 2033 and improve the quality of employment of all
colleagues across construction which we are confident wil
open-up careers o more wormen and other undertepresented
groups in our sector, There was also significant improvement in
aur early talent recruitment which we see as part of our
stepping-stones to success in our longer-term diversity goals.

Through concerted efforts to attract and recruit more female
candidates at graduate level, 55 per cent of our 2022
graduate intake were women. In addition, 46 per cent of
professional apprentices are women; we had 47 per cent
women join our summer and industrial placements and a 54
per cent intake of women into our trade apprenticeship
programme, made possible through our partnership with
women in Construction.

We are also working hard to ensure we support women's
career development through our talent programmes so that
women move up the ranks from entry into the industry up info
senior management. We alse use events such as Intemational
Women in Engineering Day as an opportunity to provide
visibility to role models in our business and to inspire women into
the industry, As a result, we have increased female
appointments by 44 per cent year on year and we have seen
a 12 per centincrease in the proportion of women in senior
project rolas.

Futhermore, we are confident that the engineering and
construction sector provides an exciting and rewarding
profession. wWe are leading the way with our investment in our
Design for Manufacture and Assembly (DfMA) 70:60:30
operating model of manufacturing 70 per cent of a project
offsite. so improving productivity by 60 per cent, and achieving
a 30 per cent reduction in programme, which suppors a
tfransition from trades to technicians. These advancements will
help pave the way for a new generation of men and women
to view the industry as attractive, welcoming, and fair.

wWhilst gender has been our starting point, we are also very
much focused on creating a diverse and inclusive environment
more broadly.

In 2022 we signed up to the Business in the Community Race at
Work Charter which outlines a number of commitments that
are shaping our ethnicity action plan. As part of those
commitments, we will be publishing an ethnicity pay gop report
for FY23. We have been working with the 10,000 Black Interns
programme and the Association for BME Engineers in the UK
(AFBE-UK] which promotes higher achievements in education
and engineering particularly among people from black and
minoity ethnicity backgrounds, in order to attract more people
from diverse ethnic backgrounds into the industry and to Laing
O'Rourke.

Our Pride Network seeks to support all aspects of inclusion
within the business, including our commitment that our LGBTQ+
colleagues feel they can be the best version of thermselves
within cur organisation. Over the year we have had an
ambitious and successful programme of activities. driven and
supported by the network, and backed up by the giobal
leadership team. We have run a series of awareness sessions on
LGBTQ+ issues and we continue to partner with Stonewall, also
faking part in the annuai Stonewall index.

We have also launched our Inclusion Ally network. The role of
the ally is to help embed diversity and inclusion initiatives at a
locatlevel and also feedback on what they are seeing and
hearing as well as being a source of support for anyone who
has experienced or cbserved an act of exclusion, Our intention
is to have cne to two allies in every team.

Another highlight this year was achieving a disability confident
level 3 in December 2022 which is the first time this has been
achieved in the UK construction secter.

Qur north star in alt of cur work on diversity and inclusion Is our
commitment that when we go to work, we should fee!l we are
going to a place where we are accepted, understood, and
valued, and that we should all go to work committed to
making others feel the same way.

For the third year, we conducted a Group-wide employee
engagement survey of all our employees which is one of our
biggest listening exercises where peoples’ survey responses and
feedback directly feed into cur strategy and business plan. In
the Europe Hub the response rate was an impressive 74 per
cent. The two significant highlights from the survey were:

- Qur overall engagement score, which is a measure of how
positive people feel about their waork, increased from an
already above average percentage the previous year. We
believe this indicates the discretionary effort our people are
wiling to put into their work which leads to higher overall
satisfaction for our people and increased productivity and
business success; and

- Qur biggest gain was in the number of people whao believe
that action will take place as aresult of the survey which
demoenstrates our people are invested in providing feedback
and that they trust in our leadership team to take action.

Foliowing analysis of the survey results in November 2022 by our
leadership, leaders are working on action plans to address
particular issues identified in their teams and also to celebrate
the successes with acticns driven by employee engagement
champions nominated from different areas of the business. In
addition, corporate action plans have been produced for
each hub with signoff from each hub's executive committee.

Given that our workforce is diverse and spread across many
different iocations, we also support and enable exchange of
views with leadership through town halls, breakfast briefings,
roadshows, our intranet, Viva Engage (formerly Yammer - our
interna! social media site}, away days, Human Capital
Broadcasts, and the Project Leaders Conference. Directors also
visit project sites, as a Board or individually, on a regular basis.

We continue tc engage with our employees' welfare needs
through our 'Life at LOR' which is an approach to wellbeing
based on five themes: financial, social, workplace, mental, and
physical. Itis supported by our Life at LOR wellbeing hub which
is our cne-stop-shep for a wealth of information, resources, and
services to support the welibeing of everycne at Laing
O'Rourke. Our mental health champions have had a
considerable posifive impact in supporting employees and
raising general awareness of the importance of mental health.

in respect of remuneration, we seek to set fair and reasonable
policies for remuneration both at seniof level and in the
broader operating context and a Remuneration, Nomination,
and Govemance Committee, chaired by an independent
Non-Executive Director, is in place to consider remuneration
policies. In practice, the commercial headwinds we (and the
inclustry gencrally) arc facing due fo the wider economic and
pclitical context of Brexit and the war in Ukraine, causing supply
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issues and cost infllslion, have constrained the ability 1o review
remuneration levels in FY23. Even so, we were able to
undertake an overall salary benchmarking exercise and pay
review for our staff and workforce and to make pay awards s
appropriate. We do not operate an employee share scheme.

We are incredibly proud of our internal executive ‘GUNS' twao-
year development programme, which is the talent programme
designed to nurture and support our future and curent key
leaders and is aligned to our mission 1o be the recognised
leader for innovation and excellence in the construction
industry. The selective and highly competitive programme
develops our high potential people to become the next
generation of leaders with the ability to operate effectively as
part of the Group executive committees or be leaders of
business units, major capital projects, or functions. Our latest
GUNS cohort of talented people recently completed their two-
year pregramme.

In addition, we operate a 'Young GUNS' pragramme which is
designed to nurture and develop our brightest and best early
talent. The programme challenges participants to think
creatively and develop their own leadership styles. The 18
month programme builds leadership skills, equipping
participants 1o take on senior project roles.

Our development programmes are not separated from
operations but are run in close connection with the wider
business and colleagues; for example, through GLNS
participants presenting individual TED-style talks on topics of
personal interest to them.

In addition. we are rynning an ongeing Rethinking Safety
through Inclusion and Welbeing training course for all people in
leadership and manggement positions in the UK to ensure that
we are embedding and supporting consistent principles of
inclusive leadership and operational excellence in health

and safety.

The directors believe that employee interests and needs are
always evolving and changing, and they pride thernselves on
continuous engagement with our valued people.

SUSTAINABILITY

This has been a pivotal year in developing our sustainatoility
strategy and setting up the right structure to deliver it. Our
experenced and passionate people are focused on diiving
sustainable practices and innovation across our global operations
and the response across the business has been incredible.

i am proud to work with so many people who, regardiess of
their role or seniority, are ready to take on the challenge of
reducing cur climate impact. With their support we have
achieved some impressive early results, and atf the same time
have developed our medium- and long-term plans to address
the climate and wider sustainability iImperatives within the
timescales needed.

The comerstones of our strategy are authenticity, innovation,
and targeted action. Cpen, transparent conversation around
our targets, our progress, our successes and our setbacks is vital
to driving meaningful change within our business and across
ourindustry. We recognise that we cannot achieve net zero
using today’s materials, technologies, and approach, We
therefore have teams dedicated to solving the complex
technical challenges of decarbonisation in our sector—and a
determingation to resclive them. We're prioritising our work
programmes, moving first on those that will deliver the most
transformaticnal impact.

Our sustainability strateqy is multi-faceted., integrating carbon
reduction, nature protection, social impact, diversity, inclusion,
and employee wellbeing. We've focused heavily an improving
data integrity this year — particularty our carbon related data -
by building robust, centralised reporting systems and
collaborating with supply chain partners and industry to
establish common and accurate data practices.

Data integrity is an industry-wide challenge and one that

is essentiol fo progress. We're pieased fo be initiating
data-focused conversations in the wider industry, driving
fransparency and best practice. We now have Group data
for Scopes 1, 2, and 3, which has been verified to a limited
level of assurance by an accredited third party, whichis a
significant step forward. This will remain an area of focus for
us as we develop action plans and measure progress towards
our targets.

One of the biggest contributors to our carbon footprint is
concrete and we have taken direct, targeted action to
recluce the impact of this essential material, Cur UK business
was a founding member of the ConcretelZero initiative in 2022.
On 1 April 2023, we became the first contractor to mandate
the use of only low carbon concrete across our new UK
projects. This required significant woark by colleagues across our
business and is an achievement we are particularly proud of.
It's an important first step for us in accelerating the
decarbonisation of concrete, with our research teams now
focused on vira-low carbon oplions, as well as tackling overal)
reduction of matetials used through innovative design.

Our technical research programme is working on a range of
low carbon material initiatives across ocur high-emitting material
items: low carbon concrete is its primary focus, and leamings
are being shared across the Group.

Innovative low cdrbon design is central to our approach and
we're working with clients and industry partners to integrate
new sustainable sclutions inte the projects we deliver. This
includes the use of a suite of carbon calculation
methodolegies at both the design stage and during
implementation, embedding environmental and carbon
measures throughout cur projects’ ifecycles.

We are very aware gur environmental impact goes beyond
carbon. As well as implementing biodiversity programmes on
cur projects, we have taken our commitment to nature further,
rmapping the nature-related impact of our projects, offices,
and depots globally, This has provided an important basis for
responsible decision-making across the business. In FY24 we wiil
also be focusing on developing our Group biodiversity strategy
and plans, integrating them with our wider environmental and
social agenda.

Local communities have always been an important
stakeholder feor us and we continue to listen to, and parther
with, fhese communifies in order fo create meaningful social
value via our projects. We have updated our social value
strategy to make it more people-centric and ensure we're
focused on delivering lasting benefits to the communities in
which we work. This could take the form of tailored
programmes to help people overcome barriers to
employment, or hélping local businesses to thrive by working
with them as supply chain partners.
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We also continue to focus on improving diversity and inclusion,
and in the last year have intfroduced initiatives and policies
designed to improve diversity across the business. We know there is
much more to be done, and we will continue to work in
colaboration with our clients, design partners, and supply chain
partners to increase the pace of change ond make a careerin
construction appealing o a much wider range of people. This
year we are publishing a standalone FY23 Group sustainability
report {Pushing the Boundaries) which will be downleadable from
our webssite. This report is rmore comprehensive than these pages
and provides more detdall and data akbout the excellent work we
are doing and our progress towards a more sustainable future.

OUR APPROACH

Pushing boundaries sits at the heart of our purpose at Laing
O'Rourke. It's what makes us different. |'s how we think. It's what
we do. We know that actions speak louder than words and it's
our philosophy to do what we say and say what we do. Our
sustainability strategy is a comprehensive plan that details how
we're reducing environmentalimpacts while positively
confributing to society, whether that's our people, our custormers,
our environment, or the communities we're working in.

Qur goals are clear, and we are waorking to achieve them by
fransforming the way buildings and infrastructure are engineered
and built. By 2030 all our sites will be emission-free. By 2033 we wil
be deploying truly diverse teams to deliver our projects. Before
2050 we will be a fully net zere company delivering nature
positive solutions with teams that represent our diverse society.

For our clients

Our clients want products and solutions that minimise
environmental impacts and better serve the community. Qur
commitment to innovation and modern methods of construction
enables us to help clients meet their sustainability ambitions.

For our people

Building an enduring and innovative organisation requires us to
hire, develop, and retdin the very best talent. Our business is
committed to driving real change in our industry, providing a
diverse range of people with rewarding and chalenging careers.

For society

From hospitals to raitways, we're delivering the infrastructure
needed to improve lives and help local communities thrive. By
creating employment opportunities and investing in skills
development we create economic growth and help
communities prosper,

For the environment

We're driving leadership in low-carbon innovation as we work
to become a net zero company before 2050. By working
collaboratively across the sector to identify decarbonisation
solutions, we 're solving comiplex climate challenges and
leading the way towards a better built environment.

PROGRESS TOWARDS OUR 2030 TARGET

Our 2030 target is to be operationally net zero, That means
efiminating carbon emissions from our directly controllec
operations, including energy use, fleet, and fue! for heavy plant
(defined as Scope 1 and 2 emissions). We are pleased to see
our carbon abatement initiatives continuing to take effect,
where Scope 1 emissions almost halved during FY23. This has
been driven by a combination of switching to alternative fuels
for heavy plant — either electric or biofuel — and switching our
company car fleet over to electric and hybrid vehicles.

Biminating the emissions for which we are directly responsible is
a business priority. But with Scope 1 and 2 emissions
representing less than 10 per cent of our overall emissions, we
know we have to do much more to fackle our indirect (Scope
3) emissions and become a net zero company before 2050.

BROGRESS TOWARDS CUR 2050 TARGET

We significantly impreved our data integrity in ¥Y23 fo develop
an accurate and reliable picture of our carbon emissions
across Scopes 1, 2 and 3, and create a breakdown of exactly
how those emissions are generated.

Reducing Scope 3 emissions — those associated with our supply
chain and purchased products and services - is the single
biggest challenge facing all constructors. Qur hope is that as
we, and ofhers, develop new innovations, we wil be able to
become a net zero company sooner than 2050 and we will
review this target in the coming year to determine whether we
believe thot is feasible.

We have developed a consistent methodology for Scope 3
emission data capture ensuring we have complete metrics for
FY22 and FY23. Both data sets have been verified to a limited
level of assurance by an accredited third party. The data
shows a smaltincrease in Scope 3 emissions for FY23, driven by
an upliftin materials purchased to support project delivery.
We have ako withessed increases in the emissions associated
with business travel and employee commuting when
compared with FY22, as business operations return to

normal levels post-pandemic.

Now that we have a more robust picture of the source of our
Scope 3 emissions, we are taking targeted actions to recuce
them. We know that we can'’t do all of this clone — the
cumulative work of parties across the industry will be pivotal to
our success, We are collaborating broadly and widely to
stimulate a step change in industry emissions. The work we're
doing with ConcreteZero, MECLA, the UK Green Building Council,
and the plethora of academic and supply chain organisations
that we partner with, among cthers, will enable us to make small
incrementalimprovements, as well as identify the innovative
solutions that will drive more substantial improvements.

Key initiatives include:

- We moved to mandate only low carbon concrete on our
new UK projects from 1 April 2023 — and 1o confinue our
research and development programme into ultra-low
carbon afternatives;

- Founding member of the Climate Group's Concretefero
initiative, working collaboratively towards a net zero
concrete target before 2050;

- Supporting supply chain partners by providing training and
education, directly and via our partnership with the Supply
Chain Sustainability School. We hold board positions in the
Australian and UK branches of the School; and

- Working directty with supply chain partners, frade
associations, and other indlustry stakeholders to develop a
standardised blueprint for reporting, improving data integrity,
reducing the burden for suppliers. and removing barners for
smaller businesses.
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CUR NATURE-POSITIVE APPROACH
We recognise that gur rosponsibility to protect our envitonment
goes beyond caon and includes working to protect nature.

This year we have undertaken a preject to map the nature-
related impact of our site operations on a global basis, This is
helping us make informed decisions based on the needs of the
natural environment in our locations.

We are commilted to protecting biodiversity on each of our
project sites, with many of our projects in both eperating hubs
having biodiversity-focused targets.

We have assessed the nature-related impacts and
dependencies for key commodiities, including PPE, steel,
and biodiesel, as part of preliminary supply chain analysis.
Our biodiversity work will extend during FY24 as we increase
supply chain analysis and the impact of materials sourcing
on biodiversity. This will inform a maore detailed roadmap

of activity.

SOCIAL VALUE
Social sustainability is infegral to our commitment to responsible
business practices,

In the UK, our godlis to generate £2n in socialimpact and
enrich the lives of twa million people by 2030. We have
implemented speciglist, third-party software ({Thrive) to help
capture and measure our social value impact. FY23 represents
our first full year of data, with highlights including:

- £435m social value created, supporting people within several
different communities across the UK;

- 11,242 volunteer hours contributed;

- 369 people employed, who previously had barriers fo
employment, with employability programmes delivered
to provide longer-term support to a wider community
of individuals;

- 346 work experience placements, giving students
first-hand experence of the breadth of roles available in
canstruction; and

- 156 apprenticeships created, providing routes into long-term
employment.

We continue to share our experiences and best practice
examples with peers via our partnerstips with Social Value UK,
the Impact Evaluation Standard, and the Institute of Corporate
Responsibility and Sustainability.

DIVERSITY AND INCLUSION

We recognise that construction is not a diverse industry. While
that is starting to change, there is much more work to do to
ensure our industry represents the society and communities in
which we operate. Evidence shows diverse organisations are
more creative and innovative, and we beleve becoming a
more diverse business will help us unlock answers to some of the
sustainability challenges we need to overcome.,

We are making progress towards our target of a 50:50 staff
gender split by 2033. Our proportion of fermnale staff has
increased and now stands at 25 per cent. We ranked highest in
our sector within the FISE Women Leaders Review for both
private companies and FTSE 350. We also ranked third in the
top 50 private companies for femates on our Board at 57 per
cent, and sixth for women in leadership.

While gender equity remains an important element of our
diversity and inclusion work, our scope of interest is far wider,
ensuring that all employees across our business — and potential
employees — feel a sense of inclusion and belonging.

EMPLOYEE WELLBEING

Qur wellbeing strategy is multi-faceted, ensuring that it
addresses our employees' physical, mental, workplace, social,
and financial welibeing. We have wide-ranging initicatives in
place to support all aspects of wellbeing for our colleagues.

SUSTAINABILITY GOVERMANCE
Qur sustainability governance structure was established in FY22
and has been further embedded during FY23.
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CHG EMISSIONS AND ENERGY USE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 37 MARCH 2023
The data below exciudes operations in Canada and joint arangements.

FY2a FY22
Energy consumption used o calculate emissions (kwWh) 77,924,689 69.850,486
Gas (kWhj 3,976,116 3,730,420
Electricity (kWh) 15,877,209 14,043.357
Transport fuels {(kwh) 13,503,222 14,609,946
Other energy sources {Scope 1 and 2} (kWh) 36,740,197 29,373,542
Transport fuels (scope 3) (kWh) 7,827,945 6,093,221
Fmissions from combustion of gas 1COze (Scope 1) 726 683
Emissions from combustion of fuel for fransport purposes 1COze (Scope 1) 3,375 3,626
Emissions from business travel in rental cars or employee-owned vehicles where the company is
responsible for purchasing the fue! tCOze (Scope 3) 1,920 1,504
Emissions from purchased electricity tCOze (Scope 2, location-based} 3,070 3,406
Total gross emissions tCO2e based on the above 9.091 9219
Total gross emissions from above by unit turnoverfrevenue (1COz2e/EM) 418 497

Methodology

Emissions from other activities which the company owns or controls including operation of faciities

tCOze (Scope 1)

Emissions from heat, steam and cooling purchased for own use tCOze (Scope 2)
Emissions from other activities tCOze (Scope 3} (restated!)

Total other emissions tCOze (restated!)

Total gross Scope 1. Scope 2 and Scope 3 emissions 1COze (restated’}

ISO14064 Part } 2018
and Carbon Reduce

2,354
N/A
357.499
364,457
373,676

Total gross GHG emissions per unit turnover/revenue (COe/EM}

201

6,958
N/A
484,251
486,605
495,696
228

Third Party verification

Verified to 1ISO14064 Part

12018 and Carbon

Reduce

‘Restated emissions kalances for FY22 now include a wider range of Scope 3 emissions, as identified durng the FY23 verfication.
The revenue used to calculate the intensity ratios is not that of the total Group; only UK subsidiaries have been included.

Revenue is largely used as the industry benchmark for ermissions intensity ratios. It is also the most accurate representation

of business activity, due to revenue being recognised over time and in relation to works complete to date, it faily represents
the level of activity in the business. Energy (KWh) for the last reporting peficd has decreased slightly. Additionally, due to the
implementation of our carbon abatement projects, we have seen o decreose in absolute emissions and emissions infensity by

unit of turnover.

Laing C'Rourke Plc ;
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DIRECTORS' REPORT CONTINUED
for the year ended 31 March 2023

BIODIVERSITY

Wherever possible on our projects, we work to protect nature
and biodiversity. In the UK, we have implemented what's
recognised as an industry leading approach to delivering
biodiversity net gain (BNG). On major infrastructure projects like
East West Rail and HS2, we have implementad plans to deliver
biodiversity net gain targets. we have leamed from these
schemes and will apply the leamings on future projects.

Qur East West Rail (LwR) Aliance team has taken a strategic,
holistic approach to ecological management, considering
permanent and temporary works requirements, licensing,
mitigation and BNG. Working with Natural England, the project
has tested multiple iterations of the Biodiversity Metric and been
a Beta tester for the new Environmental Benefits from Nature
taol, which was developed by Natural England and the
University of Oxford in partnership with DEFRA.

In addition, the team is creating Ecological Compensation Sites
at 20 locations dlong the new railway’s route as part of the
project's protected species mitigation plan. The locations were
established. in some cases up to two years prior to the start of
construction works, to provide high quality habitat for a wide
variety of fauna and flora. These sites, which total 100 hectares
in size Include 45 ponds, 12 artificial badger setts, and o bat
house and 70 bat boxes. Within them 150,000 plants and frees
have been planted.

And our team at The Centre of Excellence for Modermn
Construction have installed ten beehives at the site, recognising
the important role bees play in the ecosystem as polinators.
The raw honey produced by the bees is sold to employees on
site and the money raised is donated to a local charity.

HUMAN AND SOCIAL SUSTAINABILITY

As a family-owned business, we have alwadys sought to care for
our people and support the communities our projects serve,
and we contfinued fo focus on this through FY23.

Cur projects provide skills, education, and employment
opportunities for local people, including apprenticeships, and
we seek to find supply chain parners in the local community.

Our new Everton stadium project is a good example. Our team
there have partnered with leading training providers The
Leamning Foundry and The Skills Centre to launch exciting
opportunities for local people to work on the 52,000-capacity
stadium and begin a careerin construction. The programme is
available to people living across the Liverpcol City Region.

During the pre-employment part of the training programme,
participants will be taught basic fermwoerk campentry or steel
fixer skils, plus health and safety requirements of the industry,
and gain their Construction Skills Certification Scheme (CSCS)
card, which will grant them access to wark on any construction
site in the UK.

On completion of the pre-employment part of the course the
participants will be assessed and if successful will be become a
formwork carpenter or steel fixer apprentice for Laing
O’'Rourke. They will then join the new Everton stadium project
team and waork alongside some of the most experienced
fradespeocple and technicians in the industry.

In FY23, we willimplement a new social value strategy in the
Europe Hub to ensure maore consistent action acress all our
projects and to ensure people and communities are at the
heart of what we do. Qur godt is simple: to maximise the socio-
econcmic benefits of cur projects and so help people thrive.

Laing O'Rourke Plc

RETHINKING SAFETY THROUGH INCLUSKON

AND WELLBEING

In FY22, we developed a new, business-wide strategy to
completely reset how everyone in the business thinks about
wellbeing — our own and that of colleagues.

Called 'Rethinking Safety Through Inclusion and Wellbeing' the
new strategy ensures our approach to wellbeing considers
both the physical and psychoingical, and the uniguce risk
factors in construction. It promotes a culture where everyone is
inciuded no matter what role they play. Everyone has a voice,
at every stage of our projects, and in planning how we will go
1o work for eqch activity. The aim is for everyone to feel
empowered to speak up.

The programme is setting a new standard for safety and
leadership through three core areas of focus:

- ENGINEERED SAFETY
Through a preconstruction focus, we will work with designers,
clients, and suppliers to ‘engineer ocut risk' and 'engineer in
health' at every stage of a project’s ifecycle;

- DEUIVERY EXCELLENCE
During delivery. we will ensure that there is strong safety
leadership through clear tines of operational accountability
and competence, beginning with the project leader and
his/her direct reports. Through clear leadership we will better
understand risks, verify controls, embed tearning, and
share successes; and

- HUMAN PERFORMANCE
wWe will invest in advanced concepts around holistic
wellbeing and our people's need to recover to thrive. Inso
doing, we wil provide a supportive and psychologically
enriching work environment that allows our people to
perform consistently at their best.



DIRECTORS' REPORT CONTINUED
for the year ended 31 March 2023

STATEMENT OF DIRECTORS RESPONSIBILITIES

The Directors are responsible far preparing the Annual Report
and financial statements in accordance with applicable law
and regulation.

Company iaw requires the Directors to prepare financial
statements for each financial year. Under that law the directors
have prepared fhe group financial siatements in accordance
with UK-adopted intermational accounting standards and the
company financial statements in accordance with United
Kingdom Generally Accepied Accounting Practice (United
Kingdom Accounting Standards, comprising FRS 101 “Reduced
Disclosure Framework”, and applicable law).

Under company law, Directars must not approve the financlul
statements unless they are satisfied that they give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs of the Group and the Company
and of the profif or loss of the Group for that period. In
preparing the financial statements, the Directors are required
to:

- select suitable accounting policies and then apply them
consistently;
- state whether applicable UK-adopted intermational
accounting standards have been followed for the group
financial statements and United Kingdom Accounting
Standards, comprising FRS 101, have been followed for the
Company financial statements, subject to any material
departures disclosed and explained in the financial
statements;
make judgements and accounting estimates that are
reasonable and prudent; and
prepare the financial statements on the going concemn basis
unless it is inappropriate to presume that the group and the
Company will continue in business.

The Directors are responsible for safeguarding the assets of the
Group and the Company and hence for taking reasonable
steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other
imegularities.

The Direciors are also responsible for keeping adequate
accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain the
Group's and the Company’s transactions and disclose with
reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the
Group and fhe Company and enable them fo ensure that the
financial statements comply with the Companies Act 2006.

DIRECTORY CONFIRMATIONS
In the case of each Director in office al the date the Directors’
Report is approved:

so far as the Director is aware, there is no relevant audit
information of which the Group's and the Company’s
auditers are unaware; and

— they have taken ail the steps that they cught 1o have taken
as a Director in order to make themselves aware of any
relevant audii information and fo establish thatf the Group's
and Ihe Company's auditors are aware of that information.

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS

The auditors, PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, have
indicated Ihei wilingnzss 1o continuo in office nnd n
resolution for their appointment will be proposed at the
Annual General Mesting.

APPROVAL
This report was approved by the Board on 31 October 2023
and signed on behalf of the Board by:

ROWAN BAKER
DIRECTOR

Laing O'Rourke Plc |
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF LAING O’ROURKE PLC

REPORT ON THE AUDIT OFf THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

OPINION
In our opinion:

- Laing O'Rourke Plc's group financial statements and
company financial statements (the “financial statements”)
gdive a true and fair view of the state of the group's and of
the company's affairs as at 31 March 2023 and of the
group's j0ss and the group’s cash flows for the year
then ended;

- the group financial statements have been propery
prepared in gccordance with UK-adopted international
accounting standards as applied in accordance with the
provisions of the Companies Act 2006;

— the company financial statements have been properly
prepared in accordance with United Kingdem Generally
Accepted Accounting Practice (United Kingdom
Accounting Standards, including FRS 101 "Reduced
Disclosure Framework”, and applicable law); and

- the financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with the requirements of the Comparies Act 2006.

We have audited the financial statemenits, included within the
Annual Report ond Financial Statements (the “Annual
Report"), which comprise: the consolidated and company
staternents of financial position as at 31 March 2023; the
consolidated income statement, the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income, the consolidated staterment of
cash flows and the consolidated and company statements of
changes In equity for the year then ended: and the notes to
the financial statements, which include a description of the
significant accounting policies.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Intemational
Standards on Auditing {UK) {"15As [UK)") and applicable law.
Our responsibilities under 1SAs (UK) are further described in the
Auditors” responsibilities for the qudit of the financial
statements section of our report. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion,

INDEPENDENCE

We remained independent of the group in accordance with
the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the
financial statements in the UK, which includes the FRC's Ethical
Standard, and we have fulfiled our other ethical responsibiiihes
in accordance with these requirements.

CONCLUSIONS RELATING TO GOING CONCERN

Based on the work we have performed, we have not

identified any material uncertainties relating to events or
conditions that, individually or coflectively, may cast significant
doubt on the group's and the company's ability to continue as
a going concemn for a period of at least twelve menths from
when the financial statements are authorised for issue.

In auditing the financial statements, we have concluded that
the directors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting in
the preparatian of the financial statements is appropriate.

However, because not all fulure events or conditions can be
predicted, this conclusion is not a guarantee as to the group’s
and the company's ability to continue as a going concem.

Our responsibilities and the responsibilities of the directors with
respect to going concem are described in the relevant
sections of this report.

REPORTING ON OTHER iNFORMATION

The other information comprises all of the information in the
Annual Report cther than the financial statements and our
auditors’ report thereon. The directors are responsible for the
other information. Our opinion on the financial statements
does not cover the other information and, accordingly, we do
not express an audit opinion or, except to the extent otherwise
explicitly stated in this repart, any forn of assurance thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our
responsibility is to read the other information and., in doing sc,
consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the financial staterments or our knowledge
obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears o be materially
misstated. if we identify an apparent material inconsistency or
material misstatement, we are required to perform procedures
to conclude whether there is a material misstatement of the
financial statements or a material misstatement of the other
information. lf, based on the work we have performed, we
conctude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required tc report that fact. We have
nothing to report based on these responsibilities.

with respect to the Strategic report and Directors’ Report, we
alse considered whether the disclosures required by the UK
Companies Act 2006 have been included.

Based on our work undertaken in the course of the audit, the
Companies Act 2006 requires us alkso to report certain opinions
and matters as described below.

STRATEGIC REPOGRT AND DIRECTORS” REPORT

In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of
the audit, the information given in the Strategic report and
Directors' Report for the year ended 31 March 2023 is
consistent with the financial statements and has been
prepared in accordance with applicable legal requirements.

In light of the knowledge and understanding of the group and
company and their environment obtained in the Course of the
audit, we did not identify any material misstaterments in the
Strategic report and Directors' Report.

RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND THE AUDIT

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS FOR THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

As explained more fully in the Statement of Directors’
Responsibilities, the directors are responsible for the
preparation of the financiai staternents in accordance with
the applicable framework and for being safisfied that they
give a true and fair view. The directars are also respansible for
such internal control as they detemmine is necessary to encble
the preparation of financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the group's and the company's ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as apglicable,
matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless the directors either intend
to liquidate the group or the company or to cease operations,
or have no realistic alternative but to do so.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF LAING O'ROURKE PLC CONTINUED

AUDITORS' RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstaternent, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditors' report that includes cur opinion. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with [SAs [UK) will
abways detect a material misstatferment when it exists.
Misstaternents can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually orin the aggregate, they could
reasoncbly be expected to influence the economic decisions
of uscrs taken on the basis of these financial statemenits.

Irregularities, including fraud, are instances of non-compliance
with laws and regulations. We design proceduresin line with
our responsikilities, outined above, to detect material
misstatements in respect of iregularities, including fraud. The
extent to which our procedures are capable of detecting
irregularities, including fraud, is detailed below.

Based on our understanding of the group and industry, we
identified that the principal risks of non-compliance with iaws
and reguiations related to breaches of environmental
legislation, health and safety legisiation, data protection
legistation, anti-bribery and corruption tegistation, tax
legislation, employment laws and construction laws, and we
considered the extent to which non-comgliance might have a
matericl effect on the financial statements. We also
considered those laws and regulations that have a direct
impact on the financial statements such as the Companies
Act 2006. We evaluated management's incentives and
opportunities for fraudulent manipulation of the financial
statements (including the risk of ovenide of cantrols), and
determined that the principal risks were related to posting
inappropriate journai entries and management bias in
accounting estimates and judgements. Audit procedures
performed by the engagerment feam included:

— Discussion with management and the Group's intemal
counsel, including consideration of potential instances of
non-compliance with lows and regulation ond froud;

— Assessment of matters reported 1o the Group's
whistleblowing helpline ond the resulls of manogement's
investigation of such matters;

— Oblaining legal letters from the Group's external legal
advisers in respect of certain litigation and claims where
considered necessary;

— Evaluation of management's controls designed to prevent
and detect imegularities;

— Substantive testing of journal entries which met a defined risk
criteria, focusing on where and how fraud could arise; and

— Challenging assumptions and judgements made by
management in its accounting estimates or judgemaerts in
particular in relation to contract accounting, disputes and
latent defects liabilties.

Therte are inherent limitations in the audit procedures
described above. We are less lkely to become aware of
instances of non-compliance with laws and reguiations that
are not closely related to events and transactions reflectedin
the financial statements. Also, the risk of not detecting a
material misstatement due to fraud is higher than the risk of not
detecting one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
deliberate concealment by, far example, forgery or intentional
misrepresentations, or through collusion.

A further description of our responsibiities for the audit of the
financial statements is locoted on the FRRC's website at:
www frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This description forms
part of our auditors' report.

USE OF THIS REPORT

This report, including fhe opinions, has been prepared for and
only for the cormpany's memkpers as a body in accordance
with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies Acf 2006 and for
no other purpose. We do noft, in giving these opinions, accept
or assume responsitility for any other purpose or to any other
person to whorn this repor is shown or into whose hands it may
come save where expressly agreed by our prior consent in
wrifing.

OTHER REQUIRED REPORTING

COMPANIES ACT 2006 EXCEPTION REPCORTING
Under the Companies Act 2006 we are required to report to
you if, in our opinion:

- we have not obtained all the information and explanations
we require for cur audit; or

- adequate accounting records have not been kept by the
Company, orretumns adequate for our audit have not been
received from branches not visiled by us; or

- certain disclosures of directors’ remuneration specified by
law are not made; or

- the Company financial statements are not in agreement
with the accounting records and returns.

We have no exceptions to report arising from this responsibility.

SIMON MORLEY (SENIOR STATUTORY AUDITOR)
FOR AND ON BEHALF OF

PRICEWATERHOUSECOCPERS LLP
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS AND STATUTORY AUDITORS

London, 31 Qctober 2023
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CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT

for the year ended 31 March 2023

Exceptional
Pre-exceptional tems Pre-exceptional Exceptional tems
items {hote 5) Total Hems note 5) Total
2023 2023 2023 2022 22 222
Note £m £m £m £m £m £m
Revenue including share of joint ventures 2,289.9 - 2,289.9 1,993.0 - 1,993.0
Share of revenue of joint ventures (255.0) - (255.0) {185.7) - {185.7)
Group revenue’ 3 2,034.9 - 2,0349 1.807.3 - 1.807.3
Cost of sales (2.092.4) - (2092.¢) {1.651.0) - {1.651.0)
Gross (loss)/ profit (57.7) - (57.7) 156.3 - 1563
Administrative expenses (124.6) (2.4) (127.0) {126.0) - {126.0)
Otheroperating income . : _10.3 - o8 = 48 _ - _ 48
Group operating (loss)/profit (172.0) (2.4) (174.4) 35.1 - 351
Share of post-tax profits/{losses) of
joint ventures 15 28 - 28 (6.1) - (6.1}
(Loss)/profit from operations & (169.2) (2.4) (171.4) 29.0 - 2%.0
Finance income 9 0.6 - 0.6 r 0.1 - 0.1
Finance expense 10 (17.3) - {17.3) (12.9) - (12,9
Net findnce expense (16.7) - (18.7) (12.8) - (12.8)
(Loss)/profit betore tax {185.9) (2.4) (188.3) 16.2 - 16.2
Tax 11 58.9 0.5 59.4 4.0 - 40
(Loss)/profit for the year (127.0) (1.9) (128.9) 20.2 - 202
1. Group Revenue equdtes 1o revenue as defined under IFRS 15, 'Revenue from contracts with customers”.
The notes on pages 41 to 81 form an integral part of these financial statements,
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

for the year ended 31 March 2023

Excepfional
Pre-exceptional temns Pre-exceptional Exceptional tems
tems {note 5) Totak dems (note 5] Total
2023 2023 2023 2022 2022 2022
Note Em £m £m &m £mn im

(Loss)/profit for the year {127.0) (1.9) {128.9) 202 - 202
Other comprehensive expense:
ltems that may be subsequently
reclassified to profit or loss:
[xchange differences on franslating
foreign operations (1.5) - (1.5) 0.8) - {0.8]
Movement in fair value of
financial assets 15 - - - {0.7) o (0.7}
Other comprehensive expense for the
year, net of tax 11 (1.5) - (1.5) {1.5) - {1.5)
Total comprehensive
(expense)/income for the year (128.5} (1.9} {130.4) 18.7 - 18.7

ltems disclosed in the statement above are disclosed net of tax. The income tfax relating 1o each component of other
comprehensive income is disclosed in note 11.

The notes on pages 41 to 81 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

as at 31 March 2023

Restated’
2023 2022
Note £im £m
Assels
Non-cument assets
Intangible assets 12 41.4 40.4
Investments in joint ventures 15 8.3 55
Loans to joint ventures 15 8.0 4.0
Property, plant, and equipment 16 2.0 63.0
Right-of-use assets 17 200.7 194.2
Defered tax assets 25 96.4 358
Trade and other receivables 20 - 0.4
Contract assels 19 36.6 51.1
Total non-current assets 453.4 398.6
Current assets
Inveniories 18 18.1 16.4
Contract assets 19 123.0 78.7
Trade and other receivables 20 83.0 97.7
Current tox assets 12.3 88
Cash and cash equivalents 21 152.2 184.4
Tolal current assets 388.4 386.2
Tolal assets 842.0 784.8
Liabilities
Current liabilities
Borrowings 22 (38.7) (34.9)
Contract liabilities 19 {263.7) [230.1}
Trade and other payables 23 (483.0) (396.7)
Provisions 24 (125.4) {65.3)
Total cumrent liabilities {911.0) (727.0)
Non-current liabilities
Bomowings 22 (185.7) {190.7)
Contract liabilities 19 {0.1) (0.5)
Trade ond other payables 23 (37.0) {27.9)
Provisions 24 (0.2) {0.3)
Total non-current liabilities (223.0) (219.4)
Total liabilities (1.134.0) (246.4)
Net liabilities (292.0) (161.6)
Equity
Share capital 26 0.2 0.2
Foreign currency franskation reserve! 27 3.6 51
Accumulated losses' 27 (295.8) (166.9)
Tolal equity (292.0) (161.6)

2. Management has restated the financial statements to comrect a priar year error. The foreign currency fransiation reserve have increased by £25.5m from

£{20.4)m to £5.1m. Accumulated losses have increased by £25.5m from £141.4m 1o £166.9m. These restatements are to recycle the foreign curency

franslation reserve to accumulated losses for foreign operations that were disposed of prior fo FY20.
The financial statements were approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 31 October 2023 and were signed

on its behalf by:

ROWAN BAKER
DIRECTOR

Lt

RAY O'ROURKE KBE

The notes on pages 41 to 81 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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COMPANY STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

as at 31 March 2023

2023 2022
heote £m £m
Assels
Non-current assets
Investments in subsidiaries 13 220.5 2213
Investments in jcint ventures 15 - -
Loans fo joint ventures 15 8.0 8.0
Right-of-use assets 17 58.8 64.7
Defered tax assets 72 6.7
Trade and other receivables » - ] 20 250.9 246.6
Total noen-current assets - ] 5455 5473
Current assets
Trade and cther receivables 20 18 1.6
Cash and cash equivalents . . _ _ 20 = 03
Total current assets 38 1.9
Total assets 549.3 549.2
Liabilities
Cumrent liabilities
Borrowings 22 (6.6) (6.9)
Trade and other payables - 23 (387.6) (352.8)
Tolal current fiabilities o (394.2) (359.7}
Non-current liabilities
Bomowings 22 (53.3) {58.4}
Trade and other payables 23 {0.3) [0.4)
Provisions 24 {0.2) 0.1)
Tolatnon-cument fiobiites __________ _ _ _ _ _(s38 _ (89
Total liabilities (448.0) {418.4)
Net assels 101.3 130.6
Equity
Share capital 26 0.2 0.2
Retained eamings 27 101.1 130.4
Total equity 101.3 130.6

The Company loss for the financial year was £29.3m (FY22: £0.2m).

The financial stafements were approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 31 October 2023 and were signed
on its behalf by:

ROWAN BAKER RAY Q'ROURKE KBE
DIRECTOR DIRECTOR

The notes an pages 41 to 81 form an integral part of these financial statements.

Laing O'Rourke Pic | 37



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

for the year ended 31 March 2023

2023 Az
Nole £m £&m
Cash flows from operating activities
{Loss)/profit before tax (188.3) 16.2
Adjustments for:
Deprecigtion and amortisation 6 358 333
Profit on disposal of property, plant, and equipment 6 (1.9 (1.2)
Loss on disposnl of intangible gusels 23 -
Net finance costs 16.7 12.8
Research and development expenditure crediit 8 (9.7) (4.7)
Share of post-tax (profit) /loss of joint ventures 15 (2.8) 6.1
Decrease in trade and other recelvables 15.86 3.4
Increas& in contract assets (29.7) {32.2)
Increase in inventones (1.6) (4.5)
Increase in frade and other payables 92.3 4.1
Increcsa/(decrease) in provisicns b4.6 (23.6)
Increase in contract liabilties 331 446
Other - (1.3)
Cash generated from operations 26.4 512
Interest paid (17.3) (43.6)
Tax received 4.9 4.5
Net cash generated from operating activities 142 12.1
Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of property, plant, and equipment and right-of-use assets 16 (8.1) (8.7}
Purchase of intangible assets 12 (6.4) (8.8}
Capitalinjections in equity investments 15 (4.2) (0.8}
Proceeds from sale of property, plant, and equipment, and right-of-use assets 5.4 33
Interest received on financial assets held as investments 0.4 0.1
Net cash used in investing activities (12.5) (12.9)
Cash flows from financing aclivities
Proceeds from borrowings 0.1 48.0
Repayments of bank ioans (0.2) (109.5)
Proceedis from re-financing existing property, plant, and equipment 54 221
Finance lease principal repayments (39.4) (36.7)
Net cash used in financing activities {34.1) (76.1)
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents (32.4) (76.9)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 184.6 261.5
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 21 152.2 184.6
The notes on pages 41 to 81 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

for the year ended 31 March 2023

Share Foreign curency Accumuiated Total
capital  transiaton reserve  Fair valus reserve losses equity
£m £m £m £m £m
At 1 Aprit 2021 as previously presented 0.2 {19.6} 0.7 (161.8) {180.3)
Restatement! - 25.5 - (25.5) -
At 1 April 2021 restated 0.2 59 0.7 {1871} (180.3}
Profit for the year - - - 202 20.2
Other comprehensive expense after tax - [og 0.7) (1.5)
Total comprehensive {expense]/income
for the year - {0.8) {0.7) 20.2 18.7
At 31 March 2022 as restated 0.2 5.1 - (166.9) (161.8)
Loss for the year r - - - (128.9) (128.9)
Other comprehensive expense affer fax - (1.5) - - (1.5)
Total comprehensive expense for the
year - {1.5) - (128.9) (130.4)
At 31 March 2023 0.2 3.4 - (295.8) (292.0)

3. Management has restated the inancial statements to corect a prior year efmor.

Additional disclosure and details are provided in note 27.

The notes on pages 41 to 8! form an integral part of these financial statements.
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COMPANY STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

for the year ended 31 March 2023

{Accumulated

Shore Far value logses) frotained Tokal

capital Igserve Sarmings equity

Naote Em £m £m £m

At 1 April 2021 02 07 {49.3) (48.4)

Loss for the yedr and total comprehensive expense - {0.7) (0.2) (0.9)

Capital coniribution B 27 - - 179.9 1799

At 31 March 2022 02 - 1304 130.4

Loss tor the year and lotal comprehensive expense - - (29.3) (29.3)

Al 31 March 2023 0.2 - 101.1 101.3

Additienal disclosure and details are provided in note 27.

The notes on pages 41 to 81 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1 GENERAL INFORMATION

Laing C'Rowke Plc {the ‘Company’) is o private company,
imited by shares, incorporated, and domiciled in England and
Wales. The Company's registered number and registered
office address can be tound on page 2. The nature of the
Group's operations and its principal activities are set out in
note 37 and in the Sirategic Report on pages 3 to 20. The
consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year
ended 31 March 2023 comprise the Company and its
subsidiaries and the Group's interest in joint arangements.

2  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The following accounting policies are those of the Group,
unless stated otherwise. Accounting policies specific to the
Company are detailed in note 2.28.

2.0V STATEMENT ON COMPLIANCE

The consolidatea and Company financial statements have been
prepared and approved by the Directors in accordance with UK-
adopted intemational inancial reporting standards.

2.02BASIS OF PREPARATION

The consolidated and Company financial statements are
presented in pounds sterling, rounded to the nearest £100,000.
The consolidated financial statements include the results of the
helding company, its subsidiary undertakings, and the Group’s
interest in joint amangements for the year ended 31 March
2023, The consolidaied and Company financial statements
have been prepared on a going concern basis under the
histarical cost convention, as modified by the revatuation of
land and buildings (prior to the adoption of IFRS), and financial
assets, and financial labilities {including derivative instruments)
at fair value through profit or Joss. The principal accounting
policies which have been consistently applied for alf
consolidated and equity accounted entities including
subsidiaries and joint arangements are set out below.

The Group prepares consolidated financial statements in
accordance with Intemationai Financial Reporting Standards
as adopted by the UK (UK-adopted interational accounting
standards). The Company’s financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with Financial Reporting Standard
101, ‘Reduced Disclosure Framewaork' (FRS 101). The financial
statements have been prepared under the historical cost
convention and in accordance with the Companies Act 2006
as applicable to companies using FRS 101. In preparing these
financial statements, the Company applies the recognition,
measurement and disclosure requirements of Intermational
Financial Reporting Standards as adopfed by the UK {UK-
adopted internatienal accounting standards), but makes
amendments where necessary in order to comply with the
Companies Act 2006 and to take advantage of FRS 101
disclosure exemptions. As pemitted by FRS 101, the Company
has taken advantage of the disclosure exemptions available
under that standard in relation to financial instruments, capital
management, presentation of a cash flow statement, related
party transactions, and comparative information.

In addition to the application of FRS 101, the Company has taken
advantage of Section 408 of the Companies Act 2006 and
consequently its staternent of comprehensive income (including

the income statement) is not presented as part of these accounts.

Going concern

The Board has carefully considered those factors likely to
affect the Company and the Group's future development,
performance, and financial position in relation to the akbility
to operate within their curent and foreseeable resources

- both financiol and operdctional. Both the Company and the
Group have sufficient financial resources, committed banking
facilities, secured revenue and a strong order book and, for
these reasons, the Directors continue to adopt the going
concem baosis in preparing the consolidated financial
statements.

Refer to note 2.26 e} and pages 21 to 23 of the Directors’
Report relating fo going concem.

Accounting Standards

The following standards, amendments, and interpratations
became effective in the year ended 31 March 2023 and have
been adopted:

a) Reference to the Conceptual Framework (Amendments to
IFRS 3);

b} Property, Plant, and Equipment — Proceeds before
intended Use {Amendments to 1AS 16);

c} Onergus Contracts - Cost of Fulfiling a Contract
{Amendments to 1AS 37} and

d] Annual Improvements to IFRS Standards 2018-2020.

The effect on the consolidated and Company financial
statements of adepting these new standards has been
determined to not be material.

The Direcfors have considered recently published IFRSs, new
interpretations and amendments to existing standards that are
mandatory for the Group's accounting periods commencing
on or after 1 April 2023,

Standards that are not yet effective and have not been
adopted eary by the Group are:

a) IFRS 17, Insurance Contracts;

b) Narrow scope amendments to IAS 1, Practice statement 2
and |AS 8

c) Deferred Taxreloted to Assets and Liabilities arising from a
Single Transaction ([Amendment to 1AS 12);

d} Leases onsale and leaseback {Amendment to IAS 18); and

) Non-cument iabiliies with covenan's [Amendments 1o 1AS 1).

The Group is in the process of assessing the effect of the
standards above on the consolidated and Company financial
statements. The Group has chosen not to adopt any of the
above standards and interpretations earlier than required.

2.03BASIS OF CONSOLIDATION

aj  The consolidated financiai statements include fhe
financial siatements of the Company, and subsidiaries
controled by the Company. Subsidiaries are all entities
{including structured entifies) over which the Group has
control. The Group controls an entity when the Group is
exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns from its
involvernent with the entity and has the ability tc affect
those returns through its power over the entity. Subsidiaries
are consolidated from the date on which effective
controlis transtered to the Group and are
deconsolidated from the date coniroi ceases.

The purchase method of accounting is used to account
for the acquisition of subsidiaries by the Group faling
within the scope of IFRS 3, ‘Business Combinations'. The
consideration for the acquisition of a subsidiary is the fair
values of the assets transferred. equity instruments issued,
and liabilities incurred or assumed at the date of
exchange. Acquisition related costs are expensed as
incurred. Identifiable assets acguired and liabilities and
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NQOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS CONTINUED

2  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.03BASIS OF CONSOLIDATION {(CONTINUED)
contingent labilities assumed in a business combination are
measured inifially at their fair values at the acquisition date,
imespective of the extent of any non-controling inferest. The
excess of the consideration transfered over the fair value of
the Group's share of the identifiable net assets Acm ke is
recorded as goodwill. If this is less than the fair value of the
net assets of the subsidiary acquired, the difference is
recognised directly in the income statement. When the
Croup loses control of a subsidiary, the profit or loss on
disposalis calculated as the difference between the fair
value of the consideration received and the canying
amount of the assets less iabilities of the subsidiary.

The separate financial statements of the Company are
presented as required by the Companies Act 2006, The
Company has taken advantage of Section 408 of the
Companies Act, and conseguently its income statement
and statement of other comprehensive income are not
presented as part of these financial statements.

b}  Under IFRS 11 investments in joint arrangements are
classified as either joint operations or joint ventures
depending on the contractual rights and obligations of
each investor. The Group has assessed the nature of
each joint arangement and has determined some to be
joint operations and some to be joint ventures, as
detailed in note 37.

i) The Group accounts forits share of the assefs,
liabilities, revenue, and expenses in a joint operation,
under each relevant heading in the income
staterment and the statement of financial position.

iij Joint ventures are accounted for using the equity
method. Under the equity method of accounting,
interests in joint ventures are inifialty recognised at cost
and adjusted thereafter to recoghise the Group's share
of the post-acquisition profits or losses and movements in
other comprehensive income. When the Group's share
of losses in a joint venture equals or exceeds its interest in
the joint venture {which inciudes any long-term inferests
that, in substance, form part of the Group's net
investment in the joint venture), the Group does not
recognise further losses, unless it has incured obligations
to make payments on behalf of the joint venture.

c)  Intra-Group balances and transactions together with any
unredlised gains arsing from intra-Group transactions are
eliminated in preparing the consolidated financial
statements. Unrealised gains arising from transactions with
jointly controlled entities and jointly controlled operations
are efiminated to the extent of the Group's interest in the
entity. The Group’s share of unreailised losses is eliminated
in the same way as unrealised gains, but only to the
extent that there is no evidence of impairment.

2.04 FOREIGN CURRENCY TRANSLATION

Functional and presentation currency

ltems included in the financial statements of each of the
Group's entities are measured using the currency of the
primary economic environment in which each entity operates
{'the functional currency’). The consolidated financiai
staternents are presented in pounds sterling, which is the
functional and presentation curency of Laing O’Rourke Plc.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are transkated into the functional
currency using the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of
the transactions, Foreign exchange gains and fosses resulting
from the settlement of such transactions and from the
translation at year-end exchange rates of monetary assets
and ligbilities denominated in foreign currencies, are
recognised in the income statement.

Translation differences on non-monetary financial assets and
ligbilities such as equities held at ‘fair value through profit or
loss' are recognised in the income statement as part of the fair
value gain or loss. Translation differences on non-monetary
financial assets such as equities classified as held for coliect
and for sale are included in the fair value reserve in equity.

Group companies

The results and financial position of all Group entities {(none of
which has the functional currency of a hyper-inflationary
economy) that have a functional currency different from the
presentation curency are translated into the presentation
currency as follows:

i) Assets and liakilities for each statement of financial
position presented are translated at the closing rate at
the reporting date;

i)  Income and expenses for each income statement are
transtated at average exchange rates for the period; and

i)  Allresulting exchange differences are recognised in the
foreign curency translation reserve.

On consolidation, exchange differences arising from the
translation of the net investment in foreign operations, and of
borrowings designed as hedges of such investments, are taken
to other comprehensive income. When a foreign operation is
partially disposed of, or sold, exchange differences that were
recorded in other comprehensive income are recognised in
the income statement as part of the gain or loss on sale.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the acquisition
of a foreign entity are treated as assets and liabilities of the
foreign entity and translated at the closing rate.

205PROPERTY, PLANT, AND EQUIPMENT

Property. plant, and equipment are reported at historical cost
less accumulated depreciation and any recognised
impairment loss, Land is not depreciated. Where parts of an
item of propery, plant, and equipment have different useful
lives, they are accounted for as separate items. Cost
comprises purchase price and directly attributable costs.
Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line method to write
down the costs of the assets to their residual values over their
estimated useful lives as follows:

30 - 50 years
2-15vyears

Land and buildings
Plant, equipment, and vehicles

Plant, equipment, and vehicles include tower cranes, crawler
cranes, and other specialist assets that are depreciated over a
useful life of up to 15 years as well as small tools and vehicles
that are depreciated over two to five year period.

Certain land and buildings were revalued under previous
accounting standards. On transition to IFRS, the Group elected
to use the revalued amount as deemed cost.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS CONTINUED

2  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

205PROPERTY, PLANT, AND EQUIPMENT
(CONTINUED)

Assets held under right-of-use leases are depreciated over the
term of the lease or the estimated useful life of the asset as
appropfiate,

Gains and iosses on disposal are recognised within cost of
sales, administrative expenses, or profit on disposal of propery
in the income statement based on the nature of the assets
disposed of.

206 LEASES

The Group assesses whether a confract is, or contains, a lease
at the inception of the contract. A lease exists if the contract
conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a
period of time in exchange for consideration.

The Group recognises a right-of-use asset and alease liability
at the iease commencement date. The right-of-use asset is
initially measured at cost and subsequently depreciated over
the lease term. The lease liakility is measured at the present
value of the lease payments that are not paid at the
commencement date, discounted using the interest rate
implicit in the lease, orif that rate cannot be readily
determined, at the Group's incremental borowing rate. The
Group has elected to apply the practical expedient which
allows the Group to use asingle discount rate for a portfelio of
leases with similar characteristics.

The Group has elected not to recognise right-of-use assets and
lease abilities for short term leases ot less than 12 months and
leases of low value assefs (below US$5,000). Instead, the Group
recognises the lease payments associated with these leases as
an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

2.07 GOODWILL AND OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS
Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of the cost of an acquisition over
the fair value of the Group's share of the net assets of the
acquired subsidiary, associate, or joint venture at the date of
acquisition. Separately recognised goodwill is tested annually for
impaiment and camed at cost less impaiment osses.

Goodwill is included when determining the profit or loss

on subsequent disposal of the business to which it relates.
Goodwil is alocated to cash generating units for the purpose
of impairment testing.

Other intangible assets

Other intangible assets are stated at cost less accumulated
amortisation and impairment losses. Amortisation is based on
the useful lives of the assets concerned, and recognised on a
straight-line basis aver the following periods;

Computer software and licences
Development cosis

2-5vyears
4 yedars

Development costs

Development costs are capitalised as intangible assets only if
certain criteria are met in order to demonstrate the asset will
generate future economic benefits and that its cost can be
reliably measured. Developments costs include IT assets under
construction. All other research and development expenditure
is recognised in cost of sales or administrative expenses as
incurred. Research and developrment expenditure credits
relate to amounts recoverable from HMRC on previously
incurred expenditure. Research and development

expenditure credits relate to amounts recoverable from HMRC
on previously incurred expenditure.,

Impairment of nan-financial assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life are not subject to
amortisation and are tested for impairment annually. Assets
that are subject to amortisation or depreciation are reviewed
for impairment or reversad of prior impairments when significant
circumstances or events indicate a change in the carnying
valye. For impaoirment testing. goodwil is allocated to cash-
generating units by geographical reporting unit and business
segment. Assels are grouped at the lowest level for which
there are separately identifiable cash flows.

208 FINANCIAL INVESTMENTS
The Group has classified its financial investments as assets held
to collect and to sell which are recognised at fair value.

Changes in the fair value of financial investments classified as
held for sale are recorded in the fair value reserve within
equity. When these are sold, the fair value adjustments
recaognised in equity are included in the income statement.

Under the terms of a Private Finance Initiative {'PFI"} or similar
project, where the risks and rewards of ownership remain
largely with the purchaser of the associated services, the
Group's interest in the asset i classified within investments in
joint ventures as held to collect and to sell under IFRS 9. These
investments are measured at fair value through other
comprehensive income.

207 DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Fair value derivatives are initially recognised at fair value on
the date of the contract and are subsequently remeasured ¢f
their fair value. Movements in fair value are recorded in the
inceme statement, together with any changes in the fair value
of the hedged asset or liability that are attributable to the
hedged risk. The full fair value of a hedging derivative is
classified as a non-curent asset or liability if the remaining
mafurity of the hedged item is more than 12 months, and as a
current asset or liability if the maturity of the hedged itentis less
than 12 months.

210 INVENTORIES

Inventaries are stated at the lower of cost and estimated
realsable value. Cost comprises the purchase price, net of any
discounts received, cost of conversion and other costs
involved in bringing the inventories to their present location
and condition, such as direct and subcontract iabour and
overheads. The cost of development land may include
borrowing costs. When determining the cost of inventories the
Group's business units will apply either the firstin first-out {FIFO')
method or the weighted average cost formula, whichever is
relevant for their operation. Inventories are assessed to
determine if damage, obsolescence, or other extemal factors
have reduced the ability to recover the cosf. When this occurs
the Group wil write down the inventories to their estimated net
realisable value. Net realisable value represents the estimated
income less all estimated costs of completion and costs fo bhe
incurred in marketing. selling, and distrilbution.

211 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and cash equivalents consist of cash at bank and in
hand, deposits held at call with banks, project bank accounts
controlled by the Group, and other short-term highty liquid
investments with less than 20 days maturity from the date of
acquisition. For the purposes of the cash flow staterment, cash,
and cash equivalents also include bank overdrafts, which are
included in borowings in the statement of financial position.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS CONTINUED

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2 12TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

Trade receivables are initially recorded at fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost reduced by an
dllowance for expected credit losses and appropriate
allowances for estimated irecoverable amounts. Subsequent
rocovenos of amounts provioushy wiritten off arc credited to the
income statement ine in which the provision was onginally
recognised.

The Group has applied the simplified approach tc measuring
expected credit losses, which uses a lifetime expected loss
alowance. To measure the expected credit losses, trade
receivables have been grouped based on days overdue.

Other receivables are stated at cost.

Z2A3TRADE AND OTHER PAYARLES
Trade and other payables are nct interest bearing and are
stated at cost.

2.1 4PROVISIONS

Provisions for iegal claims, defects and onerous contract costs,
dilapidation provisicns, and other onerous commitments are
recognised at the best estimate of the present value of the
expenditures expected to be reguired to settle the tiability.

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present legal
or constructive obligation as aresult of a past event, where it is
probable that an outflow will be required to setfle the
obligation and the amount of the cbligation can be
estimated reliably.

215REVENUE RECOGNITION

The Group recognises revenue when it transfers control over a
product or service to its customer. Revenue is measured at the
fair value of the consideration received or receivable, net of
sales tax, for goods and services supplied to external
customers, and excludes amounts collected on behalf of third
parties. Revenue recognition is based on the satisfaction of
individual performance obligations and for consfruction and
service contracts, these obligations are satisfied over time,
therefore contract revenue and costs are recognised by
reference 1o the stage of completien of each contract, as
measured by the proportion of total costs incurmred as at the
balance sheet date compared to the total expected costs of
the contract, as set out in the accounting policy for
construction and service contracts.

Where consideration is not specified in the contract with a
customer, and is therefore subject to variability, the Group
estimates the amount of consideration to be received fromits
customer. The measurement of varable consideration is
subject fo the constraining principle whereby revenue will only
be recognised {o the extent that it is highly probable that a
significant reversal in the amount of cumulative revenue wil
not cceur.

Additionally, where a modification to an existing contract occurs,
the Group assesses the nature of the modification and whether it
represents a new separate performance obligafion or whetherit is
a modfication to the existing performance obligation.

The Group does not expect to have any centracts where the
period between the request for payment for the transfer of
goods and services 1o the customer and the payment by the
customer exceeds one year, As a consequence, the Group
does not adjust its fransaction price for the time value of money.

The Group has an integrated supply chain model, offering
wide ranging construction related activities. Depending on the
nature of the product or service delivered and the timing of
when control is passed onto the customer, the Group will
account for the revenue over time or at a pointin time.

Revenue on a Group basis is recognised as follows:

— Revenue from construction and certain service activities is
recognised over ime and the Group uses the input method
to measure progress of delivery;

- Revenue from manufacturing activities and certain service
activities is recegnised at a point in time when title has
passed to the customer; and

- Revenue from plant hire activilies is recognised over time ¢s
performance oblkgations are satisfied.

Any consideration received from the customer in relation to
the mobilisation phase of a coniract is defered and
recognised as additional revenue relating to the peformance
obligations in the contract that benefit the customer.

The Company recognises revenue in respect of parent
company guarantee services provided to its subsidiaries. This
revenue is recognised over time as the performance
obligations are satisfied.

206 CONSTRUCTION AND SERVICE CONITRACTS

When the outcome of individual contracts can be estimated
reliably, contract revenue is recegnised by reference to the
stage of completion of each contract, as measured by the
proportion of total costs incurred as at the balance sheet date
compared to the estimated total cost of the contract.
Contract costs are expensed as incurred, Where multiple
contracts are signed to deliver a single commercial objective,
as agreed at the outset, elements such as initial works and
main works contracts, are treated as separate contracts, but
are viewed as representing a single performance obligation.
Accordingly. revenues and costs from these contracts are
accounted for using the curmulaiive catch-up method, with
revenue recegnised based on costs incurred as a proportion
of total expected costs across the contracts on an
aggregated basis. Management has made this judgement on
the basis that work performed under such separate legal
contracts constitutes a single performance obligation, as it
does not consider that distinct goods or services are provided
as a result of work performed under each contract from which
the customer can derive an identifiable benefiti.e. the
customer only benefits from the output of the contracts on a
combined basis. This judgement is separately evaluated for
every contract to ensure that the facts and circumstances
unique to each contract are considered and revenue is
accounted for appropriately.

Provision is made for all known or expected losses on individual
contracts once such losses are foreseen. Incremental costs
required to satisfy contract obligations are considered in this
assessment. As noted in note 2.02, amendments to IAS 37,
which were applicable for the Group as of 1 April 2022, require
an assessment of other costs directly relating to fulfiling
contracts 1o be included in the provision for all known or
expected losses as well as when assessing whether a contract
is loss making.
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2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.16 CONSTRUCTION AND SERVICE CONTRACTS
{CONTINUED)

Where costs incurred plus recognised profits less recegnised
losses exceed progress bilings, the balance is recognised as a
contract asset. Where progress bilings exceed costs incurred
plus recognised profits less recognised losses, the balance is
recognised as a contract ligbility. Contract assets include
retentions and are classified as a current asset unless recovery
is due in mare than one year.

Estimates of the final outcorme on each contract may include
cost contingencies to take account of specific risks within
each contract. Cost cantingencies are reviewed on a regular
basis throughout the lite of the contract and are adjusted
where appropriate. However, the nature of the risks on
projects is such that such risks often cannot be resolved until
the end of the project and therefore may not reverse until the
end of the project. The estimated final outcome on projects is
continually reviewed, recoveries from insurers are assessed
and adjustments are made where necessary.

Revenue in respect of variations te contracts and incentive
payments is recognised when there is an enfarceable right to
payment and it is highly probable it will be agreed by the
customer. Yariable consideration is assessed on an individual
confract basis according to the circumstances and tenmns of
each project and only recognised to the extent that it is highly
probable not to significantly reverse in the future.

2. 17 PRE-CONTRACT BID COSTS
Pre-contract costs are expensed as incumed.

218 FPENSION COSTS

The Group operates defined contribution pension schemes for
staff. The contributions paid by the Group and the employees
are invested in the pension fund within 30 days following
deduction. Once the contributions have been paid, the
Group, as employer, has no further payment obligations. The
Group's contributions are charged to the income statement in
the year to which they relate.

219 TAX

Tax expense represents the sum of the tax curently payable
and deferred tax. The cumrent tax expense is based on the
taxable profits for the vear, after any adjustments in respect of
prior years. Taxable profit differs from net profit as reported in
the income statement because it excludes items of income or
expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and it
also excludes iterns that are neither taxable nor deductiple.
The Group's liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates
and laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted
by the reporting date.

Deferred tax is provided on temporary differences arising from
investments in subsidiaries, associates, and joint ventures,
except where the timing of the reversal of the temporary
difference can be controlled and it is probable that the
difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred
taxes are not provided in respect of temporary differences
arnising from the initial recognition of goedwil, or from goodwill
for which amortisation is not deductible for fax purposes, or
from the initial recognition of an asset or liability in a
transaction which is not a business combination and affects
neither accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss at the time
of the transaction. Deferred income tax assets are recognised
to the extent that it is probable that tuture taxable protit will be
available against which the temporary differences can be

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS CONTINUED

utilised. Deferred tax is calculated at the taxrates based on
those enacted or substantively enacted at the bakance sheet
date and are expected to apply when the related asset is
realised or lability settied. Defered tax is charged or credited
in the income statement except when it relates to items
charged or credited directly te equity, in which case the
defered tax is alse included in equity.

Defered tax assets and liakilities are offset when there is a
legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets against
cument tax liakilities ond when the deferred tax assets and
iabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same tax authority
on either the same taxable entity or different taxable entities
whera thera is an intention to seftle the balances on a net basis.

Management pericdically evaluates paositions taken in tax
returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax
regulation is subject to interpretation. It establishes provisions
where appropriate on the basis of amounts expected to be
paid to the tax authorities.

2 20 BORROWINGS AND BORROWING COSTS
Interest-bearing bank loans and overdrafts are recognised
initially at fair value net of fransaction costs incurred.
Allborrowings are subsequently stated at ameortised cost
with the difference between initial net proceeds and
redempticn value recognised in the Income statement
over the period to redemption.

Bormowing costs are capitalised where the Group borows
funds specifically for the purpose of acquiring. constructing, or
producing a qualifying asset, in accordance with 1AS 23,
‘Bormrowing Costs'. All other finance costs of debt, including
premiums payable on setflement and direct issue costs, are
charged 1o the income stalement on an accruals basis over
the term of the instrument, using the effective interest method.

Bomowings are classified as current ligbilities unless the Group
has an unconditionairight to defer settlement of the liaksility for
atleast 12 months after the balance sheet date.

Changes in borrowings are assessed for modification or
extinguishment in accordance with IFRS 9, with a gain or loss
recognised in the income statement where required.

2.21 SHARE CAPITAL
Crdinary shares are classified as equity.

Incrermental costs directly attributable to the issue of new
ordinary shares or options are shown in equity as a deduction,
net of tax, from the proceeds.

222 EXCEPTIONAL TEMS

Exceptional items are defined as income or expenditure
relating to one-off everts which, in the opinion of the Directors,
are material, not expected to recur and unusual in nature or of
such significance that they require separate disclosure on the
face of the consolidated income statement in accordance
with |AS 1, 'Presentatfion of Financial Statements’. An
assessment is made of events occuning during the year on
both a quantitative and qualitative basis to determine which
events require separate disclosure because they do not relate
to the Group's underying performance.

2. 23TRADING ANALYSIS

Trading analysis information is based on the Group's internal
reporting structure. Further information on the business trading
activities is set out in the Strategic Report. Trading analysis
results present the directly attributable contribution of the
different business tfrading activities to the resulls of the Group
Transactions are conducted at am's length market prices.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS CONTINUED

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

224 INTEREST INCOME /(EXPENSE)

Inferest income/{expense) is recognised using the effective
interest method. In calculating interest income/{expense), the
effective interest rate is applied to the gross carying amount
of the asset, when the asset s not impaired or to the amortised
cost of the liability for interest expanse For financint rissets thert
have been impaired ofter initial recognition, interest income is
calculated by applying the effective interest rate to the
amertised cost of the financial asset. If the asset is no longer
impaired the interest income calcuiation reverts to the gross
carrying amaount.

2.25 GOVERNMENT GRANTS

Grants from the government are recognised at their fair value
where there is a reasonable assurance that the Group will
comply with all attached conditions and that the grant will be
received. Govemment grants are recognised in the income
statement over the period necessary to offset them against
the costs that they are intended to compensate.

226 KEY JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

The preparation of financial statements under IFRS requires
management tc make estimates and assumpticns that affect
amounts recegnised fer assets and liabilities at the balance
sheet date and the amounts of revenue and the expenses
incurred during the reporting period. Actual outcomes may
therefore differ from these estimates and assumptions. The
estimates and assumptions that have the most significant
impact on the canying value of assets and liabilities of the
Group within the next financial year are detailed as follows:

a) Revenue and margin recognition (judgement and
estimate)

The Group's revenue recognition and margin recognition
policies, which are set out in notes 2.15 and below, are central
to the way the Group valyes the work it has caried out in
each financial year and have been consistently applied.

Across the Group, 191 construction contracts (FY22: 188) were
revenue generating during the year, Of these 9 (FY22: 9)
individually had an impact of £5.0m or greater on operating
{toss}/profit.

The econamic outcomes of construction contracts are
principally determined by the confractual terms including how
revenue is calculated {which can include milestone
payments, progress-based payments, incentives, and gain-
share or pain-share). the type of service being provided /risks
being managed (for example traditional contracting or
construction management) and the actual operational and
financial performance versus forecast (at the time of contract
award or subsequently). Other externai factors can alko have
a materialimpact on performance, such as inflation, aspects
of design development, ground caonditions, and the
perfermance of subcontractors.

The key judgements and estimates relating to determining the
revenue and profit of these material contracts within the
Group's accounts are:

- Identification of separable performance obligations;

- Ensuring revenue recognised is highly probable, with specific
attention being paid ta the estimates of:

— Recoverability of ciaims and variations from clients for
changes in condition/scope;

— Revenue receivable in relation to achievement of gain-
share [or pain-share), milestones, and other incentive
arangements; and

— Deductions for any damages levied by a client, e.g. for
late handover.

— Percentage of completion of the project versus the planned
cost programme;

— Achievability of the planned build programme;
— Forecast cost to complete [including contingencies); and

— Allowances for post-practical completion works {including
rectification of defects).

Each contract is freated on its merits and subject to a regular
review of the revenue and costs to complete by the project
team and senior management. The level of estimation
uncertainty in the Group's construction business is mitigated
by:

- The processes in place regarding the selection of projects
during the bid/work-winning phase;

- The level of experience of management and the Board in
delivering projects and accounting for the various types of
projects; and

— The processes in place to identify and mitigate issues
promptly.

Volatility is also reduced by the effect of managing a
significant portfolio of proiects.

Nevertheless, the profit recognition in our construction business
is a key estimate, due to the variety of contract terms and the
inherent uncertainties in any construction project.

The estimation techniques used for revenue and profit
recognition on construction contracts require forecasts to be
made of the ocutcome of long-term contracts which require
assessments and judgements to be made on the recovery of
pre-contract costs, changes in the scope of work, contract
programmes, maintenance and defects liobilities, and
changes in costs,

Within its portfolio of contracts in the Europe Hub, the Group
has identified mdjor sources of estimation uncertainty where it
has made significant judgements on the recovery of income
related to variations in scope, delays, and other claims, as well
as whether penalties, such as liquidated damages, will be
levied by customers. For recoveries recognised in respect of
each judgement, they have been recorded on the basis that
it is considered highly probable that a significant reversal of
such revenues recognised will not occurin the next year.
When determining whether a contract is onerous, the
fkelihcod of the recavery of additional income is censidered
over the life of the contract. Where the receipt of income is
probable, this is Included in the Group’s consideration of
whether the contract is onerous, There are a range of factors
influencing potential outcomes, and, as such, the exact
recoverable amounts are subject to change until agreements
are finalised on these specific contracts.

The Group estimates that the possible outcomes impacting
the revenue recognised in the financial year ended 31 March
2023 range from a potential gain of up to £76.3mto a
potential risk of up fo £14.4m, with a comesponding impact on
gross margin of a potential gain of up to £104.2m and a
potential risk of up to £38.9m.
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NOTES TC THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS CONTINUED

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

226 KEY JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY [CONTINUED)

a) Revenue and morgin recognition {judgement and
estimate) (continued)

The Group estimates that the possible outcomes over the life
of the contracts, which is particularly relevant when
considering the extent to which any confract is cnerous, range
from a potential gain of up to £126.2m to a potfential risk of up
to £47.0m. These changes in outcomes may require
reassessment of the cumulative gross margin recognised or
judgement as to whether an onerous provision is required. The
direciors have assessed the range of possitle outcomes based
on information available to them at the date of approving the
financial statements to the extent it provides evidence of
conditions that existed at the balance sheet date. As with any
judgement related to long-term contract accaunting, these
contracts are affected by uncertainties that are influenced by
future events. and, therefore, it may require revision as the
contracts progress.

There are two contracts included in the aggregated andlysis
above where negotiations are ongoing with clients and the
Group expects these to conclude during FY24. The Group
currently assesses that, for these contracts, a reasonably
passible potential gain of up to £81.7m orioss ofup to £23.1m
couid be recognised during Fr24.

Qur construction and services business revenue for the year
was £1.9bn {FY22: £1.7 bn) with an associated negative margin
of 2.3 per cenf (FY22: margin of 7.7 per ceni}. Should margins
reduce by 1 per cent the impact of such a change across the
Group's projects in delivery at the yearend would be an
impact on gross loss of £19.0m (FY22: on gross profit £17.5m).
Should revenues reduce by 1 per cent and the associated
costs reduce by 1 per cent, the impact on gross loss would be
£0.5m (FY22: on gross profit £1.3m).

b) Disputes and claims (judgement and estimate)
Management’s best judgement has been reflected in the
accounting and reporting of disputed armounts, legal cases,
and claims, but the actual future outcome may be different
from this judgement.

From time to time, the Group receives claims from
subcontractors that it must evaluate in estimating the costs to
complete on contracts and resolve as part of determining its
final contract positions. Management bases its estimates of
costs associated with such claims on its assessment of the
expected outcame of each matter using the latest available
information. There is inherent uncerainty associated with the
estimates made by management and any differences
between these estimates and the eventual amcunts settled
may be material. However, given the extent of subcontractor
claims at any given point in time, as is common within the
sector, and as the quantum of amounts being claimed is not
always known, it is not possibie fo provide any meaningful
sensitivities of the estimates that have been made.

c} Exceptional items presentation (judgement and
estimate)

Judgement has been used to determine the presentation of
exceptional itemns. which relate to matters arising that are
unusual and generally not expected to recur. The exceptional
item arising in the year was a one-off write down of intangible
assets of £2.4m (FY22: £nil).

d) Accrued costs inrespect of rectification of defects
{estimate)

There is estimation uncertainty in assessing accrued costs in
respect of the rectification of defects, which are based on
management's best estimate of the cosi to be incured as at
the reporting date either to reciify the defects or setile

claims received.

In the year ended 31 March 2023, cosis in respect of the
rectification of defects of £25.3m (FY22: £15.5m) were incurred.
As disclosed in note 24, as at 31 March 2023, the Group held
liabilities, included in provisions, of £51.1m, (FY22: £46.3m] in
respect of such defect rectification, Defect lokilities can arise
on projects where the construction work finished a number of
years ago and where fhe Group may nof have access to the
site 1o fully assess the costs of rectification or where the likely
settlement amount for defects when a claim has been
received may be hard to determine. Therefore, it is difficult to
provide meaningful sensitivity disclosures of the range of
estimation uncertainty. However, as an indication of the
estimation uncerainty associated with this balance, a 10 per
cent movement in the balance would have an impact on the
consolidated income statement of £5.1m {FY22: £4.6m),
although actual movements may be greater and the final
outcome materally different to the amounts provided.

e) Going concern {judgement and estimate)

In preparing these consolidated financial statements using the
going concem basis of accounting, management has
considered the forecast future cash flows of the Group under
a management case scenario and several downside
scenarios {see pages 21 to 23 of the Directars' Report).
Forecast future cash flows include the following areas of
estimation uncerainty:

- Work winning for the Group:

— Construction activity including project margins and working
capital position;

- Support of the supply chain in tenms of product maternial,
labour supply and flexibility in payment terms;

- Inflaftionary pressures;
— Disruption to the supply chain;

— Timing and gquantum of cutcemes of claims referred to in
note 2.26b}); and

— Structural drivers for construction work.

In order to form a conclusion on going concem and in
determining that there is no material uncertainty that may cast
significant doubt on the Group's going concern status.,
management has exercised judgement by analysing the past
performance of the business, its existing portfolio of projects
and order book, and its expectation of work winning. in
addition it has drawn on its knowledge and expertise of key
drivers of cash flow performance in the censtruction sector in
the markets in which it operates to assess the forecast liquidity
and covenant headroom under jts committed financing
facilities based on its severe but plausible downside scenario,
Further details of this assessment and the key assumptions
made are set out an pages 21 1o 23
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2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

226 KEY JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (CONTINUEDR)

f) Tax{judgement and estimate)

The Group is subject to tax in a numkser of jurisdictions, and
judgement is required in determining the worldwide provision
for income taxes including the recognition of deferred tax
assets. The Group provides for future liabilities in respect of
uncertain tax positions where it is probabie that additional tax
may become payable in future periods and such provisions
are based upon management's assessment of exposures.
Assets are only recognised where it is probable that additional
tax will become payable in future periods and that the asset
can be utilised.

The recognised deferred tax assets include £94.4m (FY22:
£35.8m) which relate to carried forward tax losses in relation to
UK operations. The Group has concluded that these deferred
tax assets wil be recovered using the estimated future taxable
income, which is based on the approved forecasts prepared
by management, These forecasts fully reflect current UK tax
laws that, in broad terms, restrict the offset of the caried
forward fax losses to 50 per cent of the forecast period’s profit
and that the tax losses do not have an expiry date.

Deferred tax assets will be utiised over a period of up to 15
years from the balance sheet date. Should the approved
forecast profits increase/reduce by 30 per cent in each year
used in the utilisation calculation, it would take -/+ 3 years to
utllise the deferred tax asset.

At the balance sheet date, a total tax liability of £1.0m (FY22:
£1.0m} has been recognised in respect of uncertain tax
positions.

Due to the nature of the uncertainty associated with such fax
items, a very limited range of outcomes is possible — either the
tax provision becomes payable or not — and therefore it is not
practicable to provide sensitivity estimates.

2.27 OTHER JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

a) Impairment of goodwill (estimate}

Determining whether goodwill is impaired requires an
estimation of the recoverable amounts of the cash generating
unit (CGU} to which the goodwill has been allecated. The
recoverable amount is determined using a value-in-use
calculation, which requires an estimation to be made of the
fiming and amount of future cash flows expected to arise from
the CGU, and a suitable discount rate in order to calculate the
present value. The discount rate used, carrying value of
goocdwill and further details of the impairment calculation are
included in note 12,

Management has concluded that any reasonable updates to
the estimates associated with these areas of the financial
staterments are not expected to result in rmaterial change.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS CONTINUED

b) Climate change (judgement and estimote)

I preparing the consolidated financial statements
management has considered the impact of climate change.
Potential impacts of climate change, which include increased
intensity and frequency of weather events and stricter
environmental legislation, have been considered by
management, together with the Group's stated target of
becoming operationally net zerc by 2030 and developing
plans to achieve nel cero Scope 3 emissions by 2050 to the
extent these can be forecast at present. These considerations
did not have a material impact on the financial reporting
judgements and estimates and climate change is not
expected to have a significant impact on the Group's going
concem assessment to March 2025,

Spectific areas considered by management included:

— Estimates of the future cash flows used in the impairment
assessment of the carrying value of goodwill where the
forecasts used include the impact of climate change to the
extent that these can be forecast at present (see note 12};

— Long-term contract accounting assumptions, such as the
forecast costs of a project and as these progress. the
astimated costs to complete and the allowance for
rectification works (see note 2.26q);

— The appropriateness of the estimated useful economic kves
of the Group's property, plant, and equipment and right-ot-
use assets (see notes 16 and 17) where no significant
changes are currently needed; and

— The recoverability of deferred tax assets recognised (see
note 25) in respect of cared forward losses in relation to the
UK operations.

The Group continues to invest in new technologies and
product development including a project to decarbonise
manufactured concrete compoenents used in construction.
The costs of these projects are currently being expensed as
incurred.

228 COMPANY ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied by the Company
are the same as those presented in notes 2,01 to 2.24, to the
extent that the Group's transactions and balances are
applied to the Company financial statements. The main
accounting policies which are not directly relevant to the
Laing O'Rourke Plc parent company financial statements are
those relating to consolidation accounting and the
recognition and subsequent measurement of goodwil. The
judgements and estimation uncerainty policies that are not
relevant to the company are 2.260), 2.26b), 2.26c). 2.24d).

The accounting policies that are additional to those applied
by the Group are as follows:

a) Investments in subsidiaries

Investments in subsidiaries are stated at cost less, where
appropriate, provisions for impairment. Costs that are
incremental and directly attributable to the acquisition of
investments are capitalised.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS CONTINUED

228 COMPANY ACCOUNTING POLICIES
[CONTINUED)

b) Other judgements and estimation uncertainty
ij iImpairment of investments in subsidiaries (estimate]

The Company periodically evatuates the recoverability of
investments in subsidiaries whenever indicators of impaiment
are present. Indicators of impairment include such items as
declines in revenues, €amings or cash flows or maierial
adverse changes in the economic or political stabllity of a
parficular country, which may indicate that the present
catrying cimount of an asset is not recaverable and that a
reduction in the subsidiary's camying value is to be included in
the Company's incame statement for the financial period.

ii} Service arrangement with a fellow Group undertaking
(judgement)

The Company has a ight-of-use asset which is utilised as a
manufacturing faciity by a fellow Group undertaking. There is
no written contract regarding the temms of the arangement,
however the arrangement is such that the fellow Group
undertaking must obioin pemmission from the Company if they
want to sell its products fo parties outside of the Group. The
directors have considered the guidance in Appendix B of IFRS
16 ‘Leases’ and have concluded fhat in the opinion of the
directars, the manufacturing faciiity is controlled by the
Company and hence the arrangement does not a constitute
alease.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS CONTINUED

3  REVENUE

The Group presents a disaggregation of its revenue according to the primary geographical markets and sectors in which it
operates. There is no material difference between revenue by origin and revenue by destination.

The Group derives revenue from the transfer of goods and services over fime and at a point in time in the following geographical

regions and major segments:

Unlted Kingdom! Rest of Werld Total
2023 2023 2023
£m £m £m

Timing of revenue recognition
At a pointin fime 228.7 04 2291
Over time o 20608 - 2,060.8
Revenue including share of joint ventures 2,289.5 0.4 2,289.%
At a point in fime 13.0 0.4 134
QOver fime 20215 - 20215
Group revenue 20345 04 2,034.9
Construction’ Manutacturing Ptont Hire Services Total
2023 2023 2023 2023 2023
£m £m £m £m £m

Timing of revenue recognition
At a point in time - 106 - 218.5 229.1
Over fime - B 1,879.8 - N7s 3.5 ~2,050.8
Revenve including share of joint ventures 1,879.8 104 17.5 2820 22899
At a pointin fime - 10.6 - 28 134
Over time 1,879.8 - 78.2 63.5 2,021.5
Group revenue 1,879.8 10.6 78.2 66.3 2,034.9

1. Included within UK and Corstruction revenue is £2.5m relating to significant financing components,

United Kingdom'! Rest of Word Testal
022 2022 207
£m £Em £m

Timing of revenue recognition
At a pointin time 166.6 0.3 1669
QOver time 1.826.1 - 1.826.1
Revenue including share of joint ventures 1.992.7 0.3 1.993.0
At a point in fime 153 0.3 15.4
Over time 1,791.7 - 1.791.7
Group revenue 1.807.0 03 1,807.3
Construciion Manufactunng Plant Hire Services Total
22 072 2022
£m Em £m £rm £m

Tirming of revenue recognition
At a point in time - 12.3 - 154.6 1669
Qver time 1.629.9 - 114.5 81.7 1,826.1
Revenue including share of joint ventures 1,629.9 12.3 114.5 236.3 1.993.0
At a point in time - 12.3 - 33 15.6
Over time 1.629.9 - 80.0 81.8 1.791.7
Group Revenue 1,629.9 12.3 80.0 85.1 1,807.3

1. Included within UK and Construction revenue is £2.4m relating to sigrificant financing components,
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS CONTINUED

4 TRADING ANALYSIS

This note provides additional value to the readers of these consolidated financial statements using some non-statutory disclosures,

as explained below.

2023

2022

£m £m
Managed revenue* 2.530.8 22092
Less: Inter-segment revenue” (240.9) 1236.2)
Total revenue including share of joint ventures* 2,289.9 1,993.0
Less: Share of joint ventures revenue {255.0) [185.7)
Group revenue 2,0349 1,807.3
{Loss)/profit before tax post-exceptional items - {188.3) 162
EB{T* post-exceptional fems (171.8) 290
EBITDA* post-exceptional items (135.8) 62.3
(Loss)/profit belore tax and exceptional items {185.9) 14.2
EBIT* pre-excepfional tems (1469.2) 29.0
EBITDA* pre-excepfional fems {133.4) 62.3
* These are non-statulory disclosures. EBIT is defined as profit/{loss) from operations and EBTDA is defined as profit/ {loss) from operations and adding back
depreciation aond amortisation. See note 31 for more detoils.
Excepfional
Pre- exceptional fems Pre- exceptional Exceptionalitems
tems (note 5) Total items (mote &) Toial
2023 23 2023 022 022 2022
EBIT and EBITDA: Note £m £m £m £m Em £m
EBIT (169.2) (2.4) (171.6) 290 - 2%.0
Depreciation 6 32.5 - 325 30.1 - 30.1
Amortisation 6 33 - 33 3.2 — 3.2
EBITDA (133.4) (2.4} (135.8) 62.3 - 62.3
§ EXCEPTIONAL ITEMS
2023 2022
Em Em
Write off of intangibles 2.4 -
Exceptional costs before tax 2.4 -
Income tax credit on exceplional iterms {0.5) -
Exceptional costs after tax 1.9 -

WRITE OFF OF INTANGIBLE ASSETS

During the vear, the Directors performed a one-off review of the Group's intangible assets including development costs. As a result
of this review exceptional write offs of £2.4m (FY22: £nil) were recognised.
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NOGITES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS CONTINUED

6 (LOSS)/PROFIT FROM OPERATIONS

{Loss)/profit rom operations is stated after charging/{ crediting): Note zgzr: 20£2n:
Staff costst 7 5294 4929
Depreciation of property, plant, and equipment 16 8.9 2.5
Depreciation of right-of-use assets 17 23.6 206
Shortterm jease rentals and short-term hires:

Property, pleint, and ogquipment 0.9 30
Amortisation of other intangible assets 12 33 3.2
pProfit on disposal of plant and equipment, and right-of-use assets (.7 (1.2)
Foreign exchange losses/[gains) 0.5 {0.1)
Amount of inventories recognised as an expense 335 353
Research and development recognised as an expense 46.6 330
Accrued costs in respect of rectification of defective works 253 15.5
Intercompany balances waived by the other Group entities (3.2) -
Government grants {0.9) (1.4)
Auditors' remuneration (see below) 3.7 3.1
1. Staff costs for FY22 have been restated in the table above to correct a prior year error. Staff costs have increased by £4.9m from £488.0m to £492.9m.

2023 2022
Auditors’ remuneration £m £m
Fees payable to the Company's auditors for the audit of:

The Company's subsidiaries pursuant to legislation 3.2 28

The Company's annuat financial statements and consolidated financial statements 0.5 0.3
Total audit fees 37 3.1
Fees payable to the Company's auditors and its associates for other services - -
Total non-aydit fees L _ o o = -
Totalfees 3.7 3.1

Included within the FY23 CGroup audit fee of £3.7m is £0.7m of Group audit fee overruns in respect of FY22 (FY22: £0.6m in respect

of FY21).

Laing O'Rourke Plc |

52



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS CONTINUED

7  STAFF COSTS AND EMPLOYEE NUMBERS

2023 2022
Number of employees Nurmber Number
The average monthly number of employees (including Directors) during the year was:

Executives 114 95
Salaried statf 3,738 3,506
Operatives 3,132 2,980

' 4,984 6,581

Aggregate remuneration and related costs, including Directors G et
Wwages and salanes! 452.8 426.4
Social security costs! 546 47.6
Other pension costs 220 189
5294 4929

1. Salaies and socidl security costs for FY22 have been restated in the table above to corect a prior year emor. Salaries have increasad by £4.8m from £421.6m
to £4246.4m. Social security costs have increased by £0.1m from £47.5m to £47.6m.

A 31 March 2023 £3.5m (FY22: £3.1m} was payable in respect of defined contribution schemes and included in other payables
{note 23).

TRANSACTIONS WITH KEY MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL
The Group's key management personnel during the year include the six Directors and eighteen other members (FY22: six Directors
and fifteen other members) who served on the Furopean board during the year or are Directors of enfities within the Group.

The cormpensation of key managerment personnel (excluding Directors) is as follows:

2023 022
£€m £m
Sajaries and other short-term employee benefits! 7.0 7.6

1. Compensation of key management personnel for FY22 hos been represented in the: table above to corect a pror year error. Casts have increased by £1.7m
from £5.9m to £7.6m.

DIRECTORS" REMUNERATION
The total remuneration of the Directors was as foliows:

2023 2022
£m £m
Salaries and other short-term benefits! 43 6.6

1. Directors' remunergtion for FY22 has been restated in the table above to comect a prior year eror. Costs have increased by £1.5m from £5.1m to £6.6m.

One of the Directors is accruing benefits under a defined confribution scheme (FY22: onel. No postretirement benefits were paid
on behalf of Directors (FY22: £nil}. The total compensation for all key management personnel {including Directors) is £12.6m (FY22:
£11.0m}. The remuneration for some of the Directors of the Company is borne by Laing O'Rourke Services Limited, a subsidiary
undertaking of the Cormpany.

HIGHEST-PAID DIRECTOR
Amounts included above:

2023 2022
£m £mi
Aggregate emoluments and other benefits! 1.0 1.3

1. Aggregate emoluments and other benefits for FY22 nas been restated in the 1able above 1o comect a pror year eror. Costs have increased by £0.3m from
£1.0mto£1.3m.

8 OTHER OPERATING INCOME

2023 022
£m £m

Research and development expenditure credit 9.7 47
Rents received 0.1 0.1

Other operating income - S . . SN
o - 103 48

The research and development expenditure credit is based on an assessment of recoverability from HMRC.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS CONTINUED

9 FINANCE INCOME

2023 2022
£m £m
Bank interest 0.6 -
Other interest and similar income - 0.1
0.5 01
10 FINANCE EXPFNSF
2023 2022
£m £m
Interest payable on bank loans and overdrafts 2.1 2.4
Interest payable on lease liabilities 7.4 31
inferest payable to other Laing G'Rourke Corporation Group entities 2.1 1.6
Other interest payable and similar charges 57 58
17.3 12.9
11 TAXATION
2023 2022
£m £m
Current corporation tax
Current fax on income for the year - -
Foreign tax
Current fax on income for the year - 0.7
Adjustments in respect of proryears o B o o 1.2 __{0.0)
Total current tax charge 1.2 0.6
Net origination of temporary differences — current year (49.1) 23
Adiustments in respect of prior years (5.0) (0.5)
Impact of change in tax rate (6.5) (6.4)
Total defered tax credit (50.8) {4.6)
Tax credit {59.4) {4.0)

The overall credit [FY22: credit) for the year of £59.4m (FY22: credit of £4.0m) is explained relative to the UK statutory rate of 19 per
cent (FY22: 19 per cent) below:

2023 2022
£m £m
Total tax reconciliation
{Loss)/profit befare 1ax {188.3) 16.2
Tax at the UK corporation tax rate of 19% (FY22:19%) (35.8) 3.1
Effects of:
- (lower)/higher overseas tax rates (0.1) 0.7
- (income not subject to tax)/other expenditure that is not tax deductible (5.7) 1.1
- adjustments in respect of prior years {3.8) (0.6)
-impact of change in UK tax rate (15.4) (6.5)
- unrecognised deferred tax asset 1.4 2.1
- other adjustments - 03
Tolal tax credit (59.4) (4.0)

A total Group tax credit (FY22: credit) of £59.4m (FY22: £4.0m) arises for the year on the total Group loss of £188.3m (FY22: profit of
£16.2m). The tolal tax credit far the year ncludes an exceptional tax credit of £0.5m [FY22: £nil) in relation o tax-allowable
exceptional expenditure for the write down of costs (see note 5).

On 20 June 2023, Finance (No.2) Act 2023 was substantively enacted in the UK, infroducing a global minimum effective tax rate of
15 per cent. The legisiation implements a domestic top-up tax and a multinational top-up tax, effective for accounting periods
starfing on or after 31 December 2023, The Group does not account for deferred tax on tap-up taxes and, therefore, if these rules
had been substantively enacted on the balance sheet date, there would have been noimpact.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS CONTINUED

11 TAXATION {CONTINUED)

On 3 March 2021, the UK government announced that from 1 April 2023 the corporation tax rate would rise from 12 per cent to 25
per cent. This new law was substantively enacted on 24 May 2021 and therefore UK deferred tax assets and liabiities, which were
previously recognised at 19 per cent, were recalculated at 25 per cent resulting in a £6.5m credit during FY22.

A further £15.4m credit has been recognised during FY23, £6.5m arises due to a change in our utilisation of brought forwaird tax

losses and £8.9m arises due to temporary differences {primarily losses and accelerafed capifal alowances) originating during the
current year.

The UK Finance Act 2021 announced a 130 per cent super-deduction for expenditure on qualifying assets incurred from 1 April
2021 unfil the end of March 2023 and a 50 per cent first year allowancc was infroduced for special rate assets. The Group is
expecting to claim this relief on £55.5m of additions during FY23 [FY22: £49.6m) across property. plant, and equipment, right-of-use
assets, and intangible assels,

TAX EFFECITS RELATING TO EACH COMPONENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

2023 2022

Belore-fax Net.ol-tax Befare-tax Net-cl-tax
amount Tax credtt amount amount Tox expense amount
£m £m Em Em £m £m

Exchange differences on franslating foreign
operations {1.5) - (1.5) {0.8) - {0.8)
Movement in fair value of financial assets - - - (0.7) - (0.7)
(1.5) - (1.5) (1.5) - [1.5)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS CONTINUED

12 INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Computer
softweare and Developrment

Group Gcm:rirl\l Ihe"i::n coﬁﬁ h:'::
Cost
At 1 April 2022 247 1.3 62 722
Additions - 53 1.1 6.4
Disposals - 2.1) (4.4) {6.5)
Transfers - (7.0} 7.0 -
Exchange differences - 0.3 - 0.3
At 31 March 2023 247 378 9.9 72.4
Accumulated amortisation and impairment
At 1 April 2022 - 28.2 34 316
Amortisation for the year - 33 - 33
Disposals - (0.8) (3.4) (4.2)
Exchange differences - 0.3 - 0.3
At 31 March 2023 - 31.0 - 31.0
Net book value at 31 March 2023 24.7 68 9.9 M4
Cost
At April 2021 24.7 33.4 5.1 63.2
Additions - 77 1.1 88
Exchange differences - 0.2 - 0.2
At 31 March 2022 24.7 41.3 6.2 722
Accumulated amortisation and impairment
At T April 2021 - 24.8 34 28.2
Amortisafion for the year - 32 - 32
Exchange differences - 0.2 - 0.2
At 31 March 2022 - 28.2 3.4 31.6
Net beook value at 31 March 2022 24.7 13.1 28 40.4
IMPAIRMENT TESTS FOR CASH-GENERATING UNITS CONTAINING GOODWILL

2023 20022

£m £m

United Kingdom 24.7 24,7

The Group owns several engineeting, construction, manufacturing, and specialist services companies, which combine to provide
clients with a cormprehensive investrment, development, and management capability and due to the set up of the approach to
market, management is of the view that the UK enfifies as a whole is the smallest group of assets generating cash inflows that are
largely independent of the cash inflows from other assets. Therefore animpairment test is performed for the UK entities as a whole
given that all UK entifies collaborate to operate as one CGU.

The recoverable amount of goodwill attached to the cash generating unit (CGU) is determined based on value-in-use
calculations in accordance with IAS 34, Impairment of Assets. The CGU calcuiation uses cash flow projections based on four-year
financial budgets approved by management. The CGU calculation uses a perpetual growth rate of 2 per cent based on industry
data (FY22: 2 per cent), discounted at the Group's estimaled pre-tax weighted average cost of capital of 12.4 per cent (FY22:
13.3 per cent). Budgeted gross margins are based on past performance and management’s market expectations. The weighted
average cost of capitalis an estimate based on that of listed industry competitors, adjusted for changes in capital structures and
specific considerations.

Sensitivity analysis, including the potential impact of inflafion, supply chain disruption and climate change, has been performed
on the goodwillin relation to the CGU by changing the key assumptions applicable. in the view of the Directors there is not a
reasonably foreseeable change in a key assumption that would frigger an impairment charge,

Assumed revenue growth is ¢ per cenf for FY24, 3 per cent for FY25, 2 per cent for FY26 and 2 per cent for FY27 and gress margin is
assumed fo increase from é per centin FY24 to 11 per cent in FY27. Overheads are assumed to remain stable during the forecast
period at approximately 3 per cent of revenue.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS CONTINUED

12 INTANGIBLE ASSETS (CONTINUED)

AMORTISATION CHARGE
The amortisation charges in respect of computer software and licences and development costs are recognised in the following
line item in the consolidated income statement:

2023 2022

£m im
Administrative expenses 3.3 32
13 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES
Subsidiary
Undertakings
_ Shares
Company £m
Cost
At 1 April 2022 291.4
Acquisitions 0.9
Al 31 March 2023 292.3
Impairment
ALY April 2022 (70.1)
Provisiaon for the year (1.6)
At 31 March 2022 and 31 March 2023 (71.7)
Net book value
At 31 March 2023 220.6
At 31 March 2022 2213

The Directors believe that the canrying value of the individual investments are supported by their underlying net assets or forecast
cash flows,

SUBSIDIARY UNDERTAKINGS SHARES

Subsicliary
The two companies listed below were acquired from other Group entities for their book values on 1 April 2022 unded-:&g:
as part of the UK Group restructure £m
Cellence Plus Limited 0.9
John Laing International Limited _
Acquisitions 0.9

All of the subsidiary companies have been included in the conselidated financial statements.

Certain subsidiaries of the Group have opted to take advantage of a statutary exemption from having an audit in respect of

their individual statutory accounts. Strict criteria must be met for this exemption fo be taken and it must be agreed to by the
directors of those subsidiary entities. Listed in note 37 are subsidiaries controlled and consolidated by the Group where the
directors have taken advantage of the exemption from having an audit of the entities’ individual financial statements for the year
ended 31 March 2023 in accordance with Section 479A of the Companies Act 2006.

In order to facilitate the adopfion of this exemption, Laing O'Rourke Plc, the parent company of the subsidiaries concemed,
undertakes to provide a guarantee under Section 479C of the Companies Act 2004 in respect of those subsidiaries.

14 DISPOSALS AND DISSOLUTIONS

DISSOLUTIOMS

Maravale Investments (UK) Limited and Strongforce Engineering Limited on 30 August 2022,
Canal Harbour Development Company Limited on ¢ January 2023,

Sundera Holdings Limited on 8 July 2023.

DISPOSALS
New City Vision Holdings Limited on 28 March 2023.
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NQOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS CONTINUED

15 INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES AND LOANS TO JOINT VENTURES

Joint ventures

equity Loans to joint

invesiments ventures Total
Group £m £m Em
At 1 April 2022 (5.5) 8.0 25
Capital injections in equity investments 42 - 42
Exchange ditterences ) _ 0.1 = 0.1
At 31 March 2023 (1.2) 8.0 68
Share of results for the year after tax 2.8 - 28
Net book value at 31 March 2023 1.4 8.0 9.6
At 1 April 2021 (33.7) 41.6 79
Capital injections in equity investments 0.8 - c8
Acquisition of the remaining shares in Canal Harour Development Company 34.4 (34.4) -
Fair value revaluation of financial assets (©.7) - {0.7)
Exchange differences 0.2) 0.8 0.6
At 31 March 2022 0.6 80 8.6
Share of resulls for the yeor after tax (6.1) - (6.1)
Net book value at 31 March 2022 (5.5) 8.0 2.5

The Group's share of joint venture investments and loans to joint ventures is presented above. IFRS 11, Joint Amangements, requires
the following presentation adjustments:

— Where the Group has already accounted for an obligation to fund net liabilities of a joint venture this is deducted from loans
made to the joint venture; and

— Where the Group's cbligation to fund net liabilities of a joint veniure exceeds the amount loaned, a provision is recorded (see
note 24).

The Group's investments in joint ventures are presented in the statement of financial position as:

2023 2022

£m Em

Investments in joint ventures 8.3 5.5
Loans to joint ventures 8.0 80
Provisicns (note 24} (6.7) {11.0)
9.6 2.5

The loan to joint ventures is unsecured, aitracts interest at a fixed rate of 11.74 per cent, has no fixed date of repayment and is
repayable on demand.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS CONTINUED

15 INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES AND LOANS TO JOINT VENTURES (CONTINUED)
The joint ventures are shown in note 37. Each joint venture has share capital consisting solely of ordinary shares, which is held by
the Group. Each joint venture is a private company and there is no quoted market price available for its shares.

Set out below s the summarised financial information for the joint ventures which are material to the Group. The information
disclosed reflects the amounts presented in the financial statements of the relevant joint ventures and not Laing O'Rourke Plc's
share of these amounts. They have been amended to reflect adjustments made by the entity when using the equity method
including fair value adjustments and modifications for differences in accounting policies.

Health Menfreal
Collective CJV
Lirmited Explore Transport  BYLOR Sevvices
Fartnership Alder Hey Limited Limited Other Total
2023 2023 2023 2023 2023 2023
£m £m £m £m £fm £m
Revenue - 25 787 429.3 - R10.5
Depreciation and amottisation - - {(7.7) - - (7.7)
Other expenses - (2.1) (64.5) (429.3) - (496.0)
Operating profit - 04 6.4 - - 6.8
Net finance income/(cos!s} - 0.3 (1.3) - - (1.0)
Profit before tax - 0.7 5.1 - - 58
Tax expense - - - - - -
Profit after tax - 0.7 5.1 - - 58
Other comprehensive result - - - - - -
Total comprehensive income - 0.7 5.1 - - 58
Dividends received from joint ventures - - - - - -
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment - - 350 - - 350
Ofther non-cument assets - 109.2 - - - 109.2
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents 1.0 18.1 4.9 17.7 - 41.7
Ofther current assets 11.5 3.1 14.4 342 - $3.2
Total assets 12.5 130.4 54.3 51.9 - 249.1
Current liabilities
Borowings - - (3.2) - - (3.2)
Other current liabilities (25.9} (3.3) {11.4} (51.9) - (92.5)
Non-current liabilities
Borrowings - (120.7) (20.8) - - (141.5)
Other non-cument liabilities - {5.7) {2.8) - - (8.5)
Total liabilities (25.9) (129.7) (38.2) (51.9) - (245.7)
Net (liabilities)/assels (13.4) 0.7 16.1 - - 34

Financial commitments - - - - - -

Capital commitments - - - - - -

Please refer o note 37 for details of the place of business.
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NQOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS CONTINUED

15 INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES AND LOANS TO JOINT VENTURES (CONTINUED)

Healin Montreal
Colectve: C1V

Limited Explore Tronsport BYLOR Services
Partnership Alkder Hey timited Limited Other Total
2022 2022 2022 2022 2072 2022
£m Em £m Em £m £m
Revenue - 3.8 68.9 299.6 - 3723
Depreciation and amortisation - - (6.4} - - {6.4})
Other expenses (10.7) (8.6) (59.0) (299.6) - (377.9)
Operating (loss)/profit (10.7) {4.8) 3.5 - - (12.0)
Net finance income/(costs) - 0.1 (0.8) - - (0.7}
(Loss)/profit before fax {10.7) (4.7) 27 - - (12.7)
Tax expense - — {©5 - - {0.5)
(Loss)/profit after tax {10.7) (4.7} 2.2 - - {13.2)
Other comprehensive result - - - - - -
Total comprehensive (expense)/income (10.7) (4.7} 2.2 - -~ {13.2)
Dividends received from joint ventures - - - — - -
Non-cumrent assets
Property, plant and equipment — - 34,2 - — 34.2
Cther non-cumrent assets - 114.4 - - - 114.4
Current assefs
Cash and cash equivalents 1.3 16.3 4.1 12.2 - 33.9
Other current assets 12.0 2.1 149 7.0 - 36.0
Total assets 13.3 132.8 53.2 19.2 - 218.5
Cumrent liabilities
Borowings - - (4.8) - - (4.8)
Other current liabilities (35.4) (5.6) (17.0) (19.2} — (77.2)
Non-cument liabilities
Borrowings - {121.8) (17.8) - - (139.4)
Other non-current liakilities - - (2.7) - - (2.7)
Total liabilities (35.4) (127.4) (42.3) (19.2) - (224.3)
Net {liabilities)/assets (22.1} 5.4 10.9 - — (5.8)
Financial commitments — — - - — -
Capital commitments - - - - - -
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NCOTES TO THE FINANTIAL STATEMENTS CONTINUED

15 INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES AND LOANS TO JOINT VENTURES (CONTINUED)

daint ventures

equity Loans fo jont

invesiments ventures Total
Company £m £m im
AP T April 2022 _ S B - _80 8.0
Net book value at 31 March 2023 - 8.0 8.0
At Y April 2021 0.7 80 87
Far value revaluation of financial assets (0.7) — {0.7)
Net book value at 31 March 2022 - 80 8.0

The Company's investment in joint ventures and loans to joint ventures is presented clove. IFRS 11, Joint Arrangements, requires

the following presentation adjustments:

— Where the Company has already accounted for an obligation to fund net liabilities of a joint venture this is deducted from loans

made to the joint venture; and

— Where the Company's obligation to fund net labilities of a joint venture exceeds the amount loaned. a provision is recorded

[see note 24).

The Company's investments in joint ventures are presented in the statement of financial position as:

2023 022
£m £m
Invesimenits in joint ventures - -
Loans to joint ventures 8.0 8.0
8.0 8.0

No impairments of equity investments were brought forward at 31 March 2022 or charged in the year (FY22 £nil}.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS CONTINUED

16 PROPERTY, PLANT, AND EQUIPMENT

Land Plant, equipment,

and buildings' and vehicles Total
Group £m £m £m
Cost
At T April 2022 30.2 127.0 157.2
Addlitions 1.4 8.7 8.1
Disposals (0.9) (9.1) (10.0)
Transfer to right-of-use assets - (2.2) (2.2)
Other moverments 02 02
At 31 March 2023 307 1226 153.3
Accumulated depreciation
At 31 March 2022 9.4 848 942
Depreciation charge for the year 0.5 8.4 8.9
Disposals (0.4) (7.9} (8.3)
Transfer o right-of-use qssets - (6.2) {6.2)
Cther movemens - 2.7 2.7
At 31 March 2023 2.5 81.8 ?1.3
Net book value at 31 March 2023 21.2 40.8 62.0
Cost
At T April 2021 32.5 1393 171.8
Additions 0.4 6.3 6.7
Disposals (2.7) (14.0} (16.7)
Transfer to right-of-use assets - (4.4) (4.4)
Other movements - (0.2) (0.2}
At 31 March 2022 30.2 127.0 157.2
Accumulated depreciation
At 1 April 2021 1.7 21.9 103.4
Depreciation charge for the year 05 9.0 2.5
Disposals 12.7) {12.7) (15.4)
Transfer 1o right-of-use assets - 0.2 0.2
Other movements {C.1) (3.9) (3.7)
At 31 March 2022 9.4 848 94.2
Net baok value at 31 March 2022 20.8 422 63.0

1. The categories of group owner occupied land and buildings and other land and buildings disclosed in FY22 have been combined to form cne new
category of land and buildings.
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NQOTES 1O THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS CONTINUED

17 RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS

Piant & equipment,

Leind and buildings ond vehicles Total

Group £m £m £m
Cost
At 1 April 2022 94.5 179.2 273.7
Additions 22 316 338
Disposals {2.7) (9.9) (12.6)
Transfer from property, plant and equipment - 2.2 22
Other movements ) 0.1 (0.1) -
At 31 March 2073 ) 941 230 2971
Accumvulated deprectation
At 1 April 2022 221 57.4 79.5
Depreciation charge for the year 8.1 15.5 236
Disposals (2.5) (7.9} (10.4)
Transfer frorm property, plant and equipment - 6.2 6.2
Other movements ] 0.1 (2.6) {2.5)
At 31 March 2023 278 68.6 96.4
Net book value at 31 March 2023 66.3 1344 200.7
Cost
At 1 April 2021 1.8 128.4 2202
Additions 38 48.3 52.1
Disposals (1.3) (2.2) (3.5)
Transter to property, plant, and equipment - 4.4 4.4
Other movements 0.2 0.3 0.5
At 31 March 2022 ) ) _ . 945 179.2 2737
Accumulated depreciation
At 1 April 2021 15.2 47.4 62.6
Depreciation charge for the year 8.1 12.5 206
Disposals (1.3) (2.2} (3.5)
Transfer from property, plant, and equipment - 0.2) (0.2}
Other movements 0.1 {0.1) -
At 31 March 2022 221 57.4 79.5
Net book value at 31 March 2022 724 121.8 194.2

Land and

buildings
Company £m
Cost
At 1 April 2022 88.0
Additions a1
Disposals (1.8)
Other 21
At 31 March 2023 88.6
Accumulated depreciation
At 1 April 2022 233
Depreciation charge for the year 8.1
Disposals (1.6)
At 31 March 2023 298
Net book value at 31 March 2023 588
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS CONTINUED

17 RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS (CONTINUED)

tand and
puldings
Company £m
Cost
Atlapdi202 88.0
At 31 March 2022 88.0
Accumulated depreciation
At 1 April 2021 15.2
Depreciation charge for the year 8.1
At 31 March 2022 23.3
Net book value at 31 March 2022 64.7
18 INVENTORIES
Group 222; 22257
Work in progress 5.7 54
Raw materiak and consumables 124 10.9
Finished goods and goods for resale - 0.1
18.1 16.4

Work in progress at 31 March 2023 inciudes assets to a value of £0.8m [FY22: £0.8m) expected to be consumed during the

forthcoming year. Inventories carmied at net reglisable value at 31 March 2023 did not differ from their carrying value.

19 CONTRACT BALANCES
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES RELATED TO CONTRACTS WITH CUSTOMERS

Contract assets are made up of a portfolio of contracts and represent unbilled amounts, including amounts arising from changes
to scope of works that have been recognised as revenue but not yet billed. Contract liakiities result when cumulative cash
received exceeds cumulative revenue on any particular contract. There are no significant one-off factors attibuted to the

moevements of ihese balances outside of normal frading.

£m
Confract assets
At 1 April 2021 97.7
Transfers from contract assets recognised at the beginning of the year to receivables {37.01
Performance obligations satisfied in the year that have yet to be transferred to receivables 69.1
At 31 March 2022 129.8
Transfers from contract assets recognised at the beginning of the year to receivables {74.0}
Performance obligations satisfied in the year that have yet to be transfermred fo receivables 103.8
At 31 March 2023 159.6
Contract liabilities £m
At 1 April 2021 (186.1)
Revenue recognised against confract liabilities at the beginning of the year 179.3
Increase due to cash received, excluding ameounts recagnised as revenue during the year [223.8)
At 31 March 2022 {230.6)
Revenue recognised against contract liabilities ot the beginning of the year 230.0
Increase due to cash received, excluding amounts recognised as revenue during the year {263.2)
At 31 March 2023 (263.8)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS CONTINUED

19 CONTRACT BALANCES (CONTINUED)

Assefs Assets Licibifities Liatrities Net MNet
2023 2022 2023 2022 2023 2072
£m £m £m £m £m £m

The ageing of contract assets/(liabilities) at the

year end was:

Ltess than one year 123.0 78.7 {263.7) {230.1) (140.7) {151.4)
More than one year 36.6 51.1 (0.1} (0.5) 36.5 50.6
159.6 129.8 (263.8) {730.6) (104.2) (100.8)

At 31 March 2023, contract assets include customer retentions of £48.8m (FY22: £60.7m) relating to construction contracts of which
£36.6m {FY22: £44.1m} are non-current assets. The Group manages the collection of retentions through its post completion project
monitoring procedures and ongoing contact with clients to ensure that potential issues that could lead to the non-payment of
retentions are identified and addressed promptly. The Directors always estimate the loss allowance on contract assets at the end
of the reporting period at an amount egual to lifetime expected credit losses. None of the contract assets at the end of the
reporting period are past due, and. taking into account the historical default experience and future prospects in the industry, the
Directors consider that the impact of impairment is not material. Accordingly no expected credit loss has been recognised.

At 31 March 2023, contract llabilities includes significant financing components of £2.5m {FY22: £0.6m).

CONTRACT FULFILMENT COSTS
The Group has no fulfiment costs within contract assets.

REMAINING PERFORMANCE OBLIGATIONS
Contracts which have remaining performance obligations expected to be settled through to contract completion are set out beiow:

Restated

2023 2022

£m £Em

Construction work in hand 4,559.9 4,448.2

Management expects that £2,320.2m [FY22: £20%7.2m1) in relation to contracts in place as at 31 March 2023 will be recognised
as revenue in the next financial year, £1,295.6m (FY22: £1,352.0m) will be recognised between 2 and 3 years and £944.1m {FY22:
£992.0m} wil be recognised between 3 and 5 years.

1. The construction work in hand for FY22 was restated by £443.2m from £4.891.4m to £4,448.2m, the remaining performance abligation as at 31 March 2022 has

been restated Dy £168.2m from £2.265.4m to £2,097.2m os they had incorectly included revenue generated from a payroll services company which does
not have future performance obligations.

20 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

Amounts expected to be recovered within one year: 23?: mﬁ
Group
Trade receivables 47.5 70.0
Less: allowances for expected credit losses 0.5) (R}
Amounts owed by Laing O'Rourke Corporation Limited Group undertakings 52 102
Prepayments and accrued income 252 12,4
Other receivables 56 5.2
83.0 977
Company
Prepayments and accrued income 1.8 1.3
Other receivables - 0.3
1.8 1.6

Amounts owed by Group undertakings are unsecured, inferest-free, have no fixed date of repayment, and are repayable on
demand.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS CONTINUED

20 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (CONTINUVED)

Amounts expected to be recovered after more than one year: 222; Ifn?
Group
Trade receivables - 0.1
Other receivables - 0.3
- 0.4
Company
Armounts owed by Laing O'Rourke Plc Group undertakings* 250.9 2462
Other receivables - 0.4
250.9 246.6
Total rade and other receivables - Group o 830 98.1
Total frade and other receivables - Company 252.7 248.2
Group
Comprising
Financial assets (Note 29) 58.3 86.5
Other assets oufside the scope of IFRS 7 247 11.6
83.0 8.1

* The Drectors have assessed the recoveratiiity of the balance. including by reference to the financial suppert the counterparty has received from Laing
O'Rourke Corporation Limited, the ultimate parent company, and on this basis the Directors are satisfied that no provision for expected credit losses s required

inrelation to this amount for the year ended 31 March 2023,

Movement in the provision for impairment of trade receivables

2023 2022

£m m

Opening balance 1.0 1.0
Additional provisions recognised - 0.1
Utilised during the year (0.5) -

Unused amounts reversed - {0.1)
Closing balance 0.5 1.0

The maturity profile of the receivables and allowance for expected credit losses provided for above are as follows:

Allowance for

expected

Cemrying amount credit losses

2023 2023

£m £m

Not overdue 34.0 -
0to 3 months overdue 3.3 -
3 to 6 months overdue 1.7 -
Over 6 months overdue 08 -
More than one year 77 0.5
47.5 0.5

Alowance for

expected
Canying amount credit iosses
2022 2022
£m £m
Not overdue 299 -
0 to 3 months overdue 30.4 -
3to 6 months overdue 1.0 -
QOver 6 months overdue 1.0 -
More than one year 77 1.0
70.0 1.0
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS CONTINUED

21 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

2023 2022
£m £m

Cash at bank and in hand 152.0 181.6
Restricted cash 02 3.0
152.2 184.6

Restricted cash depaosits include £0.2m (FY22: £3.0m) relating to project bank accounts where amounts due to subconfractors are
ringfenced but are classified as cash and cash equivatents as they are available in order o meet short-term cash commitments.

Payments to subcontractors were made after the year end.
22 BORROWINGS

2023

2002

£m £m
Amounts expected to be seffled within one year:
Group
Bank loans 0.1 0.2
Lease liabilities 38.4 34.7
38.7 34.9
Company
Lease liabilities 6.5 6.9
LX) 6.9
Amounts expected to be seitled after more than one year:
Group
Bank lcans 13.0 13.1
Intercompany loans owed to Laing O'Rourke Corporation Limited Group undertakings 48.0 48.0
Lease liabilities 124.7 12%.6
185.7 190.7
Company
Lease liabilities 53.3 58.4
53.3 58.4
Total borowings — Group 2244 225.6
Total borowings — Company 59.9 65.3

Obligations under leases are secured on certain non-curent assets of the Group with an original cost of £245.7m (FY22: £240.7m)

and total net book value of £177.7m (FY22: £174.6m).

On 19 October 2023, the Group extended the £35.0m revolving credit facility to 3 April 2026. The facility has been maintained at
£35.0m through to 31 March 2025, at which point quarterly £2.5m step-downs commence, reducing the facility to £25.0m by 31

December 2025.
A £13.0m property loan was also extended to 3 April 2026.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS CONTINUED

23 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

2023 2022
£m £m
Amounts expected to be setfled within cne year:
Group
Trade payables 135.3 134.6
Amounts owed fo Laing O'Rourke Corporation Limited Group undertakings 59.7 47.5
Other tax and social security 55.0 458
Other payables 9.0 20.1
Accruals and deferred income ) 2240 148.7
483.0 396.7
Company
Amounts owed 1o Group undertakings 3871 3518
Other payables 04 0.4
Accruals and deferred income 0.1 0.6
387.6 3528
Amounts expected to be settled after more than cne year:
Group
Trade payables 32.3 19.1
Accruals and deferred income 4.7 8.8
37.0 279
Company
Accruals and deferred income 0.3 0.4
0.3 0.4
Total trade and other payables — Group 520.0 424.6
Total trade and other payables - Company 387.9 353.2
Group
Comprising
Financial labilities {Note 29) 45%.6 365.0
Other liabilities outside the scope of IFRS 7 60.4 59.6
5200 4246

At 31 March 2023, frade payables included subcontractor retentions of £39.2m (FY22: £41.6m) relating to construction confracts,

of which £32.3m (FY22: £12.1m} are non-current ligbiiities.

Amounts owed to Group undertakings are unsecured, Interest-free, have no fixed date of repayment, and are repayable

on demand.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENIS CONTINUED

24 PROVISIONS

Joint ventures provisions Confract provisions Other provisions Total previsions
Group £m £Em £m £m
At 1 Apiil 2022 110 53.¢9 0.7 65.6
Provisions created - 90.6 - 90.5
Provisions utilised {4.3) (26.1) - (30.4)
At 31 March 2023 6.7 1184 0.7 125.8
Disclosed within:
Current liabilities 6.7 1184 0.5 125.6
Non-current liabilities - - 0.2 0.2
6.7 118.4 0.7 125.8
At 1 April 2021 7.0 782 - 852
Provisions created 5.1 2.0 C.7 14.8
Provisions utilised - (33.3) - (33.3)
Acquisition of non-controlling interest (1.1} - - (1.1
At 31 March 2022 11.0 53.9 0.7 65.6
Disclosed within:
Current liabilities .o 53.9 0.4 65.3
Non-current liabilities — — 0.3 0.3
1.0 53.9 Q.7 65.6

The Group provides in full for obligations to remedy net liabilities of jointly controlled entities in excess of amounts olready lcaned.
At 31 March 2023, these provisions amounted to £6.7m (FY22: £11.0m) and were measured in accordance with the Group's
accounting policies. Amounts provided are assessed based on judgements of contract costs, contract programmes and
maintenance liabilities and are expected to be paid within cne year.

At 31 March 2023, contract provisions included liabilities across a number of legacy projects related fo rectification works

of £51.1m (FY22: £46.3m}, of which £nil (FY22: £nil) are non-current liabilities. During the year, £20.6m of the liabiity as at 1 April 2022
was utilised for rectification works performed on legacy projects. Of these liabilities of £51.1m (FY22: £446.3m). the Group does not in
all cases have access to the site to fully assess the costs of rectification and, therefore, there is no certainty as o the level of costs
that will ultimatety be incured to settle them. As descrbed further in note 2.26, these liabilifies are therefore considered a key
source of estimation uncertainty. Unless the timing of the rectification works is known and will occur more than 12 months affer the
balance sheet date, these labilities are shown as current. Contract provisions also includes £67.3m [FY22: £7.6m) relating to
onercus contract provisions.

Company zc;znﬁ 2(;2[3
At 1 March 0.1 -
Additional provisions recognised 0.2 0.1
Utiised during the year (0.1) -
Closing balance 0.2 0.1

The provision relates to aright-of-use asset for remedial works on leased properties to bring the asset back to the original condition.
The amount payable is subject to commercial negotiations once the lease is surendered. At 31 March 2023, the cash outflow was
expected to occcurin the following year.

25 DEFERRED TAX

The presentation of defemmed tax assets and deferred tax liakilities in the statement of financial position sets off deferred tax assets
against deferred tax liakilities where they relate to conporate income taxes levied by the same taxation authority and there is a
legally enforceable right to offset curent tax assets against curent tax liabilities. This note sets out the Group’s deferred tax assets
and liabilties without applying such offset.

A summary table reconciling the defemed tax assets and deferred tax abilities in the statement of financial position to the
remainder of this note is also set out below:

2023 022
£m £m

Net deferred tax position at 31 March
Defered tax assets 954 358
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS CONTINUED

25 DEFERRED TAX (CONTINUED)

Assets Assets iabilities Lakiihes Net Mest
2023 2022 2023 X022 2023 2072
£m Em £m £m £m £m
Recognised deterred tax assets and liabilities
Group
Property, plant, and equipment 27.6 253 (40.3) {31.5 {12.7) (6.2)
intangible items - 2.7 {1.3} 12.7) [1.3)
Other temporaty differences 0.3 0.1 (0.2) - 0.1 0.1
Tax losses carried forward 1117 43.2 - - 1Lz 43.2
Deferred tax assets/(liabilities) 139.6 68.6 (43.2) (32.8) 6.4 35.8
The ageing of deferred tax assets/(liabilities)
at the year end was:
Less than one year - 12.4 - - - 12.4
More than one year 139.6 56.2 (43.2) (32.8) 6.4 23.4
139.6 68.6 {43.2) (32.8) 964 358
Al Apnl Exchange and Recognised in Recognised in At 31 March
2022 other movement income equity 2023
£m £m £m £m £m
Movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities in the year
Property, plant, and equipment (6.2) - {6.5) - (12.7)
Intangible assets (1.3 - {1.4) - (2.7)
Cther temporaty differences 0.1 - - - 0.1
Tax losses canied forward 43.2 - 68.5 - 111.7
358 - 0.6 - 96.4
At 1 Apnl Exchange and Recognised in Recognissd in A1 31 March
2021 other movement income equity 2022
£m £m Em £m £m
Property, plant, and equipment (2.2) - (4.0) - (6.2)
intfangible assets - - (1.3) - {1.3)
Other temporary differences 0.2 - 0.1} - 0.1
Tax losses carried forward 33.2 - 10.0 - 43.2
31.2 - 4.6 - 358

The recognised deferred tax assets include £111.7m (FY22: £43.2m) which primarily relates to caried forward losses in relafion to
the UK operations, The losses arase predominantty due to a small number of contracts that became onerous during the year. The
nature of confract accounting and the application of IAS 37 results in the full anticipated loss being recognised as it becomes
onerous and therefore it has been recognised during FY23 on these contracts. The remaining contracts are profitable and are
forecast to continue to be and the Group has conciuded that these defered tax assets will be recovered using the estimated
future taxable income, which is based on the approved forecasts prepared by management. These forecasts cover future years
and fake into account UK tax laws that, in broad terms, restrict the offset of the canied forward tax losses to 50 per cent of the
current year profits. The UK Group entities are expected to generate taxable profits in the future. The losses can be camied forward
indefinitely and have no expiry date. Changes in future profits willimpact the recoverability of the deferred tax assets, refer to note
2.26f) for further detail. Current forecasts indicate that the losses will be utilised over a period of up to 15 years. Refer to note 2.2é¢e)
and the going concern section in the Directors’ Report for further detail around the forecast profitability as well as the key

assumptions ang areas of estimotion uncertainty.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS CONTINUED

25 DEFERRED TAX (CONTINUED)

UNRECOGNISED DEFERRED TAX ASSETS AND LIABIITIES
Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in respect of the following items:

2023 2022
£m £m
Tax losses 62.2 67.9

The Group has unrecegnised deferred tax assets of £62.2m (FY22: £67.9m) relating to unused tax losses of £233.8m [FY22: £276.3m).
predominantly generated from Canadian operations which are equity accounted. The tax losses have arisen in the Group and
can be carned forward to future periods for use against part of future profits. The losses can be caried forward indefinitely and
have no expiry date. No deferred tax asset has been recognised in respect of these amounts as the [uture taxalle profits are not
probable and the constraints in using the losses.

The Group does not have undistributed earnings which, if paid out as dividends, would be subject to tax in the hands of the
recipient.

26 SHARE CAPITAL

Numper of £1 Share copiial
shares issued £m
At 1 April 2022 and at 31 March 2023 167.108 02

Allissued share capital is fully paid.
27 RECONCILIATION OF MOVEMENTS IN TOTAL EQUITY

Foreign cumency

Share capital translation reserve Fair value reserve: Accumlated losses Total equity
£ £m £m £m £m

Group
At 1 April 2021 as previously presented 0.2 (19.6) 0.7 (161.6) (180.3)
Restatement? - 25.5 - (25.5) -
At 1 Apri 202] restated 0.2 59 0.7 [187.1) (180.3)
Profit for the year - - - 20.2 202
Other comprehensive (expense}fincome
for the year, net of tax - (0.8) 0.7) - (1.5)
Total comprehensive (expense)/income for
the year - (0.8) (0.7) 202 18.7
At 31 March 2022 0.2 51 - (166.9) (161.8)
Loss for the year - - - (128.9) (128.9)
Other comprehensive expense for the year,
net of tax - {1.5) - - (1.5)
Total comprehensive expense tor the year - (1.5) - (128.9) (130.4)
At 31 March 2023 0.2 3.4 — (295.8) (292.0)

1. Management has restoted the financial statements to comect a prior year eror, These restatements are to recycle the foreign curency fransiation reserve to
accumulated losses for foreign operations that were disposed of prior to FY20.

FAIR VALUE RESERVE

The fair vaiue reserve included the cumulative net change in the fair value of assets held to collect and to sell until the investment
is de-recognised, together with any related deferred tax.

FOREIGN CURRENCY TRANSLATION RESERVE

The transiation reserve comprises all foreign exchange differences arising from the translation of the financial statements of foreign
operations.

ACCUMULATED LOSSES
Accumulated losses relate to the proportion of net income retained by the parent company less distributions.
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27 RECONCILIATION OF MOVEMENTS IN TOTAL EQUITY (CONTINUED)

(Accumulated ksses)/

Farr value resenea retaned eamings Total equity
Share capital Em £m £m £m
Company
At 1 April 2021 0.2 0.7 (49.3) (48.4)
Loss for the year and
other comprehensive expense - n7) 0.3 (0.9)
Capital centribytion - ) - ] 179.9 179.9
At 31 March 2022 0.2 - 130.4 130.6
Loss for the year and
other comprehensive expense - - (29.3) (29.3)
At 31 March 2023 0.2 - 101.1 101.3

In the prior year, the Company benefitted from Laing O'Rourke Services Limited waiving £17%.9m of an intercompany balance
payable as part of Ihe UK restructure programme caried out in FY22. As both parties are under commaon ownership the
transaction is presented as a capital contribution.

28 GUARANTEES AND CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
The Group had contingent iabilities at 31 March in respect of;

GUARANTEES
2023 2022
£m £m
Surety bonds 472 58.4
Bank guarantees - —
47.2 58.4

No guaraniees were collateralised at 31 March. These guarantees may give rise to liabilities in the Group if it does not meet its
obligations under the terms of the guarantees. No material losses are anticipated in respect of any of the above guarantees,

CLAIMS

The Company has subsidiaries that have a conventional contractor's fiability in relation to construction and engineering contracts,
including but not imited to guarantees, counter-indemnities and guarantees in respect of their share of certain contractual
obligations of joint arangements, consortia and other similar relationships. This liability includes various claims from time to time by
the Group or subsidiaries against third parties or claims by third parties against the Group or its subsidiaries of joint arangements or
consortia retatianships in which the Group has an interest. It is not possible to estimate the financial effect of these claims should
they be successful. While the outcome of these claims is uncertain, where it is appropriate to do so, the directors believe fhat
adequate allowance has been made within the forecasted contract provisions.

Provisions are made for the Directors” best estimate of known defects, legal claims, investigations and legal actions relating to the
Group which are considered more likely than not will result in an outflow of economic benefil. If the Directeors consider that an
economic outflow in relation to a defect, claim, investigation or action relating to the Group is not probaksle, and/or consider that
there is no present obligation, no provision is made. If the Directors cannot make a reliable estimate of a potential, material
obligation, no provision i made but details of the claim are disclosed.

JOINT ARRANGEMENTS
The Group has subsidiaries that have entered into joint amangements under which the subsidiaries may be jointly and severally
liable tor the liabilities of the joint arangements.
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29 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

29.1 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

Financial risk management is an integral part of the way the Group is managed. In the course of its business, the Group is exposed
primarily to foreign currency risk, interest rate risk, liquidity risk, and credit risk. The overall aim of the Group's financial risk
management policies is to minimise potential adverse effects on financial performance and net assets.

The Group's treasury department manages the principal financial risks within policies and operating parameters approved by the
Board and purchases derivative financial instruments where appropriate. Treasury is not a profit centre and does not enter into
speculative transactions.

29 2FORFIGN CURREMNTY RISK
Foreign cumrency risk is the risk that the value of financial instruments will fluctuate as a result of changes in foreign exchange rates.
The pound stering equivalents of the cumency of the Group's financial assets and liabilities, were as fallows:

Pound sterimg value ot ecpvalent curancy {£n)

2023
2023 2023 2023 2023 2023 Total
GBP EUR CaD HKD Other £m
Loans to joint ventures 8.0 - - - - 8.0
Trade and other receivables 45.7 - 7.1 0.2 53 58.3
Cuash and cash equivalents 147.1 49 0.1 0.1 - 152.2
Total financial assefs 200.8 4.9 72 03 53 218.5
Borrowings [224.4) - - - - {224.4)
Trade and other payables {458.0) - Q.1) - {1.5) (459.8)
Net financial {liabilities)/assets (481.6) 4.9 7.1 0.3 38 {465.5)
Pound stering value of equivalent curency (£m)
2022 2022 022 2022 2022 fgg
GBP EUR CAD HKD Other £m
Loans fo joint ventures 80 - - - - 80
Trade and other receivables 68.1 - 73 0.2 10.9 86.5
Cash and cash equivalents . 280 - 0l 02 84
Total financial assets 257.3 a1 73 0.3 1.1 2791
Sorrowings (225.4} - - (G.2} - (225.4)
Trade and other payables {361.6) {3.3) 0.1) - - (365.0)
Net financial [labilities) /assets (329.7) [0.2) 7.2 0.1 11.1 [311.5)

If the foreign exchange rates that the Group is exposed to had changed adversely by 10 per cent at the balance sheet date.
the results for the yeor and equity would have decreased by £1.5m [FY22: £].1m). This sensitivity onalysis tokes into account the
tax impact and the forward exchange contracts in place.

At the year end the Company had no significant balances in foreign currencies.
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29 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

27 . 3INTOREST RATE RISK

Interest rate risk is the risk that the value of financial instruments will fluctuate due to changes in market interest rates. The Group s
exposed to interest rate risk in relation to some cf its borrowings. Borrowings issued at varable rates expose the Group to cash flow
interest rate risk. The contractual repricing or maturity dates, whichever are earler, and effective interest rates of total borrowings
are as follows:

Repricing/maturity date
Wihin one Belween one After two Effective
Total year andtwo years years interest rate
£m £m £m £m %
At 31 March 2023
Bank loans 13.1 0.1 13.0 - 6.36%
Lease obligations 163.3 38.6 420 82.7 451%
Loans payable to Laing O'Rourke Corporation Limited Group entities 48.0 - 48.0 - 2.06%
2244 38.7 103.0 82.7
At 31 March 2022
Bank loans 13.3 0.2 13.1 - 4.55%
Lease obligations 1464.3 34.7 30.2 98.7 3.75%
Loans payable to Laing ©'Rourke Corporation Limited Group entities 48.0 - 48.0 - 2.06%
225.6 34.9 92.0 98.7

Iif interest rates on variable rate borrowings had been 1 per cent higher during the year. the results ana equity would have
reduced by £0.5m (FY22: £1.0m). This sensitivity analysis takes into account the tax impact.

The Company is exposed to interest rate risk in reqard to one balance owed to Group undertakings; see note 22.

29. 4 LIGQUIDITY RISK

Prudent liquidity risk management invelves maintaining sufficient cash and available funding to meet liabilities as they fall due. The
Group has procedures in place to minimise quidity risk such as maintaining sufficient cash and cther highly liquid curent assets
and by having an adequate amount of committed credit facilities.

On 12 October 2023, the Group refinanced its UK facilities, extending its £35.0m revolving credit facility. The new facility has three
covenants related to adjusted EBITDA, minimum liquidity, and forecast liquidity. If certain of these covenants are breached this wil
constitute an event of default on the Group's borrowing facilities. The Group takes a proactive stance in manitoring and ensuring
compiiance with covenants and reporting requirements. Procedures are in place to moniter and forecast cash usage and other
highly liquid current assets. This, together with the revolving credit facility, ensures that we have an adequate avaiability of cash
when required.
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2% FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

294 LIQUIDITY RISK (CONTINUED)

Maturity of financial liabilities

The maturity profile of the canying amount of the Group's financial fiabilities including interest is as follows:

Trade and othet Bank lodns

payables and other loans Leases Total
£m £m £m £m

At 31 March 2023
Within one year 483.0 0.1 42.9 524.0
Between one and less than two years 17.2 429 388 118.9
Between two and less than five years 19.8 - 57.7 77.5
Five or mare years - - 32.9 32.9
520.0 63.0 172.3 7553

At 31 March 2022
within one year 3%96.7 0.2 381 435.0
Between one and less than two years 204 663 331 119.8
Between two and less than five years 7.5 - 64.6 721
Five or more years - - 358 358
424 .6 66.5 171.6 662.7

The Company has procedures in place 1o minimise liquidity risk,

2%.5 CREDIT RISK

The Group's credit risk is the risk of financial ioss if a client or counterparty to a financial instrument fails to meet its contractual
obligations. The Group's financial assets are typically trade receivabies and contract assets. Contract assets relate fo unbilled
work in progress ond have substantially the same credit risk profile as trade receivables. The £8.0m (FY22: £8.0m) loan tc joint
ventures is not considered a significant debt to the Group, nor considered a higher credit risk as the counterparty continues to fulfil
its confractual obligations. The funding and helding of PFIs is no longer a core activity for the Group. For cash and deposits the
credit rating of a financial institution will determine the amount of and duration far which funds may be deposited.

The Group will only trade with recognised, creditworthy parties, and all that wish 1o tfrade on credit terms are subject to credit
verification procedures that will be completed before trade commences. Any trade receivable outstanding is moenitored on an
ongoing basis, af both business unit and hub level. Payment is ordinarily received before or when due from our clients, and the
Group does not expect material credit losses to occur on these clients. This is further substantiated by past performance of the
Group recovering in full balances owed. The Company ako does not expect any losses from non-performance by counter parties.

Included within contract assets are client retentions contractuaily due post-completion, these can be due in more than one year
due to the size and nature of projects. Procedures are in place to monitor project performance to identity any potential non-
payment. Prompt action will be taken by management to reduce the risk of non-payment, but often this is an operational issue
rather than determined as a credit risk.

The Group applies the simplified approach to measuring credit losses, which uses a lifetime expected lass allowance for all frade
receivables and confract assefs. Af 31 March 2023, management have estimated an allowance for expected credit ioss based
on experience of past default and the current and future economic environment. Specific trade receivables are provided for if
management become aware of a credit risk. There has not been «a significant increase of the credit risk since the financial assets
have been recognised. A delbot is only written off once all mechanisms o coflect have been exhausted, and there is no
reasonable expectation of recovery,

29.6 FAIR VALUES

The fair value movements on held to collect and to sell financial assets are recognised in the consclidated statement of
comprehensive income. In the prior year the Group derecognised the fair value reserve in relafion to financial assets held to
collect and to selin relation to PFlinvestments in joint ventures in the year and recognised a £0.7m loss.

The carrying and fair values of the Group's financial instruments at 31 March are as foliows:

Far volue Carying amount Far value Carmying amount

2023 2023 v 2022

£m £m £m £m

Financial assets measured at gmortised cost 64.3 66.3 4.5 4.5
Financial iakilities measured at amortised cost (684.0) (684.0) (583.0) 1583.0}
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29 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS {CONTINUED)

29.6 FAIR VALUES (CONTINUED)
The carrying and fair values of the Group's and Company's financial instruments were not materially different at 31 March 2023 as
the impact of discounting on fixed term porrowings is noft significant.

Loans, receivables, and financial licbilities are valued at their amortised cost, which is deemed to reflect fair value due fo their
short-term nature.

79 7 CAPITAL RISK RAARALEAMENT

The Group's and Company’s objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the Group's and Company's ability to
continue as a going concern in order to provide returns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders to maintain an
optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group and Company may adjust the amount of dividends paid to
shareholders, retym capital to shareholders, issue new shares or sell assets to reduce debt.

The Group regularly forecasts its cash position to manage on both a short-term and a long-term basis. Performance against
forecasts is also reviewed and analysed te ensure the Group etficiently manages its net funds/detot position.

Net cash is calculated as cash and cash equivalents less total borrowings but excluding bank arrangerment fees and the impact
of IFRS 16 Leases {including ‘cument and non-current bomrowings' as shown in the consolidated statement of financial position).

At 31 Mareh 2023 the Group had net cash of £4.4m {FY22: net cash of £43.5m}; see note 3é.

30 ASSETS CHARGED AS SECURITY FOR LIABILITIES AND COLLATERAL ACCEPTED AS SECURITY FOR ASSETS
Financial assets pledged os short-term collateral and included within cash equivalents were £nil [FY22: Enil}.

No financial assets have been provided to the Group as coliateral (FY22: £nil).

31 ALTERNATIVE PERFORMANCE MEASURES

The Group presents certain measures of financicl performance and position in the consolidated financial statements that are not
defined or specified according to IFRS in order to provide additional performance-related measures to its stakeholders. These
measures, referred to as Alternative Performance Measures (APMs), are prepared on a consistent basis for all periods presented in
this report.

By their nature, the APMs used by the Group are not necessarily uniformly applied by peer companies and therefore may not be
comparable with similarly defined measures and disclosures applied by other companies. Such measures should not be viewed in
isolation or as a substitute to the equivalent IFRS measure.

Internally, the Group and its operating segments apply the same APMs in a consistent manner in planning and reporting on
performance to management and the Board,

The APMs used by the Group are described below, together with a reference 1o their use and, where not already provided., a
reconciliation to the relevant IFRS information.

APM description and putpose Note reference Closest IFRS measure

Managed revenye Note 3 Revenue
Revenue, including share of joint ventures' revenue and inter-segment revenue. This is primarily

used at the segment level o measure the totalincome of ali aclivities in the segment, regardless

of ownership or infercompany relationship. The reconciliation to revenue is shown in Note 3.

Revenve including share of joint ventures Note 3 Revenue
This is used primarily at the Group level to assess revenue eamed from third party customers,
including by joint ventures. The reconciliation to revenue is shown in Note 3.

Net cash Note 36
This is a measure of the overall liquidity position of the business at the statement of financial

position date. It is equal to cash and cash equivalents less borrowings, excluding loan

armangement fees and the impact of adopting IFRS 14 Leases.

2023 2022

£m £m

Cash and cash equivalents (see statement of financial position} 1522 184.6
Current borowings (see statement of financial position) (38.7) (34.9)
Non-curent borrowings {see statement of financial positicn) (185.7) (190.7)
Less impact of adopting IFRS 16 leases 76.6 84.5
Net cash 4.4 43.5
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32 FINANCIAL AND CAPITAL COMMITMENTS
Capitat expenditure for property, plant, and equipment, authorised and contracted for which has not been provided forin the
financial statements amounted to £8.4m (FY22; £15.0m) in the Group.

33 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCES

IDENTITY OF RELATED PARTIES

The Group hos a refated party relationship wifh iis major shareholder, subsidiaries, joint arangements, and key management
personnel.

GROLP

The Group received income and incured expenses with related parties from transaclions made in the normal course of business.
SALE OF GOODS AND SERVICES PROVIDED T3 RELAIFD PARTIES

2023 20221
Income samed Recefvobhe ¢t Moo <ot Reaeviibls at
in year year-end 1N year year-end
£m £m £m £m
Subsidiaries outside the LOR Plc Group (note 20) imanagement charges) 11.0 52 6.7 10.9
Joint ventures:
Alder Hey SPV (interest on sub debt) 11 80 - 8.0
BYLOR Services Limited (payroll services)! 0.2 - 0.1 -
Explore Transport Limited (IT cost} 02 0.1 1.0 0.5
Related parties:
Qisin Aviation (Jersey) LP (employment and office cost) 0.2 - 0.3 -
Oisin Capital Limited (office and admin cost) 0.4 - 0.2 0.1
PURCHASE CF GOODS AND SERVICES PROVIDED BY RELATED PARTIES
023 20221
Expenses paid in  Payable at year- Experses paidin Payable of yeor-
year end year end
£m £m £m £m
Subsidiaries outside the LOR Plc Group (note 23) 10.9 59.7 9.8 47.5
Joint ventures:
BYLOR Services Limited {(employment cost)! 2108 - 146.1 -
Explore Transport Limited (fransport and plant hire) 552 49 467 48
Related partigs:
Mark Holding and Finance Limited (leased premises} 18 0.5 1.8 0.1
Qisin Aviation (IOM]) LP {aviation cost) 0.1 - 0.1 -
Qisin Aviation {Jersey) LP (aviation cost) 0.3 - 0.1 -
Steefley Investments Limited (leased premises) 6.1 2.0 6.1 Q.2

1. Related party transactions for FY22 have been represented in the table above. FY22 expenses paid in the year to joint ventures has been increased by
£146.1m due jo the omission of cost related to payroliin the prior year, FY22 receivable at year end has beenincreased by £8m due o incomect disciosure in
the prior year. This has been reprasented and restated in the table above.

These restatements have no impact on the Group's profit/(loss), nef asset position, or nef cash flows in the current or pricr

financial year.

The related parties receivables and payables are not secured and ne guarantees were received in respect thereot. Both will be
settled in accordance with normal credit terms. Amounts due to and from joint ventures and associates at 31 March 2023 are
disclosed within investment in joint ventures and associates and loans to joint ventures, tfrade and other receivables and trade and
other payables in notes 15, 20 and 23 respectively. No amounts were written off in the year by either party in respect of amounts
payable under the agreements entered into.

Alder Hey (Special Purpose Vehicle} Limited, BYLOR Services Limited, Emirates PreCast Construction LLC and Explore Transport
Limifed are refated parlies by virtue of the fact that they are joint venture undertakings of the Laing O'Rourke Corporation Group.

In both years all invoices from Mark Holding and Finance Limited and Steetley Investments Limited were paid io Ebsworth Holding
and Finance Limited, During the year the interests in Mark Holding and Finance Limited, Steetley Investments Limited and Ebsworth
Holding and Finance Limited were held in trust, the beneficiaries of which are R G O'Rourke KBE and H D O'Rourke.

The limited partners of Oisin Aviation [IOM] LP and Oisin Aviation (Jersey) LP were R G O'Rourke KBE and H D G'Rourke.
The interasts in Ofsin Capital Limited were held in trust, the beneficiaries of which are R G O'Rourke KBE and H D O'Rourke.

R G O'Rourke KBE and H D &’'Rourke are beneficiarias of the trust which ultimately awns Suffolk Partners Corporation.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS CONTINUED

33 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCES (CONTINUED)

DIRECTORS T REMUNERATION
During the year, the total remuneration of the Directors was £4.3m (FY22: £6.6m) of which pension costs amounted to £0.0m
(FY22: £0.1m), see note 7.

TRANSACTIONS WITH DIRECTORS

H D O'Rourke employed the Group to provide stonemasonry services, the project is complete at 31 March 2023, £0.1m (FY22:
£0.1m) was recognised as revenue for these services. The palance outstanding at the year end was £nil (FY22: £nill. No amounts
were writter offin lhe year by eilher parly in respect of amounts payable under the agreements entered into. The contract was
based on normal commercial terms,

In the year ended 31 Maorch 2022, b ) McGeeney, Director, Infrastructure employed the Group to provide sftonemasonry services,
£0.1mwas recognised as revenue for these services and £13,700 was outstanding as at 31 March 2022 but has since been paid
during the year ended 31 March 2023, No further work was conducted for D J McGeeney during the year.

34 ULTIMATE PARENT COMPANY

The immediate parent undertaking of Laing O'Rourke Pl is O'Rourke Investments Limited, a company registered in England

ond Wales. The ulfimate parent company of Laing O'Rourke Plc is Laing O'Rourke Corporation Limited, a company registered in
Jersey. R G O'Rourke KBE holds 64.2 per cent of the shares of Laing O'Rourke Corporation Limited and H D O'Rourke holds 35.8 per
cent. The immediate and ultimate ¢ontrolling party of Laing O'Rourke Corporation Limited is R G O'Rourke KBE by virtue of his
majority shareholding (64.2 per cent).

Laing O'Rourke Corporation Limited is the parent undertaking of the largest group of undertakings to consolidate these financial
statements at 31 March 2023. The Laing O'Rourke Corporation Limited consolidated financial statements are available at
www ldingorourke.com. This Annual Report and Accounts are the smallest group to consolicate the results of the Company.

35 POST BALANCE SHEET REVIEW

The Group has in place an unsecured revolving credit facility with HSBC for £35.0m. The loan had an initial expiry date of 3
Oclober 2023, which was extended to 3 April 2024 during FY23 and further to 3 April 2026 since the year end. As part of the latest
extension, covenants related to interest cover and net debt to EBITDA were replaced by an adjusted EBTDA covenant, and the
minimum liquidity covenant was amended to include three forecast month-end periods. The faciity has been maintained at
£35.0m through to 31 March 2025, ot which point quarterly £2.5m reductions commence, reducing the facllity to £25.0m by 31
December 2025.

36 RECONCILIATION OF NET CASH FLOW TO MOVEMENT IN NET CASH
Liabilities from financing activities
Bank

amangement Cash and cash

Botrowings fees Leases Sub-fotal equivalents Net cash

£m £m £m £m £€m £m

Asat 1 April 2021 [153.4) 308 (42.0) {164.6) 261.5 96.9
Cash flow (48.0) - - {(48.0) 69.3 21.3
New lease arangements - - (73.7) {73.7} - (73.7)
Repayments 140.3 {30.8) 367 144.2 (146.2} -~
Impact of IFRS 16 ot 31 March 2021 - - (79.6) (79.6) - (79.4)
Impact of IFRS 16 at 31 March 2022 - - 84.5 84.5 - 84.5
Ofther changes* L 0. - (5.8) 15.9) - (5.9)
As at 31 March 2022 (61.2) - (79.9) (141.7) 184.6 43.5

Cash flow (0.1} - - (0.1) 7.2 7.1
New lease arrangements - - {36.7) (36.7) - (34.7)
Repayments** 0.2 - 39.4 39.6 (39.8) -
Impact of IFRS 16 at 31 March 2022 - - (84.5) (84.5) - (84.5)
Impact of IFRS 16 at 31 March 2023 - - 76.4 76.6 - 76.4
Other changes* - - (1.6) (1.8) - (1.6)
As at 31 March 2023 (41.1) - (86.7) (147.8) 152.2 44

* Other changesinclude accrued interest not yet paid and interest relating to lecse liabilities
* Repaymentsis net of £7.4minmerest (FY22: £5 m).

The Group defines nel cash as cash less delbt but excluding bank arangement fees and the impact of adopting IFRS 16.
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37 SUBSIDIARIES AND JOINT ARRANGEMENTS
The Company has an interesf either directly or indirectly in the share capital of the following companies:

Subsidiary undertaking

Principal activity

Group interast in
ordinary vofing

sharas Country af incorporation or registration

Anchor Boulevard Limited
Cellence Plus Limited

Coventry Urban Regeneration Limited
Crawn House Technologies Limited
Ellis Mechanical Services Limited
Expanded Piling Limited
Dxpanded Structures Limited
Explore Capital Limited

Explore Investments Limited
Explore Investments (No.1) Limited
Explore Living Balls Park Limited
Explore Living Limited

Explore Living Property Management Limited

Explore 2050 Engineering Limited

Explore 2050 Manufacturing Limited
Class Reinforced Concrete (UK) Limited

rishtown Developments Limited
John Laing Censtruction Limited
John Laing International Limited
John Laing (Malaysia) Sdn Bhd
Laing Abu Dhabi LLC

taing Construction Limited

Laing Engineering Limited

Laing International Nigeria Limited
Laing Limited

taing O'Rourke Canada Limited
Laing O'Rourke Delivery timited

Laing G'Rourke Construction South Limited
Laing O'Rourke Holdings Limited

Laing O'Rourke Infrastructure Limited
Laing O'Rourke mManufacturing Holdings
Limited

Laing O'Rourke Manufacturing Limited
Laing O’'Rourke Midlands Limited

Laing O'Rourke Properties (Erith) Limited
Laing O'Rourke Scotland Limited

Laing Q'Rourke Services Limited

Laing O'Rourke Ufilities Limited

Laing O'Rourke Wales & West Limited

O C Summers Limited

O'Rourke Civil & Structural Engineering
Limited

C'Rourke Civil Engineering Limited

R O'Rourke & Son Maynoath Limited

R O'Rourke & Son Limited

Property investment company
Non-trading

Development management
Mechanical and electrical contracting
Non-trading

Non-trading

Mon trading

Holding company

Helding company

Holdling comparny

Non-trading

Residential development

Residentical property management
Civil and structural engineering,

piing and democlition

Manufacture of construction products

Manufacture and supply of glass
reinforced concrete building products

In voluntary strike off

Non-trading

Holding company

Nen-trading

Non-trading

Non-trading

Non-trading

Dormant company

Holding company

Building contracting and civil engineering

Building contracting. civil engineering and
infrastructure

Building contracting

Halding comparny

Civil engineering and infrastructure
Holding company

Non-trading

Censtruction of commercial buildings
Non-trading

Building contracting

Service company

Non-trading

Building contracting

Non-trading

Non-frading

Non-trading
Non-trading
Holding company

100% England and Wales
100% England and Wales
100% England and Wales
100% England and Wales
100% England and Wales
100% Englana and Wales
1007, Frgland cand Wales
100% England and Wales
100% England and Wales
100% England and Wales
100% England and Wales
100% England and Wales
100% England and Wales
100% England and Wales
100% England and Wales
100% England and Wales
100% reland

100% England and Wales
100% England and Wales
100% Malaysia

49% UAE

100% England and Wales
100% England and Wales
100% Nigeria

100% Engiond and Wales
100% Canada

100% England and Wales
100% England and Wales
100% England and Wales
100% England and Wales
100% England and Wales
100% England and Wales
100% England and Wales
100% England and Wales
100% England and Wales
100% England and Wales
100% England and Wales
100% England and Wales
100% England and Wales
100% Englana and Wales
100% England and Wales
100% Ireland

100% England and Wales
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS CONTINUED

37 SUBSIDIARIES AND JOINT ARRANGEMENTS (CONTINUED)

interast in

ordinary voling Country of incorperation
Subsidiary undertaking Prncipal activity shares or registration
Select Plant Hire Company Limited Plant hire and operations 100% England and Wales
Sundera Holdings Lirnited Dissolved 8 July 2023 100% Ireland
Sycamore Properties Limited Property holding company 100% Bahamas
Vetter UK Limited Finished stone products 100% Englond and Walcs

Interest in

ordinary vaoting Couniry of ncorporation
Joint verture Prncipal activty shares or registration
Alder Hey [Special Purpose Vehicle] Limited PFl accommodation operator hospital 40% England and Wales
Alder Hey Holdco 1 Limited PFl accommodation operator hospital 40% England and Wales
Alder Hey Holdco 2 Limited Pl cccommodation operator hospital 40% England and Wales
Alder Hey Hold¢o 3 Limited PFl accommodation operator hospital 40% England and Wales
BYLOR Services Limited Service company 50% England and Wales
CLM Delivery Partner Limited Non-trading 37.5% England and Wales
Explere Transpoert Limited Logistics 50% England and Wales
Health Montred! Collective CJV Limited PFl accommodation operator hospital 50% Canada
Partnership
9231-9243 Quebec Inc PFl accommodation operator hospital 50% Canada

Emirates Precast Construction LLC and Alder Hey SPY Limited have a year-end of 31 March. BYLOR Services Limited, CLM Delivery
Partner Limited and Explare Transport Limited have a 31 December year end. Health Montreal Collective CJV Limited Partnership
and 9231 — 9243 Quebec Inc have a 30 Apiil year end.

Couniry of ncorporation

Joint operation Pancipal achvity Participation of registration
BYLOR Civil engineering 50% England and Wales
COLOR Bond Street Civil engineering 50% England and Wales
East West Alliance Civil engineering 33% England and Wales
FLO — Northern Line Civil engineering 50% England and Wales
FLO - Thames Tideway Tunnel Civil engineering 50% England and Wales
Heathrow East Terminal Project Civil engineering 50% England and Wales
LM Civil engineering 50% England and Wales
M-Pact Manchester Civil engineering &6C% England and Wales
SAIP Aliance Civil engineering 33% England and Wales
Interest in
ordinary voting Country of Incorporation
Branch Prncipal activity shares or registration
Laing O’Rourke Services Umited Service company 100% Hong Kong

The registered address of those registered in England and Wales is Bridge Place, Anchor Boulevard, Admirals Park, Dartford, Kent
DA2 65N excluding Alder Hey (Special Purcose Vehicle) Limited, Alder Hey Holdco 1 Limited, Alder Hey Holdco 2 Limited and Alder
Hey Holdco 3 Limited whose registered address is 8 White Oak Square, London Road, Swanley, Kent BR8 7AG.

The registered address of those registered in Ireland is 3 Dublin Landings, North Wall Quay, Dublin 1.
The registered address of Laing Abu Dhabi LLC is Sheikh Khalifa Street, Abu Dhabi. United Arab Emirates.
The registered address of the Laing O'Rourke Services Limited branch is Room 905, 625 King's Road, North Point, Hong Kong.

The registered address of John Laing {Malaysia) Sdn Bhd is /o Signet & Co Sdn Bhd, 10th Floor Tower Block, Komple Jalan Sultan
Ismail, Kuala Lumpur, Malaysia.

The registered address of Laing International Nigeria Limited is 98 Awolowe Road, P.C. Box 53756, lkovyi, Lagos, Nigeria,

The registered address of Sycamore Properties Limited is Suite 200b, 2nd Floor, Cenfre of Commerce, One Bay Streef,
P.C. Box N-3944 Nassau, Bahamas.

The registered address of those registered in Canada is 1031 rue Saint-Denis, Montreal, Quebec H2X3H?.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS CONTINUED

37 SUBSIDIARIES AND JOINT ARRANGEMENTS (CONTINUED)

Listed below are subsidiaries controlled and consolidated by the Group, where the Directors have taken the exemption from
having an audit of their financiol statements for the year ended 31 March 2023. This exemption is faken in dccordance with
Section 479A of the Companias Act 2006.

Subsidiary undertaking Company Registration Numlber
Cellence Plus Limited 6726412
Coventry Urban Regeneration Limited 6371949
Expanded Structures Limited 5407121
Explore Capital Limited 5258424
Explore Investments (No. 1) Limited 5835462
Fxplore Investments Limited 5490297
Explore Living Properfy Management Limited 559743/
Glass Reinforced Concrete UK Limited 6795454
Laing Construction Limited 3074000
Laing Engineering Limited 1541508
Laing Limited 3637584
Laing O'Rowurke Manufacturing Holdings Limited 6725938
Laing O'Rourke Properfies (Erith) Limited 4531115
Laing O’Rourke Utllities Limited 4309417
O C Summers Limited 0969372
O’Rourke Civil & Structural Engineering Limited 1323856
O’Rourke Civil Engineering Limited 2810023
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